OPTIMIZE YOUR HEALTH CARE PLANNING RESOURCES

November 28, 2011

Ms. Kimberly R. Martone
Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
L P.O. Box 340308
'Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Mountainside Treatment Center Certificate of Need Application

Dear Ms. Martone:

o On behalf of Mountainside Treatment Center, | am pleased to submit a Certificate of Need
Application for the addition of 16 beds in order to provide residential detoxification and
evaluation services.

As requested, | have included an original and four hard copies in 3-ring binders along with
electronic files in Adobe, MS Word and MS Excel. Also attached to this letter is a check with the
filing fee of $500.00.

Please do not hesitate to contact me at (203) 459-1601 or Terence Dougherty at (860) 824-
1397, if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

C%ﬁw’/?z w//?(W

Karen M. Banoff
Principal

Attachments

Copy to: Terence Dougherty, Mountainside Treatment Center

a1 (‘)Id Hollow Road » Trumbull, CT 06611 » Phone/Fax: 203-459-1601 e kbanoff@kmbconsult.com
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Application Checklist
Instructions:
i. Pilease check each box below, as appropriate; and
2. The completed checklist must be submitted as the first page of the
CON application,
4 Attached is the CON application filing fee in the form of a
certified, cashier or business check made out to the "Treasurer
State of Connecticut” In the amount of $500.
For OHCA Use Only:

Docket No.: Check No.:
OHCA Verified by: Date:

X Attached is evidence demonstrating that public notice has been
published in a suitable newspaper that relates to the location of
the proposal, 3 days in a row, at least 20 days prior to the
submission of the CON application to OHCA. (OHCA requests
that the Applicant fax a courtesy copy to OHCA (860) 428~
7053, at the time of the publication)

& Attached is a paginated hard copy of the CON application
including a completed affidavit, signed and notarized by the
appropriate individuals.

X Attached are completed Financial Attachments I and II.

D] Submission inciudes one (1) original and four (4} hard
copies with each set placed in 3-ring binders.

Note: A CON application may be filed with OHCA electronically
through email, if the total number of pages submitted is 50
pages or less. In this case, the CON Application must be

emailed to phca@ct.gov.

Important: For CON applications(less than 50 pages) filed
electronically through email, the singed affidavit and the check
in the amount of $500 must be delivered to OHCA in hardcopy.

4 The following have been submitted on a CD

1. A scanned copy of each submission in its entirety, including
all attachments in Adobe (.pdf) format.

2. An electronic copy of the documents in MS Word and MS
Excel as appropriate.
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Evidence of Public Notices
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EXHIBIT IV
Affidavit
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AFFIDAVIT

Applicant: MC1 Healthcare LLC dib/a Mountainside Treatment Center

Project Title: _Increase in Licensed Bed Capacity of 16 Beds

|, __Terence R. Dougherty , President & CEQ
(Individual's Name) (Position Title — CEO or CFO)

of Mountainside Treatment Center being duly sworn, depose and state that
(Hospital or Facility Name)

Mountainside Treatment Center’s information submitted in this Certificate of
(Hospital or Facility Name)

Need Application is accurate and correct to the best of my knowledge.

L7, /117

Signaturd 7 7 Date

Subscribed and sworn to before me on f\'](\\}e oV IEN r‘]r.r S0

erl
Notary Public/Commissioner f Superior Court

PP . ALEXANDRA HELFER
My commission expires: NOTARY PUBLIG
State of Conneclicnt
KMy Commission Expires
December 31, 2015
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CON Application
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State of Connecticut
Office of Health Care Access
Certificate of Need Application

Instructions: Please complete all sections of the Certificate of Need (“CON”)
application. If any section or question is not relevant to your project, a response of “Not
Applicable” may be deemed an acceptable answer. If there is more than one applicant,
identify the name and all contact information for each applicant. OHCA will assign a
Docket Number to the CON application once the application is received by OHCA.

Docket Number: TBD

Applicant: MC1 Healthcare LLC dib/a Mountainside Treatment
Center

Contact Person: Terence Dougherty

Contact Person’s

Titte: President & CEG

Contact Person’s P.O. Box 717

Address: Canaan, CT 06018

Contact Person’s

Phone Number: {860) 824-1397

Contact Person’s

Fax Number: (860) 824-4021

Contact Person’s

Email Address: terence.dougherty@mountainside.com
Project Town: Canaan

Project Name: Increase in Licensed Bed Capacity of 16 Beds
Statute Reference: Section 19a-638, C.G.S.

Estimated Total:

Capital Expenditure: $9,672,512
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1. Project Description: Increase in Licensed Bed Capacity

a. Please provide a narrative detailing the proposal, which chronicles the history of
the service earmarked for an increase in licensed beds and provides a rationale for
the proposed licensed bed increase.

This proposal involves a request for an increase in licensed beds at
Mountainside Treatment Center (“Mountainside”), a residential drug
addiction and alcoholism rehabilitation facility located in Canaan,
Connecticut. Mountainside uses a muiti-disciplinary approach to
help individuals suffering from addiction and provides high quality
substance abuse rehabilitation care, including diagnosis,
individualized addiction treatment and aftercare that is
comprehensive, innovative and cost-effective. Mountainside’s staff
of licensed and certified social workers and counselors and
addiction professionals, all of whom who are highly trained and
experienced in treating individuals with drug addiction and
alcoholism, have helped thousands of people from Connecticut as
well as other New England states and beyond. Care at Mountainside
is customized to meet each client’s individual needs; this
personalized approach is a hallmark of the facility. Mountainside
was recognized on a national level in 2005 when its representatives
received an invitation by the White House to meet with the Office of
National Drug Control Policy and its Director, John Walters. The
White House staff was interested in discussing the program’s
success and, in particular, Mountainside's Outreach Program.

Mountainside opened in 1998 with 50 beds for rehabilitation,
intermediate and long-term care as classified by the State of
Connecticut Department of Public Health (DPH). In 20086, it expanded
to 66 beds and in 2010, it reduced its bed count to 62. The bed
reduction was necessary in order to create physical space for
critically important support functions (e.g. rooms for group
activities). Mountainside generally admits between 60 and 80
individuals per month and maintains a relatively full census.
Mountainside’s treatment methods include, but are not limited to,
one-on-one counseling, group counseling, gender-specific groups,
family counseling, the 12-Step education, a mind body spirit
program, adventure based initiatives and continuing care planning.
Mountainside also offers day and evening and outpatient treatment
as well as Aftercare {e.g. Sober House).

To meet a need in Connecticut, and to better serve its clients,
Mountainside is requesting 16 additional licensed beds. These beds
are needed in order to provide critical residential detoxification and
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evaluation (“detoxification”) services. Access to detoxification beds
in Connecticut is problematic, and there are often waiting lists at the
few facilities that offer the service. Mountainside currently uses all
of its 62 licensed beds for rehabilitation care, and occupancy levels
reach 100% regularly throughout the year, resulting in a waiting list.
Due to the strong demand for its rehabilitation services,
Mountainside can only offer detoxification services with additional
beds.

The detoxification beds will be housed in a newly constructed wing
of the main Mountainside facility which will be connected by a glass-
enclosed walkway. The detoxification does not represent complete
substance abuse treatment, but is an important component in the
continuum of substance abuse treatment. There are multiple levels
and settings where detoxification can be provided. Residential
detoxification generally requires five to seven days to complete
before the individual is ready to begin substance abuse rehabilitation
treatment, which typically continues for 28 days. Mountainside will
provide level 3.7 residential detoxification services as defined by the
American Society of Addiction Medicine’s five levels of detoxification
care. This level of care includes providing 24-hour medically
supervised evaluation and withdrawal management, a permanent
facility with inpatient beds and services that are delivered under a
defined set of physician-approved policies and the availability of 24-
hour observation, monitoring and treatment. Offering detoxification
in the same facility where rehabilitation will be provided will help to
ensure completion with the complete treatment process.

Addiction is a chronic medical illness and is often the result of some
combination of genetic, environmental factors and personal choice.
Individuals who abuse drugs and alcohol are at increased risk for
very serious health problems, criminal activity, automobile accidents
and lost productivity in the workplace. While treatment is available
and effective, the majority who need freatment do not obtain it. Itis
estimated that for every one person who seeks and/or receives
behavioral health care for addiction, there are six individuals with
similar conditions who will neither gain access to, nor receive, such
care (source: Connecticut Department of Mental Health and
Addiction Services Practice Guidelines for Recovery-Oriented
Behavioral Health Care — Executive Summary, included as
Attachment A). Effective treatment must provide a combination of
culturally competent therapies and consider other factors including
age, race, culture, language, sexual orientation, gender, family roles,
housing, employment, etc. Mountainside’s approach to addiction
treatment combines a unique set of therapeutic and holistic methods
to support its evidence based program to ensure that each individual
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becomes engaged and that he or she is motivated to participate in
the recovery process.

By adding 16 beds for the provision of residential detoxification and
evaluation services, Mountainside will better serve its clients and
respond to a statewide need for residential detoxification care.

b. Provide in table format the current and proposed number of (1) licensed, (2)
staffed and (3) available beds for each unit/location involved in this proposal.

Please see the following table for current and proposed licensed,
staffed and available beds by service at Mountainside.

Current Proposed
Licensed Beds 62 78
Staffed Beds 62 78
Available Beds 62 78

¢. Provide letters that have been received in support of the proposal.

Mountainside has received numerous letters supporting this
proposal from a wide variety of referral sources who stress the need
for additional residential detoxification beds in CT and the
importance of providing a full continuum of care at the Mountainside
facility.

Letters of support have been included in Attachment B.
2. Clear Public Need

a. Explain why there is a clear public need for the proposal. Provide evidence that
demonstrates this need.

There are several major factors that contribute to the public need for
the proposed addition of 16 beds at Mountainside for the provision
of detoxification and evaluation services. They include:

« There are limited residential detoxification beds in Connecticut,
and many clients must seek care outside Connecticut;

e Mountainside receives numerous requests for residential
detoxification services as the provision of detoxification along
with residential care will improve the continuum and quality of
addiction care; and

¢ Drug and alcohol abuse/addiction continues to be a growing and
significant health and societal issue, and treatment often begins
with detoxification.



Each of these factors is described in more detail below.

Limited Residential Detoxification Beds in Connecticut and
Qutmigration of Clients

Based on information received from the Connecticut Department of
Public Health (DPH) and knowledge of Mountainside staff, there are
currently 44 licensed residential (non-hospital) substance abuse
facilities in Connecticut; however, only six are known to offer level
3.7 residential detoxification services. A listing is provided in
Attachment C. In addition, in July 2011, Connecticut Valley Hospital
in Middletown announced that it would eliminate 20 detoxification
beds as of September 2011 due to state budget cuts, further
exacerbating the shortage of detoxification beds in the state. Please
see Attachment D for an article regarding the closing of these beds.
Residential detoxification is also offered by a number of hospitals in
the state, but it is a higher level detoxification (level 4.0) and this
higher level of care is not required for many clients.

When an addict agrees to enter residential detoxification services,
he/she needs access to a bed that day. If access is not available,
that individual is at risk for continued drug/alcohol use/abuse,
overdose and even death. Availability of beds is an urgent situation.

A recent telephone survey was conducted to determine same-day
bed availability for the six known level 3.7 residential detoxification
facilities in Connecticut. The results are summarized below:

o Three facilities had only between 1 and 3 available beds;

s Three facilities had no available beds for several days.

in addition, four out of sfate facilities were also called and only one
of the four had available beds. Advance knowledge of bed
availability is generally dictated by planned discharges, although it is
not uncommon for an available bed to be needed by more than one
potential client in search of services. Finding an available bed on the
day it is needed is very difficult.

As previously mentioned, Mountainside is currently unable to offer
detoxification services due to lack of bed availability and therefore
must refer clients to other facilities. Frequently, referrals must be
made to out- of-state providers due to limited in-state bed
availability. Over the past 21 months, Mountainside has referred
approximately 170 individuals to facilities outside of Connecticut
(New York, New Jersey and Massachusetts) primarily due to limited
or lack of bed availability. This outmigration for residential
detoxification care is unfortunate and Connecticut’s substance
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abuse providers should be able to provide the necessary access to
needed services for Connecticut residents.

Mountainside Receives Numerous Requests for Detoxification and
Adding Detoxification Beds Will Improve Improve Continuity and
Quality of Addiction Care

Mountainside routinely receives requests for residential
detoxification care from existing referral sources. Because of the
high quality of Mountainside’s rehabilitation care, referral sources
have long requested that Mountainside add detoxification services.
The addition of detoxification beds under its current licensure is a
logical extension of its services and would help to ensure the
completion of treatment for many. Referral sources include
physicians, acute care hospitals, family members, interventionists,
therapists and other mental health facilities. As mentioned
previously, whenever detoxification is provided by the same provider
that will provide ongoing residential rehabilitation, the outcome for
successful completion of treatment is significantly improved. When
individuals have to utilize more than one facility for their addiction
care, such as completing detoxification at one facility and then
transferring to a second facility for rehabilitation, they are less likely
to complete their treatment. In fact, some clients decline to continue
to the separate rehabilitation facility and are much more likely to
relapse since they have not successfully completed their treatment.

It is not uncommon for a detoxification client to feel better foliowing
detoxification treatment and then decline being transferred and
adjusting to another facility for 28-day rehabilitation. This is a
critical time in a client’s treatment and an easy transition to
residential rehabilitation is critical. The provision of residential
detoxification care will help Mountainside to provide a full continuum
of care and better serve the needs of its clients and the requests of
its referral sources.

By increasing access to detoxification care through the addition of
detoxification beds at Mountainside, continuity of care will be greatly
enhanced and will help ensure the successful completion of
rehabilitation care. It also will result in less fragmented care for
clients and will reduce stress on individuals who are undergoing an
extremely challenging and emotionally difficult time in their lives.
Rapid access {0 addiction treatment is consistent with the
Connecticut Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services
Practice Guidelines for Recovery-Oriented Behavioral Health Care,
found in previously referenced Attachment B, which states that
“Recovery-oriented practitioners promote access to care by
facilitating swift and uncomplicated entry and by removing barriers
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to receiving care”. Because family and friends play a critical role in
motivating individuals to seek and continue with treatment, the
improved continuity of care will also reduce associated stress on
family members.

Drug and Alcohol Abuse/Addiction is a Significant Health & Societal
Issue

Alcoholidrug abuse and addiction is a significant health and societal
issue nationally and in Connecticut. In 2009, the Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), the federal
agency focused on the prevention and treatment for substance
abuse and addiction, issued a report entitled, “Results from the 2009
National Survey on Drug Use and Health” (Table of Content and
Highlights included as Attachment E}, finding that an estimated 8.7%
of the population aged 12 or older were illicit drug users, 23.7% of
persons aged 12 and older participated in binge drinking and 6.8%
reported being a heavy drinker {binge drinking on at least 5 during
the past 30 days). Of the 22.5 million people with a substance
dependence or abuse, 3.2 million were classified with dependence
on or abuse of both alcohol and illicit drugs, 3.9 million were
dependent on or abused illicit drugs but not alcohol, and 15.4 miilion
were dependent on or abused alcohol but not illicit drugs. While
drug and alcohol abuse are major problems, they are not being
adequately treated; of the people who needed treatment at a
specialty facility for an illicit drug or alcohol use problem in the past
year, only 11.2% of this population received treatment (see
http://oas.samhsa.govinsduh/2k9nsduh/2k9resultsp.pdf for a copy of
the full report).

Substance abuse continues to be a significant health and social
problem in the State of Connecticut as well as nationally. There is
easy access to illicit drugs since Connecticut is located between
New York and Boston and drugs readily travel between these two
large cities. Connecticut continues to be faced with some significant
substance abuse problems including increasing admissions for
heroin addiction in young adults, increasing non-medical use of
prescription opiates and significant problems of binge drinking and
general alcohol abuse among college students, many of whom often
begin drinking in high school. Senator Richard Blumenthal recently
held a forum that highlighted the problem of prescription drug abuse
among veterans (please see related article in Attachment F). A
recent report from the Connecticut Depariment of Mental Health and
Addiction Services (DMHAS), “Collection and Evaluation of Data
Related to Substance Use, Abuse and Prevention Programs”, June
2011, outlines these problems and describes recent trends in
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substance abuse and treatment in the state. The DMHAS reportis
included as Attachment G.

Prompt access to all levels of addiction services is critical for
Connecticut to address its substance abuse problems. This
proposal is a significant step towards improving access to addiction
services and ultimately addressing the State’s substance abuse
issues.

b. Provide the following regarding the proposal’s location:

i.

ii.

1.

The rationale for choosing the proposed service location;

The proposed service location for the additional beds, at
Mountainside Treatment Center in Canaan, Connecticut, was
chosen because it is the current location of a well-established
and well-respected provider of drug addiction and alcoholism
rehabilitation care. The additional beds will be located in a newly
constructed wing consisting of a mix of semi-private and private
rooms; this new wing will be connected to the main Mountainside
building by a glass-enciosed walkway.

Mountainside’s location is ideal for the delivery of substance
abuse treatment and specifically for residential detoxification.
The facility is located at the base of a private mountain amid 39
secluded acres in Litchfield County, in the foothills of the
Berkshire Mountains. The tranquil, private setting contributes to
the recovery process for individuals seeking treatment there.

The service area towns and the basis for their selection;

Mountainside serves individuals from throughout the State of
Connecticut as well as surrounding states. The nature of
inpatient substance abuse treatment is such that clients are often
attracted to seek care outside their local area in order to ensure
privacy. As such, Mountainside’s service area is considered the
entire State of Connecticut.

The population to be served, including specific evidence such as incidence,
prevalence, or other demographic data that demonstrates need;

The population to be served includes those in need of residential
medically monitored detoxification (level 3.7) who are 18 years of
age and older. Recent census data from 2010 indicates there are
2,757,082 Connecticut residents 18 years of age and older, which
is approximately 77% of the total population.
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According to SAMHSA’s States in Brief report for Connecticut,
global measures for abuse or dependence on illicit drugs or
alcohol are at or above national rates. The report further states
that Connecticut has been among the 10 States with the highest
rates for past month illicit drug and marijuana use and past year
marijuana use for the 18-25 age group as weil as past month
alcohol use for several age groups including 12+, 18-25 and 26+.
This has been a steady trend in Connecticut for survey data
collected between 2002-2203 and 2005-2006.

Alcohol abuse and dependence is a significant problem in
underage residents. According to SAMHSA’s State Profile and
Underage Drinking Facts, 137,000 (32.3%) of 12 to 20 year olds
consumed alcohol in the past month and 100,000 individuals
(23.5%) binged on alcohol. Early alcohol use and binge drinking
can lead to regular alcohol abuse and dependence in young
aduithood. Mountainside currently treats many young adults with
alcohol abuse and dependence and a large percentage of these
clients began drinking before they were of legal drinking age.

See Attachment H for copies of the two SAMHSA reports
referenced above.

How and where the proposed patient population is currently being served;

There are several possibilities for where the proposed population
is currently being served. They are listed below:
 Some are not being served because it was too difficult to
obtain access to a detoxification bed and they decided not
to seek treatment;
» Some are accessing detoxification services out of state;
and
¢ Some were lucky to have been able to access detoxification
services in Connecticut.

As previously stated, an individual who is in need of
detoxification for alcohol or drug addiction has an emergent need
to access a detoxification bed. Any delay in access to
detoxification services can be detrimental to their health.

All existing providers (name, address, services provided) of the expanded
service in the towns listed above and in nearby towns;

Please see the table previously referenced in Attachment D for a
list of the known level 3.7 residential detoxification (non-hospital)
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providers in the state of Connecticut.
Describe existing referral patterns in the area to be served by the proposal; and

Individuals with substance abuse/dependence are referred to
Mountainside in a variety of ways. Some clients have undergone
an intervention with a trained interventionist. The interventionist
may then make a referral to Mountainside for care. Individuals
are also referred for rehabilitation care by other facilities and/or
acute care hospitais when the individual requires hospitalization
prior to rehabilitation. In addition, mental health and substance
abuse clinicians also refer clients to Mountainside for care.
Finally, clients and/or family members may seek out Mountainside
directly.

The effect of the proposal on existing providers, explaining how current
referral patterns will be affected by the proposal.

Because there are limited detoxification beds and existing
providers are generally full or close to full, the proposed addition
of 16 detoxification beds at Mountainside is expected to have littie
or no impact on existing providers.

As evidenced by minimal same day bed availability and the
number of clients who have to be referred to out of state facilities,
existing providers of residential detoxification care are generally
not able to meet the demand for their services.

Finally, Mountainside has an established referral base of
interventionists, facilities and clinicians who have been
requesting the addition of residential detoxification beds at
Mountainside; they are expected to maintain their current referrai
patterns. In addition, other referral sources have told
Mountainside staff that they will refer clients to Mountainside
when the facility offers detoxification.

c. Provide the following regarding the proposed increase in licensed beds:

i

Explain the specific rationale for the increase in beds at each unit/location,
including:

(1) The calculation or other methods by which the proposed increases were
determined, clearly identifying all underlying assumptions used;

Based on available iand, capital costs, financial resources and
estimates of client admissions, Mountainside has determined
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that it can support 16 detoxification beds. Although there is
likely demand for more, in order to match demand with
Mountainside’s resources, 16 beds were determined fo be
appropriate.

Mountainside developed conservative volume projections for
the proposed bed increase. Monthly admissions are estimated
to be 65 per month. This is based on Mountainside’s recent
historical admissions per month which have ranged between
60 and 80. Each admission is expected to utilize the
detoxification beds. Some clients will only require 24 hours of
observation but most will require up to seven days of
detoxification. Therefore projected detoxification admissions
for a full year are estimated to be 780.

Projected patient days have been calculated using an average
length of stay of 6 days. Therefore for a full year, 4,680 patient
days are projected. Based on these projected admissions and
patient days, Mountainside’s 16 detoxification beds will be
operating at 80% occupancy. This occupancy rate would allow
Mountainside to respond to many same day requests for bed
access. As previously stated, these are considered to be
conservative projections and detoxification admissions could
exceed these levels. If that were to occur, Mountainside would
have fo operate at higher occupancy levels.

(2) The patient population that wiil be served; and

The patient population that will be served consists of clients
with drug and/or alcohol abuse and/or dependence in need of
residential detoxification care. Itis estimated that the age
distribution will be similar to the population Mountainside
currently serves, which is primarily young adults between 18
and 30 years of age with a smaller percentage being between
30 and 65 years of age.

(3) The benefits of each proposed increase.

The benefits of the increase in tofal licensed beds at
Mountainside include improved and more timely access to
residential detoxification care, improved continuity of care due
to the provision of detoxification and rehabilitation care at the
same location and the ability to retain Connecticut residents
who currently leave the state for residential detoxification
care.
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ii. For the last three complete FYs, the current F'Y -to-date, and the first three full
years of the proposal, provide the following (by service as relevant to the

proposal):

(1) Occupancy rate;

FY 2008

FY 2009

FY 2010

FY 2011

Occupancy Rate

72%

70%

74%

87%

(2) Average daily census;

FY 2008

FY 2009

FY 2010

FY 2011

Average Daily Census

48

46

46

53

(3) Variability in census including peak census; and

FY 2008

FY 2009

FY 2010

FY 2011

Census High

66

66

62

61

Census Low

36

36

34

33

(4) Patient days.

FY 2008

FY 2009

FY 2010

FY 2011

Patient Days

17,342

16,762

16,820

17,429

d. Provide a copy of any articles, studies, or reports that support the statements made
in this application justifying need for the proposal, along with a brief explanation
regarding the relevance of the selected articles.

In addition to the previous reports referenced, several additionai
reports and articles have been included in Attachment | that support
the statements made in this application and justify the need for the
proposal. Highlights from these publications are listed in the table

below.
Publication Relevance
New England High intensity Map on page 2 shows that several
Drug Trafficking Area: regions of Connecticut are part of the

Drug Market Analysis 2010

84.

New England High Intensity Drug
Trafficking Area, particularly along
major highways such as 1-95, |-81 and |-

Lives”

“Prescription Drug Abuse in
Danbury Area is Stealing

Prescription drugs and opiates are
increasingly accessibie and are
increasingly being used by young
adults, who do not perceive the danger
and addictive risk.
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e. Explain why the proposal will not result in an unnecessary duplication of
existing or approved health care services.

Because there is a shortage of residential detoxification beds in
Connecticut, with many providers operating at full capacity, some
individuals are forced to leave the state in order to obtain timely
access to a detoxification bed. For these reasons, the proposal is
not expected to result in a duplication of services. Instead, it will
provide improved access to a much needed service.

3. Actual & Projected Volume

a. For each service involved in this proposal, provide volumes for the most recently
completed fiscal year (“FY™) by town.

Admissions for 2010 by client town of origin (CT) are included in
Attachment J.

b. Complete the following table for the past three FY's and current fiscal year
(“CFY™), for each service involved in this proposal.

Table 1: Actual Service Volumes

Actual Volume

] s
(Last 3 Completed FYs) CFY Volume

FY *2008 | FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
Service**
Admissions 508 578 580 601
Total

* For periods greater than 6 months, report annualized volume, identifying the number of actual months covered
and the method of annualizing. For periods less than six months, report actual volume and identify the period
covered.

#* ldentify each service type and Jocation and add lines as necessary. Provide number of visits

and/or number of admissions for each service listed, as appropriate.

*** Fill in years. In a footnote, identify the period covered by the Applicant’s FY (e.g. July 1-June

30, calendar year, etc.).

¢. Explain any increases and/or decreases in volume seen in the table above.

In 2008, Mountainside’s facility was in need of renovation.
Mountainside was started as a non-profit facility but, during the
economic challenges of the past few years, Mountainside was unable
to obtain the necessary funding to renovate and improve its physical
plant. The facility was converted to a for-profit in 2009 in order to
obtain the necessary funding to improve the facility. As a result of
these facility improvements, admissions and census have increased
dramatically. Occupancy this year is approaching 90%.

d. Complete the following table for the first three full fiscal years (“FY™) of the
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proposed service increase (if the first year is a partial year, include that as well).

Table 2: Projected Service Volumes

Projected Volume (First 3 Years
FY 2012 | FY 2013 | FY 2014

Detoxification admissions 384 (1) 780 780
1. FY 2012 represents 6 months of volume

** If the first year of the proposal is only a partial year, provide the first partial year and then the
first three full FY's. Add columns as necessary.

*&* Jdentify each service type and location and add lines as necessary. Provide number of visits
and/or number of admissions for each service listed, as appropriate.

#+4% Fill in years. In a footnote, identify the period covered by the Applicant’s FY (e.g. July 1-
June 38, calendar vear, etc.),

a. Provide a detailed explanation of all assumptions used in the derivation/
calculation of the projected volume.

Please refer to the response to question 2c¢ (1)
2. Quality Measures

a. Submuit a list of all key professional, administrative, clinical, and direct service
personnel related to the proposal. Attach a copy of their Curriculum Vitae.

Please see Attachment K for the Curriculum Vitae of key staff
associated with the proposal. Numbers of medical professionals
have already been brought in discussions for consideration of
employment.

b. Explain how the proposal contributes to the quality of health care delivery in the region.

The proposal will have a direct and positive impact on the quality of
heaith care delivery. The availability of residential detoxification
services in the same facility as residential rehabilitation care will
help ensure that more drug-addicted and alcoholic individuals
complete their treatment. It also improves the continuity of care
and, by improving access to detoxification care, helps to ensure that
more individuals are entering the first phase of critical services at
the same facility in which they will continue their rehabilitation to
help them conquer their addiction.

c¢. Identify the Standard of Practice Guidelines that will be utilized in relation to the
proposal. Attach copies of relevant sections and briefly describe how the
Applicant proposes to meet each of the guidelines.

Mountainside will follow State of Connecticut licensure regulations
and incorporate the guidelines issued by SAMHSA in its Treatment
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Improvement Protocol (TIP) #45 — Detoxification and Substance
Abuse Treatment relative to levels of care and patient placement
(TIP 45 can be accessed at http:/istore.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-45-
Detoxification-and-Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA08-4131).
Mountainside is also pursuing CARF accreditation and will
incorporate any standards related to detoxification as required.

3. Organizational and Financial Information

®

<.

Identify the Applicant’s ownership type(s) (e.g. Corporation, PC, LLC, etc.).
The Applicant is a for profit corporation.

Does the Applicant have non-profit status?
[ ] Yes (Provide documentation) [X] No

Provide a copy of the State of Connecticut, Department of Public Health
license(s) currently held by the Applicant.

Mountainside’s Department of Public Health license is included as
Attachment M.

Financial Statements

i.  If the Applicant is a Connecticut hospital: Pursuant to Section 19a-644,
C.G.S., each hospital licensed by the Department of Public Health is required
1o file with OHCA copies of the hospital’s audited financial statements, If the
hospital has filed its most recently completed fiscal year audited financial
statements, the hospital may reference that filing for this proposal.

ii. If the Applicant is not a Connecticut hospital (other health care facilities):
Audited financial statements for the most recently completed fiscal year. If
audited financial statements do not exist, in lieu of audited financial
statements, provide other financial documentation (e.g. unaudited balance
sheet, statement of operations, tax return, or other set of books.)

Please see Attachment N for Mountainside’s audited financial
statements for Fiscal Year 2010.

Submit a final version of all capital expenditures/costs as follows:

Table Z: Proposed Capital Expenditures/Costs

Medical Equipment Purchase $
Imaging Equipment Purchase

Non-Medical Equipment Purchase 995,600
Land/Building Purchase * , 760,000
Construction/Renovation ** 7,295,000




Other Non-Construction (Specify)

Total Capital Expenditure (TCE) $9,672,513
Medical Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) *** b
Imaging Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) ***

Non-Medical Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) ***

Fair Market Value of Space ***

Total Capital Cost (TCC) 39,672,513
Total Project Cost {TCE + TC(C) $9,672,513
Capitalized Financing Costs (Informational Purpose Only)

Total Capital Expenditure with Cap. Fin. Costs $9,672,513

# 1f the proposal invelves a land/building purchase, attach a real estate property appraisal including the

amount; the useful life of the building; and a schedule of depreciation.

## [ the proposal involves construction/renovations, attach a description of the proposed building work,
including the gross square feet; existing and proposed floor plans; commerncement date for the
construction/ renovation; completion date of the construction/renovation; and commencement of operations

date.

### 1f the proposal involves a capital or operating equipment lease and/or purchase, attach a vendor guote
or invoice; schedute of depreciation; useful life of the equipment; and anticipated residual value at the end

of the lease or loan term.

Attachment O includes a proposed floor plan.

f. List all funding or financing sources for the proposal and the dollar amount of
each. Provide applicable details such as interest rate; term; monthly payment;

pledges and funds received to date; letter of interest or approval from a lending
institution.

The proposal will be funded by an equity contribution and a bank
loan. Please refer to Attachment P for the letter of interest from the
Bank of America Merrill Lynch regarding the loan.

Demonstrate how this proposal will affect the financial strength of the state’s
health care system.

The availability of detoxification beds at Mountainside will result in
an increase in individuals seeking this care in Connecticut and,
consequently, in the number of individuals who successfully
complete addiction treatment due to the improved continuum of
care. As a result, fewer individuals will need fo enter repeat
addiction treatment and will incur fewer complex medical issues
related to their drug addiction or alcoholism that may be treated in
an expensive Emergency Department or inpatient setting. An
increase in individuals receiving successful rehabilitation care will

help reduce any aberrant behavior while under the influence of drugs
or alcohol, such as crimes or unsafe driving. This will in turn have a

positive impact on the state’s health care system.

4. Patient Population Mix: Current and Projected

031
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a. Provide the current and projected patient population mix (based on the number of
patients, not based on revenue) with the CON proposal for the proposed service
increase.

Table 3: Patient Population Mix

Current™ | Year1 | Year 2 | Year 3
FY fekk FY iRk FY’ *kx FY Kokk

Medicare®
Medicaid*
CHAMPUS & TriCare
Total Government 0% 0% 0% 0%
Commercial Insurers® 80% 80% 80% 80%
Uninsured
Workers Compensation
Seif Pay 20% 20% 20% 20%
Total Non-Government 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
Total Payer Mix 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%

* Includes managed care activity.

*% New programs may leave the “current” column blank.

*** Fill in years. Ensure the period covered by this table corresponds to the period covered in the
projections provided.

b. Provide the basis for/assumptions used to project the patient population mix.

The projected population mix by payer is the same as the current
payer mix, which is not expected to change as a result of this
proposal.

5. Financial Attachments I & 11

a. Provide a summary of revenue, expense, and volume statistics, without the CON
project, incremental to the CON project, and with the CON project. Complete
Financial Attachment L. (Note that the actual results for the fiscal year reported
in the first column must agree with the Applicant’s audited financial statements.)
The projections must include the first three full fiscal years of the project.

Attachment P includes Financial Attachment | showing a summary of
revenue, expense and volume statistics without the CON,
incremental to the CON and with the CON project.

b. Provide a three year projection of incremental revenue, expense, and volume
statistics attributable to the proposal by payer. Complete Financial Attachment
L. The projections must include the first three full fiscal years of the project.

Completed Financial Attachment ll is included in Attachment Q.
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Provide the assumptions utilized in developing both Financial Attachments I
and I1 (e.g., full-time equivalents, volume statistics, other expenses, revenue and
expense % increases, project commencement of operation date, etc.).

Assumptions utilized in developing Financial Attachments | and |l are
provided in Attachment R.

. Provide documentation or the basis to support the proposed rates for each of the
FYs as reported in Financial Attachment I1. Provide a copy of the rate schedule
for the proposed service(s) earmarked for licensed bed increase.

Detoxification and evaluation services will be charged on a daily
basis at $750/day. This rate is based on market rates of which
Mountainside staff is well aware as they currently refer patients to
other facilities for this service.

. Explain any projected incremental losses from operations contained in the
financial projections that result from the implementation of the proposed licensed
bed increase.

There are minimal incremental losses from operations contained in
the first two years, and these can be attributed to depreciation
expense which is a non-cash expense.

Describe how this proposal 1s cost effective.

The proposal is cost effective for a number of reasons:

e Access to detoxification residential services is limited and
difficult, resulting in some clients not seeking treatment.
Continued use and abuse of substances is a significant risk for
those unable to access treatment. As previously stated, drug and
alcohol abuse contribute to health (e.g. emergency room visits,
illnesses, etc.) and societal costs {e.g. crime, violence, efc.)
significantly. This proposal will improve access to addiction
treatment and thus reduce some of the significant health and
societal costs associated with substance abuse.

e The additional beds at Mountainside will permit improved access
to in-state detoxification residential services thus reducing the
costs incurred by clients and families who have to travel out-of-
state.



Attachment A

Connecticut Department of Mental Health and Addiction
Services (DMHAS): Practice Guidelines for Recovery-
Oriented Behavioral Health Care
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“No right is held more sacred, or is more carefully

guarded, by the common law, than the right of every

B

i

individual to the possession and control of his[/her| own

person, free from all restraint or interference of others,

4
&

unless by clear and unquestioned authority of law.”

o

%

— United States Supreme Court

(Linion Pacific Raibway Co. v, Botsford)

R A ——

Prepared for the Connecticut Department of Mental Health and
Addiction Services by the Yale University Program for Recovery and
Community Health (Tondora & Davidson, 2006).

2
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Forward by Commissioner Thomas A, Kirk, Jr., Ph.D.

The document that you are about to read is an extraordinary one in its origins, its content,
and its value as another step toward achieving and maintaining a recovery-oriented health
care service system in Connecticut.

In my view, if not the most important, the following document is one of the most significant
products to result within the last five years from the public/private partnership composed of
persons in recovery, families, staff and leadership of DMHAS, prevention specialists,
private nonprofit service providers, the academic community, and other advocates and
stakeholders. This collective group has focused on assessing and improving the quality of
services available for persons with mental illness and/or substance use disorders in the State
of Connecticut.

Consider a few of its origins. Listening to the suggestions and continuing guidance of those
who need or use our services is one of the most basic and essential characteristics of a
recovery-oriented service system. Thus, beginning in 1999 we asked Advocacy Unlimited,
Inc. and the Connecticut Community for Addiction Recovery, Inc. to work together to
develop a set of Recovery Core Values that could serve as guideposts for DMHAS as it
began the journey of restructuring its service system. The result was 27 principles divided
into four categories: Direction, Participation, Programming and Funding/QOperations.
Go to www.dmhas,state.ct.us, click on major Initiatives, then “Recovery Initiative” for
further information about the Recovery Core Values.

Well before 1999, there had been “champions” of recovery in any number of state and
private service sectors who understood the meaning of “recovery” and the importance of it
in the lives and care of the people receiving services. They now had the opportunity to speak
in a louder voice and educate the rest of us. We all stand on the shoulders of those who came
before us.

DMHAS later hosted a few statewide Recovery Conferences, established a Recovery
Institute and Centers of Excellence, and conducted a series of consensus-building retreats for
executive directors, medical and clinical leadership, and several other stakeholder groups
within the mental health and addiction service communities and elicited their views about
the concept of recovery, what it would mean for their activities, and what gaps needed to be
addressed and barriers removed for us to achieve a recovery-oriented system.

All of the above, and other work, led to the signing in September 2002 of Commissioner’s
Policy Statement No. 83 on “Promoting a Recovery-Oriented Serviee System.” This
landmark policy designated the concept of recovery as the overarching goal, guiding
principle, and operational framework for the system of care supported by the DMHAS. It
incorporated the Recovery Core Values. It stated that:

“We shall firmly embed the language, spirit, and culture of recovery
throughout the system of services, in our interactions with one another and
with those persons and families who trust us with their care.”

In addition, this policy envisioned and mandated services characterized by:
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“...a high degree of accessibility, effectiveness in engaging and retainins
DErsons 1x car:

...effects shall be sustained rather than solely crisis-oriented or short-lived

...age and gender appropriate, culturally competent, and atiend to trauma
and other factors know to impact on one’s recovery

. whenever possible, shall be provided within the person’s howme
community, using the person’s natural supporis,”

But how do you actually do a recovery-oriented service system? This key question
remained after all of the above work and many current activities—too numerous to mention.
Absent answers to this question, one may think “all this recovery stuff is conceptual ... it
has no real meaning or practical reality. The focus will not really change our system.”

The following document answers this question by identifying eight domains of a recovery-
oriented service system ranging from degree of participation of persons in recovery in the
recovery planning and system development process to "Identifying and Addressing Barriers
to Recovery.” It then lists a dozen or so concrete, practical and well-researched action steps
or guidelines in each domain. It answers questions like: “You will know when you are
placing primacy on the participation of people in recovery when...”

The document gives examples, identifies potential barriers, and uses the words of people in
recovery to explain what each domain means and what they can expect in that domain. Tt
includes a glossary and distinguishes a Deficit-based Perspective from a Recovery-
oriented, Asset-based Perspective. As service providers review their Agency Recovery
Assessment Plans and as DMHAS fiscal, service, and quality staff go about their business,
they now will have a roadmap to inform policy, develop outcomes and funding strategies,
and a framework to monitor our fidelity with the guidelines of a recovery-oriented health
care system. Persons in recovery and other recipients of services will know what to expect,
what they need to be educated about, and what they have a right to demand in their
interactions with the system.

It is said that successful initiatives have a thousand fathers and mothers and failed initiatives
are orphans. I believe our journey to a recovery-oriented and transformed service system has
many parents. I hope this document will help those who either cannot understand or who
have not yet embraced a recovery-oriented service system to become another parent of this
journey.

I would welcome any comments about the above or your opinion of this document at
Thomas. Kirk@po.state.ct.us.

Q)

May 5, 2006
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Executive Summary

The notion of recovery has become the focus of a considerable amount of
dialogue and debate between and among various constituencies within the mental
health and addiction communities. Following a brief introduction to the topic, in
which we clarify various sources of confusion about the term, these practice guide-
lines begin to operationalize the various components of DMHAS’ vision of a
recovery-oriented system of behavioral health care. This vision was first put forth in
Commissioner’s Policy #83, “Promoting a Recovery-Oriented Service System,” and
has since been embodied in various DMHAS education, training, and program
development initiatives. These guidelines represent the first systematic effort to bring
recovery into the concrete everyday practice of DMHAS-funded providers.

Defining our Terms

One major source of the confusion surrounding use of the term in recovery in
behavioral health derives from a lack of clarity about the respective roles of
behavioral health practitioners and those of people with behavioral health disorders
themselves. For the purposes of this document, we offer the following two definitions
which we have found to distinguish usefully between the process of recovery (in
which the person him or herself is engaged) and the provision of recovery-oriented
care (in which the practitioner is engaged).

Recovery refers to the ways in which a person with a mental illness and/or
addiction experiences and manages his or her disorder in the process of
reclaiming his or her life in the community.

Recovery-oriented care is what psychiatric and addiction treatment and
rehabilitation practitioners offer in support of the person’s recovery.

Practice Guidelines

A. Primacy of Participation

An essential characteristic of recovery-oriented behavioral health care is the
primacy it places on the participation of people in recovery and their loved ones in all
aspects and phases of the care delivery process. Participation ranges from the initial
framing of questions or problems to be addressed and design of the capacity and
needs assessments to be conducted, to the delivery, evaluation, and monitoring of
care, to the design and development of new services, interventions, and supports.
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Practice guidelines to be included in this domain:

AL

A,

A3,

Ad.

A,

A.6.

AT,

A8,

A9,

AL1Q.

Aldl.

AJZ.

A3,

A.14.

People in recovery are routinely invited to share their stories with
current service recipients and/or to provide training to staff,

People in recovery comprise a significant proportion of representatives
to an agency’s board of directors, advisory board, or other steering
committees and work groups.

Agencies reimburse people for the time they spend providing input into
services, providing peer support and mentoring, and/or providing
educational and training sessions for clients or staff.

Each person served is provided with an initial orientation to agency
practices.

Initial orientation is supplemented by the routine availability of inform-
ation and agency updates to people in recovery and their loved ones.

Policies are established and maintained that allow people in recovery
maximum opportunity for choice and control in their own care.

Measures of satisfaction are collected routinely and in a timely fashion
from people in recovery and their loved ones.

Formal grievance procedures are established and made readily avail-
able to people in recovery and their loved ones to address their
dissatisfaction with services.

Administration enforces ethical practice (e.g., “first, do no harm™)
through proactive human resource oversight.

Assertive efforts are made to recruit people in recovery for a variety of
staff positions for which they are qualified.

Active recruitment of people in recovery for existing staff positions is
coupled with ongoing support for the development of a range of peer-
operated services that function independent of, but in collaboration
with, professional agencies.

Self-disclosure by employed persons in recovery is respected as a
personal decision and is not prohibited by agency policy or practice.

Staff encourage individuals to claim their rights and to make meaning-
ful contributions to their own care and to the system as a whole.

The agency offers to host local, regional, state, and/or national events
and advocacy activities for people in recovery and their loved ones.
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B. Promoting Access and Engagement

For every one person who seeks and/or receives behavioral health care for a
diagnosable psychiatric disorder or addiction there are from two (in mental health) to
six (in addiction) individuals, with similar conditions, who will neither gain access to
nor receive such care. Recovery-oriented practitioners promote access to care by
facilitating swift and uncomplicated enfry and by removing barriers to receiving care.
Engagement involves making contact with the person rather than with the diagnosis
or disability, building trust over time, attending to the person’s stated goals and needs
and, directly or indirectly, providing a range of services in addition to clinical care.

Practice guidelines to be included in this domain;

B.1.

B.2.
B.3.

B.4.

B.5.

B.6.

B.7.

B.8.

B.9.

B.10.

B.11.

The service system has the capacity to go where the potential client is,
rather than always insisting that the client come to the service.

People can access a wide range of services from many different points.

There is not a strict separation between clinical and case management
functions.

Assessment of motivation is based on a stages of change model, and
interventions incorporate motivational enhancement strategies which
assist providers in meeting each person where he or she is.

Staff look for signs of organizational barriers or other obstacles to care
before concluding that a client is non-compliant or unmotivated.

Agencies have “zero reject” policies that do not exclude people from
care based on symptomatology, substance use, or unwillingness to
participate in prerequisite clinical or program activities.

Agencies have an “open case” policy which dictates that a person’s
refusal of services, despite intensive and long-term engagement efforts,
does not require that he or she be dropped from the “outreach’ list.

The system builds on a commitment to and practice of motivational
enhancement, with reimbursement for pre-treatment and recovery
management supports.

Outpatient addiction treatment clinicians are paired with outreach
workers to capitalize on the moment of crisis that can lead people to
accept treatment, and to gain access to their appropriate level of care.

Mental health and addiction practitioners, including people in recovery,
are placed in critical locales to assist in the early stages of engagement.

The agency employs staff with first hand experience of recovery who
have a special ability to make contact with and engage people into care.
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B.13.
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Housing and support options are available for people who are not yet
interested in, or ready for, detoxification, but who may begin to engage
int their own recovery if housing and support are available to them.

The availability of sober housing is expanded to make it possible for
people to go immediately from residential or intensive outpatient
treatment programs into housing that supports their recovery.

C.  Ensuring Continuity of Care

Recovery is seldom achieved from a single episode of care, so practitioners, as
well as people in recovery, families, and policy makers, need to recognize that there
are no quick fixes in behavioral health. Similar to other chronic illnesses, previous
treatment of a person’s condition also should not be taken to be indicative of a poor
prognosis, non-compliance, or the person’s not trying hard enough to recover.
Relapses in substance use and exacerbations of psychiatric symptoms are to be
viewed as further evidence of the severity of the person’s condition rather than as
causes for discharge. All of these principles suggest that treatment, rehabilitation, and
support are not to be offered through serial episodes of disconnected care offered by
different providers, but through a carefully crafted system that ensures continuity of
the person’s most significant healing relationships and supporis over time and across
episodes and agencies.

Practice guidelines to be included in this domain:

C.1.

C.2.

C.3.

C4.

C.5.

.6.

The central concern of engagement shifts from: “How do we get the
client into treatment?” to: “How do we nest the process of recovery
within the person’s natural environment?”

Services are designed to be welcoming to ali individuals and there is a
low threshold (i.e., minimal requirements) for entry into care.

Eligibility and reimbursement strategies for outreach and engagement
strategies are established and refined by administrative leadership.

People have a flexible array of options from which to choose and
options are not limited to what “programs” are available.

Individuals are not expected or required to progress through a pre-
determined continuum of care in a linear or sequential manner.

In a Recovery Management Model, an individual’s stage of change is
considered at all points in time, with the focus of care on enhancing
existing strengths and recovery capital,
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C.7. (Goals and objectives in the recovery plan are not defined by staff based
on clinically-valued outcomes (e.g., reducing symptoms, increasing
adherence), but rather are defined by the person with a focus on
building recovery capital and pursuing a life in the community,

C.8. The focus of care shifts from preventing relapse to promoting recovery.

C.9.  Valued outcomes are influenced by a commitment to ensuring continu-
ity of care and generating long-term effects in the lives of people in
recovery.

C.16. The range of valued expertise is expanded beyond specialized clinical
and rehabilitative professionals and technical experts to include the
contributions of multiple individuals and services. These individuals
may include peers in paid or volunteer positions, mutual aid groups,
indigenous healers, faith community leaders, primary care providers,
and other natural supports.

C.i1. Individuals are seen as capable of illness self-management and inter-
ventions support this as a valued goal of recovery-oriented services.

C.12. New technologies (e.g., tele-medicine and web-based applications and
self-help resources) are incorporated as service options to enhance
illness seli~-management treatment relationghips.

C.13 Access is enhanced to housing, employment, and other supports that
make recovery sustainable.

C.14. Policy formulation and legislative advocacy at the administrative level
is coupled with on-going efforts to work collaboratively with a variety
of state systems to ensure continuity of care.

.15, To facilitate sustained recovery and community inclusion, advocacy
efforts are extended beyond institutional policies and procedures to the
larger community, including stigma-busting, community education, and
community resource development activities.

D. Employing Strengths-Based Assessment

Focusing solely on deficits in the absence of a thoughtful analysis of strengths
disregards the most critical resources an individual has on which to build in his or her
efforts to adapt to stressful situations, confront environmental challenges, improve
his or her quality of life, and advance in his or her recovery. Strengths-based
approaches allow providers to balance critical needs that must be met with the
resources and strengths that people possess to assist them in this process.

Practice guidelines to be included in this domain:

10



B.1.

B.2.

.3.

.4,

b.5.

D.6.

n.J.

D.8.

B.9.

D.10.

.11,

D.12.

D.13.
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A discussion of strengths is a central focus of every assessment, care
plan, and case summary.

Initial assessments recognize the power of simple, yet powerful,
questions such as “What happened? And what do you think would be
helpful? And what are vour goals in life?”

Staff interpret percetved deficits within a strengths and resilience
framework, as this will allow the individual to identify less with the
limitations of their disorder.

While strengths of the individual are a focus of the assessment,
thoughtful consideration also is given to potential strengths and
resources within the individual’s family, natural support network,
service system, and community at large.

The diversity of strengths that can serve as resources for the person and
his or her recovery planning team is respected.

In addition to the assessment of individual capacities, it is beneficial to
explore other areas not traditionally considered “strengths,” e.g., the
individual’s most significant or most valued accomplishments, ways of
relaxing and having fun, ways of calming down when upset, personal
heroes, educational achievements, etc.

Assessments explore the whole of people’s lives while ensuring empha-
sis is given to the individual’s expressed and pressing priorities.

Assessments ask people what has worked for them in the past and
incorporate these ideas in the recovery plan.

Guidance for completing the assessment may be derived from inter-
viewing strategies used within solution-focused approaches to care.

Illness self-management strategies and daily wellness approaches such
as WRAP are respected as highly effective, person-directed, recovery
tools, and are fully explored in the assessment process.

Cause-and-effect explanations are offered with caution, as such think-
ing can lead to simplistic resolutions that fail to address the person’s
situation. In addition, simplistic solutions may inappropriately assign
blame for the problem to the individual, with blame being described as
“the first cousin” of deficit-based models of practice.

Assessments are developed through in-depth discussion with the person
as well as attempts to solicit collateral information regarding strengths
from the person’s family and natural supports.

Efforts are made to record the individual’s responses verbatim rather
than translating the information into professional language.

11
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D.14. Staff are mindful of the power of language and carefully avoid the
subtle messages that professional language has historically conveyed to
people with psychiatric disorders, addictions, and their loved ones.

D.15. Practitioners avoid using diagnostic labels as a means of describing an
individual, as such labels often yield minimal information regarding the
person’s experience or manifestation of the illness or addiction.

D.16. Language used is neither stigmatizing nor objectifying. “Person first”
language is used to acknowledge that the disability is not as important
as the person’s individuality and humanity.

B.17. Exceptions to person-first and empowering language that are preferred
by some persons in recovery are respected.

E. Offering Individaalized Recovery Planning

All treatment and rehabilitative services and supports to be provided shall be
based on an individualized, multi-disciplinary recovery plan developed in partnership
with the person receiving these services and any others that he or she identifies as
supportive of this process. While based on a model of collaboration, significant effort
is taken to ensure that individuals® rights to self-determination are respected and that
all individuals are afforded maximum opportunity to exercise choice in the full range
of treatment and life decisions. The individualized recovery plan will satisfy the
criteria of treatment, service, or care plans required by other bodies (e.g., CMS) and
will include a comprehensive and culturally sensitive assessment of the person’s
hopes, assets, strengths, interests, and goals and will reflect a holistic understanding
of his or her behavioral health conditions, general medical concerns, and desires to
build or maintain a meaningful life in the community

Practice guidelines to be included in this domain:

E.1. Core principles of “person-centered” planning are followed in the
process of building individualized recovery plans. For example:

E.1.i.  Consistent with the “nothing about us, without us” dictum, staff
actively partner with the individual in all planning meetings and/or case
conferences regarding his or her recovery services and supports.

E.1.2. The individual has reasonable contro! as to the location and time of
planning meetings, as well as to who is involved,

E.1.3.  The language of the plan is understandable to all participants, including
the focus person and his or her non-professional, natural supports.
Where technical or professional terminology is necessary, this is
explained to all participants in the planning process.

12



E.1.4.

E.1.5.

E.1.6.

E.1.7.

K.1.8.

E.1.8.

E.1.10.

E.1.11.

E.1.12.

E.2.

E.2.1.

E.2.2.

T.2.3.
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When individuals are engaged in rehabilitation services (e.g., housing
social, or educational/employment areas), rehabilitation practitioners
are involved in all planning meetings (at the discretion of the
individual) and are given copies of the resulting plan.

Within the planning process, a diverse, flexible range of options must
be available so that people can access and choose those supports that
will best assist them in their recovery.

Goals are based on the individual’s unique interests, preferences, and
strengths, and objectives and interventions are clearly related to the
attainment of these stated goals.

Planning focuses on the identification of concrete next steps, along with
specific timelines, that will allow the person to draw upon existing
strengths to move toward recovery and his or her vision for the future.

Assessments begin with the assumption that individuals are the experts
on their own recovery, and that they have learned much in the process
of living with and working through their struggles.

Information on rights and responsibilities of receiving services is
provided at all recovery planning meetings,

The individual has the ability to select or change his or her service
providers within relevant guidelines and is made aware of the
procedures for doing so.

In the spirit of true partnership and transparency, all parties must have
access to the same information if people are to embrace and effectively
carry out responsibilities associated with the recovery plan.

The team reconvenes as necessary to address life goals, accomplish-
ments, and barriers.

A wide range of interventions and contributors to the planning and
tare process are recognized and respected. For example:

Practitioners acknowledge the value of the person’s existing relation-
ships and connections.

The plan identifies a wide range of both professional supports and alter-
native strategies to support the person’s recovery, particularly those
which have been helpful to others with similar struggles.

individuals are not required to attain, or maintain, clinical stability or
abstinence before they are supported by the planning team in pursuing
such goals as employment.

13



E.2.4.

E.3.

E.3.1.

E.3.2.

E.3.3.

E34.

F.4.

E.4.1.

E.4.2.

E.4.3.

E.4.5.

E.5.

E.5.1.

E.5.2.
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Goals and objectives are driven by a person’s current values and needs
and not solely by commonly desired clinical/professional outcomes.

Community inclusion is valued as a commonly identified and
desired outcome. For example:

The focus of planning and care is on how to create pathways to mean-
ingful and successful community life and not just on how to maintain
clinical stability or abstinence.

Recovery plans respect the fact that services and practitioners should
not remain central to a person’s life over time, and exit criteria from
formal services are clearly defined.

Recovery plans consider not only how the individual can access and
receive needed supports from the behavioral health system and the
community, but how the individual can, in turn, give back to others.

Practitioners are mindful of the limited resources available for special-
ized services and focus on community solutions and resources first by
asking “Am I about to recommend or replicate a service or support that
is already available in the broader community?”

The planning process honors the “dignity of risk” and “right te

- fail” as evidenced by the following:

Prior to appealing to coercive measures, practitioners relentlessly try
different ways of engaging and persuading individuals in ways which
respect their ability to make choices on their own behalf.

Unless determined to require conservatorship by a judge, individuals
are presumed competent and entitled to make their own decisions.

Practitioners are encouraged to offer their expertise and suggestions
respectfully within the context of a collaborative relationship, cutlining
for the person the range of options and their possible consequences.

In keeping with this stance, practitioners encourage individuals to write
their own crisis and contingency plans.

Administrative leadership demonstrate a commitment to both out-
comes and process evaluation. For example:

Outcomes evaluation is a continuous process involving expectations for
successful outcomes in a broad range of life domains.

There is a flexible application of process tools, such as fidelity scales,
to promote quality service delivery.
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F. Functioning as a Recovery Guide

The sentiment that “we’re not cases, and you’re not cur managers” has been
accepted increasingly as a fundamental challenge to the ways in which behavioral
health care is conceptualized within a recovery-oriented system. Rather than
replacing any of the skills or clinical and rehabilitative expertise that practitioners
have obtained through their training and experience, the recovery guide model offers
a useful framework in which these interventions and strategies can be framed as tools
that the person can use in his or her own recovery.

Practice guidelines to be included in this domain:

F.1.

F.2.

F.3.

F.4,

E.5.

F.6.

F.7.

F.8.

7.9,

The primary vehicle for the delivery of most behavioral health inter-
ventions is the relationship between the practitioner and the person in
recovery. The care provided must be grounded in an appreciation of the
possibility of improvement in the person’s condition, offering people
hope and/or faith that recovery is “possible for me.”

Providers assess where each person is in relation to the various stages
of change with respect to the various dimensions of his or her recovery.

Care is based on the assumption that as a person recovers from his or
her condition, the addiction or psychiatric disorder then becomes less of
a defining characteristic and more simply one part of a multi-dimen-
sional sense of identity that also contains strengths and competencies.

Interventions are aimed at assisting people in gaining autonomy, power,
and connections with others.

Opportunities and supports are provided for the person to enhance his
or her own sense of personal and social agency.

Individuals are allowed the right to make mistakes, and this is valued as
an opportunity for them to learn.

People are allowed to express their feelings, including anger and dis-
satisfaction, without having these reactions attributed to the illness.

Care is not only attentive to cultural differences across race, ethnicity,
and other distinctions of difference (e.g., sexual orientation), but
incorporates this sensitivity at the level of the individual.

Rather than dwelling on the person’s distant past or worrying about the
person’s long-term future, practitioners focus on preparing people for
the next one or two steps of the recovery process by anticipating what
lies immediately ahead, by focusing on the challenges of the present
situation, and by identifying and helping the person avoid or move
around potential obstacles in the road ahead.
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F.10.

Fal.

F.12.

F.13.

.14,

F.185.

F.16.

Interventions are oriented toward increasing the person’s recovery
capital as well as decreasing his or her distress and dysfunction.

Practitioners are willing to offer practical assistance in the community
contexts in which their clients live, work, learn, and play.

Care is not only provided in the community but is also oriented toward
increasing the quality of a person’s involvement in community life.

Efforts are made to identify sources of incongruence between the per-
son and his or her environment and to increase person-environment fit.

In order to counteract the often hidden effects of stigma, practitioners
explicitly draw upon their own personal experiences when considering
the critical nature of various social roles in the lives of all individuals,
continuing to view people in recovery squarely within the context of
their daily lives.

Rather than devaluing professional knowledge, the “recovery guide”
approach moves behavioral health much closer to other medical
specialties in which it is the health care specialist’s role to assess the
person, diagnose his or her condition, educate the person about the
costs and benefits of the most effective interventions available to treat
his or her condition, and then provide the appropriate interventions.

Recovery is viewed as a fundamentally social process, involving
supportive relationships with family, friends, peers, community
members, and practitioners

G. Community Mapping and Development

Given its focus on life context, one tool required for effective recovery
planning and the provision of recovery-oriented care is adequate knowledge of the
person’s local community, including its opportunities, resources, and potential
barriers. Community mapping and development are participatory processes that
involves persons in mapping the resources and capacities of a community’s
individuals, its informal associations, and its structured institutions, as a means of
identifying existing, but untapped or overlooked, resources and other potentially
hospitable places in which the contributions of people with disabilities and/or
addiction will be welcomed and valued.

Practice guidelines to be included in this domain:

G.1.

People in recovery are viewed primarily as citizens and not as clients
and are recognized for the gifts, strengths, skills, interests, and
resources they have to contribute to community life.
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G.2. Community leaders representing a range of community associations
and institutions work together with people in recovery to carry out the
process of community development.

G.3. Opportunities for employment, education, recreation, social and civic
involvement, and religious participation are regularly identified and are
compiled in asset maps, capacity inventories, and community guides.

G.4. Asset maps and capacity inventories created collaboratively by actively
involved community stakeholders reflect a wide range of natural gifts,
strengths, skills, knowledge, values, interests, and resources available
to a community through its individuals, associations, and institutions.

G.5. Value is placed on the less formal aspects of associational life that take
place in neighborhood gatherings, block watch meetings, salons, coffee
clatches, barbershops, book groups, etc.

G.6. Institutions do not duplicate services that are widely available in the
community through individuals and associations.

G.7. Community development is driven by a creative, capacity-focused
vision identified and shared by community stakeholders.

G.8. The relational process of gathering information about community assets
and capacities through personal interviews and sharing of stories is
recognized as being as important as the information that is collected.

H.  Identifying and Addressing Barriers to Recovery

There currently are elements and characteristics of the service delivery system
and the broader community that unwittingly contribute to the creation and perpetua-
tion of chronicity and dependency in individuals with behavioral health disorders.
There also are several aspects of behavioral health disorders and their place within
contemporary society that complicate the person’s efforts toward recovery. The
competent behavioral health care practitioner will have tools and strategies for
identifying and addressing these barriers to recovery.

Practice guidelines to be included in this domain:

H.1. There is 2 commitment at the local level to embrace the values and
principies of recovery-oriented care and to move away from the
dominant iliness-based paradigm. Systemic changes that reflect
this paradigm shift include the following:

H.1.1.  Stakeholders understand the need for recovery-oriented system change
as a civil rights issue which aims to restore certain elementary freedoms
to American citizens with psychiatric disorders and/or addictions.
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H.1.2.

H.1.3.

H.2.

H.2.1.

B.2.2.

H.2.3.

H.24.

H.2.5.

H.2.6.

H.2.7.

H.3.

H.3.1.

052

Stakeholders work together to move away from the criteria of “medical
necessity” toward “human need,” from managing illness to promoting
recovery, from deficit-oriented to strengths-based, and from symptom
relief to personally-defined quality of life.

The possibility of recovery, and responsibility for delivering recovery-
oriented care, are embraced by stakeholders at all levels of the system.

Systemic structures and practices which impede the adoption of
recovery-oriented practices are identified and addressed. Repre-
sentative change strategies in this area include the following:

Sequential movement through a pre-existing continuum of care is no
longer required, as it is inconsistent with a civil rights perspective and
contradicts current knowledge suggesting that recovery is neither a
linear process nor a static end product or result.

Agencies need to have coordinating structures to attend to both the
prioritization and integration of the range of new initiatives, policies,
and procedures they are attempting to implement at any given time.

Performance and outcome indicators need to reflect the fact that the
desired goal of recovery-oriented care is to promote growth, indepen-
dence, and wellness; goals which sometimes involve the taking of
reasonable risks that may result in interim setbacks.

Continual quality assurance and independent audits are conducted by
people in recovery and families trained in recovery-oriented care.

Initial placement and service design are driven as much by the person’s
perception of what services and supports would be most heipful as by
the staff’s assessments of what the individual seeking services needs.

Recovery plans respect the fact that services and practitioners should
not remain central to a person’s life over time.

To integrate employment within the larger system, the task of assisting
people in entering employment and education is made inherent to the
responsibilities of the entire practitioner network, including those not
specifically charged with supported employment or education tasks.

Implementation of recovery-oriented care needs to be facilitated,
rather than impeded, by funding, reimbursement, and acerediting
structures. Change strategies to address this issue include:

Even though Medicaid is funded by federal dollars, it remains primarily
a state-administered program, and considerable flexibility exists in
using these dollars to support innovative, community-based, supports.
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H.3.2.

H.3.3.

H.34.

H.4.

H4.1.

H.4.2.
H.4.3.
H.4.4.
H.4.5.

H.4.6.

H.A.7.

Within existing funding structures, training and technical assistance can
be provided to practitioners attempting to implement recovery-oriented
practices to assist them in learning how to translate the wishes of
people in recovery into reimbursable service goals and to describe their
interventions in a manner that will generate payment.

Rather than being an add-on to existing services, transformation to
recovery-oriented care begins with discovering ways to be creative and
flexible within the constraints of existing resources.

Self-directed funding opportunities should be considered both on a
collective basis and through individualized budget programs.

Training and staff development is prioritized as an essential func-
tion to increase individual practitioners’ competencies in providing
recovery-oriented care. Necessary change strategies to address this
issue include the following:

As consensus emerges regarding the knowledge and skills needed to
implement recovery-oriented care, this information must lead to the
development of competency models, and these models must be
disseminated broadly as guidance for training programs and licensing
bodies which prepare and accredit providers of behavioral health care.

Once established, competency models should be incorporated in all
human resource activities as a means of promoting accountability and
quality improvement.

An analysis of staff’s current competencies and self-perceived training
needs should guide the development of on-going skill-building
activities at the agency level.

Competency-based training must be coupled with on-going mentorship,
enhanced supervision, recovery-oriented case conferences, and
opportunities for peer consultation.

Clinical directors and agency leaders should be involved in ongoing
training mitiatives so that there is consistency between proposed
recovery-oriented practices and the system’s administrative structures.

Recovery-oriented care does neof imply that there is no longer any role
for the practitioner to play. Rather, the provider’s role has changed
from that of all-knowing, all-doing caretaker to that of coach, architect,
cheerleader, facilitator, mentor, or shepherd—roles that are not always
consistent with one’s clinical fraining or experiences.

Training initiatives need to support people in recovery and families to
develop their own capacity to self-direct their care and life decisions.
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H.5.

H.5.1.

H.5.2.

H.5.3.

H.5.4.

H.6.

H.6.1.

H.6.2.

054

Forees at the societal level which undermine recovery and
community inclusion are identified and addressed. Necessary
change strategies to address this issue include the following:

Behavioral health practitioners have significant expertise to address the
lack of basic resources and opportunities in the broader community,
and are prepared to offer supportive guidance and feedback at both the
individual and community level.

Community collaborations and education must be coupled with efforts
on the part of behavioral health practitioners to recognize instances of
discrimination, to understand relevant disability legislation, and to
effectively utilize state and local resources.

Agencies are cautioned to avoid the establishment of ‘one stop shop-
ping’ service programs which may inadvertently contribute to the
perpetuation of discriminatory and unethical practices on the part of
community members. We must continue to work with community
partners to uphold their obligation to respect people with behavioral
health disorders as citizens who have the right to be treated according
to the principles of law that apply to all other individuals

Professionals and service recipients should be mindful of the limited
resources available for specialized services and should focus on
community solutions and resources first by asking “Am I about to
recommend or replicate a service or support that is already available in
the broader community?”

Certain internal barriers unique te behavioral health disorders are
icentified and addressed. Necessary change strategies to address
these barriers include the following:

Staff appreciate the fact that, based on a complex interaction of the
person’s conditions and his or her past experiences in the behavioral
health care system, people with behavioral health disorders may be
reluctant to assume some of the rights and responsibilities promoted in
recovery-oriented systems. They may initially express reluctance, fears,
mistrust, and even disinterest when afforded the right to take control of
their treatment and life decisions. Exploring and addressing the many
factors influencing such responses is an important component of care.

Research indicates that many individuals with behavioral health dis-
orders also have histories of trauma. Failure to attend to such histories
may seriously undermine the treatment and rehabilitation enterprises,
and further complicate the person’s own efforts toward recovery.
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H.6.3.  Certamn symptoms of illnesses may also pose direct impediments to the
recovery process. In certain conditions, the elimination or reduction of
symptoms may also come with great ambivalence, e.g., while episodes
of mania can be destructive, they may include a heightened sense of
creativity, self importance, and productivity that are difficult to give up.
Being able to identify and address these and other sequelae requires
knowledge and skill on the part of the clinical practitioner.

In each of the following sections, practitioners are given examples of what
they are likely to hear from people in recovery when these guidelines have been
implemented successfully. In addition, there is a list of recommended resources for
further reading on transformation to recovery-oriented care, as well as a glossary of
recovery-oriented language and examples of strengths-based conceptualizations that
are proposed as alternatives to current deficit-based ones.
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November 2, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone, Director of Operations

Department of Public Health - Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13HCA

P. O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re:  CON Application / MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
Dear Ms. Martone:

We at Lower Hudson Valley Employee Assistance Program would like to express our support
for Mountainside Treatment Center’s “CON Application”.

LHVEAP has been in the business of assisting our 31 Unions, 80,000 members and their families
for over 24 years with health and societal problems. We support the additional residential
detoxification bed expansion that Mountainside is in the process of building. These beds can
only improve the quality of Connecticut’s substance abuse / addiction services.

Remember detoxification is often the first step for many individuals with a substance addiction.
The approval of this application would assist in increasing the number of referrals LHVEAP
could send to Mountainside. We would like to urge the Office of Health Care to approve
Mountainsides application which will enhance their treatment program and allow their
professional and clinical treatment team to provide a full continuum of services.

Thank you for the opportunity to express our professional approval of this decision.

Cordially,
Ohnx Wﬁ PR

Michael W. Popp, Ph.D.
Program Director

“We're Here To Help”



McLean Hospital

115 Mill Street, Beimont, Massachusetts 02478-9106
Telephone 617 855-2000, FAX 617 855-3536

11/71M1

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue MS#13 HCA
P.O. Box 34038

Harford, CT 06134-0308

Dear Ms. Martone,

I am pleased to be writing on behalf of The Mountainside Treatment Center's
CON application.

McLean Hospital and Mountainside have enjoyed an enduring and successful
partnership for many years. McLean Hospital has been very pleased with the
current services offered at Mountainside and would offer support for the request
to provide a new detoxification unit at their Connecticut facility. We support this
intent as the services currently provided by the Mountainside are of

quality and we believe this will be true of the new endeavor.

Granting permission for this detoxification unit would enable patients to have a
full continuum of services at one site which has the potential to improve
treatment continuation. Additional detoxification services in the state of
Connecticut would be beneficial to the community at large. McLean Hospital
supports this addition to the clinical services at Mountainside as it presents new
opportunities to patients and families in need of alcohol and drug services.

Sincerely, -;. [/(’ " W& AL
[y Lol

Director, Alcohol and Drug Abuse Services, Mclean Hospital

" A Teaching Facility of Harvard Medical School / An Affifiate of The Massachusetts General Hospital / A Member of Partness HealthCare System, Inc.



Counseli ng, Services

November 4, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Cirector of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center

Dear Ms. Martone:

I'am writing in support of Mountainside Treatment Center's campaign to expand their
services to inciude a detoxification program. As an interventionist and therapist working
throughout New England | have experienced the need for additional services within
Connecticut.

I have worked with Mountainside for several years and their attention to detail and client
focused services are impeccable. Having sent many people to their program | have
always had excellent communication while my client was in treatment and participated in

aftercare planning.

936 Roosevelt Trail - Suive 14, Windham, Maine 04062
{207 8930000 www dandgoounseling.com



Counse[ing Services

One issue that is paramount to the continuum of care is a seamless entry from
detoxification to treatment. This gap between services is where many get lost and
uitimately go back into active addiction. With that service added to Mountainside they
would be a full service program and better able to meet the increasing need for
freatment in New Engiand and beyond. Unfortunately, without that service
interventionists and therapists alike are having to coordinate additional treatment,
transportation, financial resources, etc. to insure that our clients get the best possible
help available to them. The addition of a detox at Mountainside would eliminate that
issue and increase the referrais that | send to their program.

The issues of addiction in Maine are skyrocketing and at the same time the local
programs have recently had their bed space reduced by 50%. | count on Mountainside
to accept my referrals within days if not that same day. Addiction recovery is an issue
that cannot wait until there is space. Mouniainside has taken on the task of preparing for

the imminent future demands of this problem by expanding their services.

I would happy to discuss this further.

e

Steve Danzig ~ /
LMSW-CC, LADCsCEZS

Sincerely,

936 Roasevelr Traill - Sulte 14, Windham, Maine 04063
(207) 893-0000  www.danzigeounseling.com
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November 1, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.C. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
Dear Ms. Martone:

I am writing in support of Mountainside's CON Application for medically monitored 3.7D
Detoxification Services. There is a significant and growing need for detoxification services
in Connecticut due to the epidemic rise of prescription drug abuse. Detoxification becomes
an essential first step in the recovery process for most individuals. Detoxification services
would also enhance the continuum of care which aiready exists at Mountainside. Having
an in-house detoxification unit would ensure a more seamless connect to care rate where
less, clients would “fall through the.cracks” in their movement through the addiction
treatment system. -

Mountainéide will have no problem keeping 16 beds filled as Recovery Network of
Programs, [nc. continues to operate our medically monitored detoxification at capacity and
we are constantly in need of making detoxification referrals.

I have had a very positive experience with the individuals | have referred over the years to
Mountainside. Mountainside meets the highest standards of treatment in the field and |
would not hesitate to refer a family or friend to them. In fact, when | consuited for the
Ministry of Health for the Cayman Islands to help them develop their addiction treatment
system, | had them visit programs across the United States and of the 14 programs they
reviewed, they were most impressed by Mountainside’s model.

| urge approval of this detoxification application for Mountainside and with the addition of
these services | will be able to increase the number of referrals to their continuum of care.

if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (203) 929-1954.

Sincerely,

" .John Hamilton
Chief Executive Officer
Recovery Network of Programs, Inc.

Helping people build betrer lives since 1972
Administrative Office = 2 Trap Falls Road, Suite 405 » Sheiton, CT 06484 o (P} 203-929-1954 ¢ (F) 203-929-1279

An Affirmative Action / Equal Opportunity Employer
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November 2, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center

Dear Ms. Martone:

I 'am writing in support of a Certificate of Need appiication which is in process of
submission to your office by Mountainside Treatment Center in Canaan, CT. Afthough |
work in Southwestern Massachusetts, (Stockbridge}, it has been quite evident to me for
some time that there is a strong need for medically supervised and administered

detoxification services in the Northwestern quadrant of Connecticut.

On any number of occasions over the past 7 years, | have had to search far-and wide for
detox beds, and have ended up placing patients as far away as Worcester, MA, and
Albany, NY. | have no doubt that | would refer patients in such need to a detox at
Mountainside with some frequency, nor that Mountainside's detox beds would ever go

unfilled.

I have worked closely with Mountainside clinical and referral staff over the past 7 years,
and have been strongly impressed by the high level of professional expertise that is
consistently evident at Mountainside. Mountainside Treatment Center has established
itseif as a nationally known, widely respected and innovative provider of substance

abuse rehabilitation treatment at moderate cost.

I hope that Mountainside Treatment Center's CON in this regard will be given the most

serious consideration by the CT DPH.
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10/31/11

Ms. Kimberly Marione

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center

Dear Ms. Martone:

My name is Michael Ferguson, and I'm the Founder and Executive Director at
Ferguson Behaviorat Health Consulting. 1 work with families in crisis all.over the country,
and do quite a bit of work in Connecticut and the surrounding states. ’'m writing to you in
regards to Mountainside Treatment Center's CON application.

In my experience, there’s a distinct need for detoxification and stabilization
services in the state of -Connecticut'.Often, when 1 bring a client to Mountainside, they
needto gotoa fécility in either New Jersey or New York, and that includes clients
coming directly from Connecticut. Allowing Mountainside to expand their services fo
airlow for detoxification services would greatly improve the resources available.
Specifically, Mountainside has consistently done great work with the clients 1 have and
continue to send to them, and adding this service wouid greatly improve their continuum
of care.

From the standpoint of a professional who sends a large number of people to
residential treatment every year, allowing Mountainside to have detoxification services
would make for an even smoother transition for families and clients. A full continuum of
services makes it a single stop for a client in crisis, which makes the entire treatment
experience more manageable for families.

I'look forward to continuing my woerk with Mountainside, and | strongly encourage
you to approve their requests for the above reasons. Their current clinical excellence wiil
only improve with the addition of comprehensive detfoxification services. By removing a

barrier to treatment that currently exists (clients have to go to detoxifications services
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elsewhere), | can easily see sending even more clients o Mountainside in the future. If

you have any questions of concerns, | urge you to contact me at your convenience.

Sincerely,

Michael A. Ferguson____ .
Founder/Executive Director
Ferguson Behavioral Health Consuiting
mike@fergusonbhc.com

800-624-2650

www fergusonbhc.com




November 1, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.0. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center

Dear Ms. Marione:

My organization and | are personally are writing o you in support of Mountainside’s
Certificate of Need Application. We regularly refer to Mountainside and the only
obstacle we run into is the fact that they must outsource detox services. In several
recent instances we have made referrals and Mountainside has had to spend several
days frying to find detox services that have availability. In a few cases, we have both
lost clients as all beds were all full.

Not only am { the Director of Admissions for Spring Lake Ranch Therapeutic Community,
I'am also a graduate of Mountainside. | believe in their program with my whole heart
and soul. To be able to offer a complete continuum of care will not only enhance their
effectiveness but increase my ability to refer even more clients.

Connecticut is a highly respected state in many ways but it struggles along with other
states with substance abuse and the associated problems for society. With all due
respect, | implore you to approve the CON so that they may help people like me get well
and give back to their community instead of draining it’s hope.

Sincerely

< |

Rachel M. Stark
Director of Admissions

TRUSTEES: Barbara Ajcher « Rebecea Bouches » FLF. Doolittle » Judy Rikin » Kashy Ford » Bidred French « Carol Kaminsky » Bruce Mastack, MD
Denise MeGinley  Rebeeca Moore = David Mosher » Phyllis Tarbell » Flurry & Betsy Welch » Michael Wells  EXCCUTIVE DIRECTOR: Tim Taggart
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11-1-11

Dear Ms. Martone:

My name is Joshua Benton and | am the Executive Director at Hopewell Recovery
Services. | would like to first express my gratitude for the work in the addiction field that
Mountainside has done in the years past. Mountainside is a true leader in addiction
treatment. The commitment they provide to helping people addicted is second {o none.
Our company is in full support of their new mission to add detox services for their clients.
The level of professionalism they currently have in the industry will make the addition of
detox services seamless.

The need for detox services in the state of CT. is overwhelming. Mountainside not
only has the ability to fill 16 detox beds but will have the unigue ability to further help
those individuals with additional residential treatment in their primary program. The
ability to offer these services will make them more effective in helping their clients attain
long term sobriety. ' -

Hopewell Recovery Services works with many treatment centers across the country
and therefore has the unique abiiity to see the inner working of some of the most well-
known facilities. Mountainside is the best of the best in regards fo their treatment
program and level of professionalism. The clinical staff works with the client through
each step of the program, from admission to discharge—advocating for the client's
needs every step of the way. Clients in residential treatment have many needs afier
their initial treatment is complete. Mountainside sets the bar in aftercare.

I would urge you to approve Mountainsides request for the increase in number of
beds. Not only will this increase help to save more lives it will help to employ more
people in the CT area—the benefits of this increase are endless!

Sincerely,

Joshua Benton




November 1, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone
BDirector of Operations

Dept. of Public Health

Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Ave, MS#13HCA
PO Box 340308

Hartford, CT (06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
Dear Ms. Martone

I am writing this letter in support of Mountainside Treatment Center's CON
application. As an Addictions Consultant and Interventionist, [ can attest to the need for
Detoxification services in the state of Connecticut. At least two to three times per month I
am forced to vefer to other locations for detoxification and arrange transport to
Mountainside thereafter.

This is not the best clinical plan. Instead it is more clinically appropriate for
detoxification services to be conducted at the same locale as the ultimate treatment for
several reasons:

1. Addicts are often resistant to treatment and balk at the idea of continuing with services
after detoxification despite the need;

2. Often, addicts agree 1o accept treatment but renege on their commitments when a
detoxification bed can’t be found ( we have a drastic shortage in the State of Connecticut );

As a referent, I am thrilled by the prospect of Mountainside offering this valuable
service. 1 have been referring there for the last 7 years and 1 am completely satisfied with
the quality of clinical services provided by the professional staff. Despite my respect for
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their sexrvices [ am often forced to refer elsewhere when detoxification and clinical services
need to be provided in the same place. I would estimate that [ can increase my referrals to
Mountainside by at least a couple per month.

Substance abuse and addiction continues to be a significant health and societal
problem in Connecticut. Recent statistics reveal that an individual between the ages of 18
34 dies of an opiate overdose every other day! Detoxification is the first step for many.
Additional detoxification beds will substantially improve the quality of Connecticut’s plan to
address this major health risk.

In sum, I strongly urge approval for Mountainside to inerease the number of beds to
provide this critical addition to their clinical treatment services.

Sincerely,

Diana Clark, J0), MA
Addictions Consultant
www familyhealingstrategies.com



November 3, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
PO Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a/ Mountainside Treatment Center
Dear Ms. Martone:

1 am writing in support of Mountainside Treatment Center’s application to incorporate a
Detoxification Unit onsite. Presently Mountainside offers an excellent program and the
continuum of services will enhance what is already a well-respected Treatment Center in the
Northeast. Personal experience in working with Mountainside, their professional program and
the clinical treatment team has led me to consistently recommend Mountainside to patients and
their families. My only reservation has been that they do not provide onsite detoxification and I
urge you to consider the importance of this critical addition to their services. It would enarguably
increase the number of referrals I would make. More importantly, it would save lives. I have
been working in the field of addiction for the last 30 years and have seen firsthand that we lose
patients when it is a two-step process.

Substance abuse and addiction continues to be a significant health and societal problem in
Connecticut. Detoxification is often the first step for many patients and residential detoxification
beds are crucial to improving the quality and success of Connecticut’s substance abuse/addiction
services.

I look forward to hearing good news about the success of this application and appreciate your
consideration of such an im

Sincerely, &

Stephen J. Fitzsiimons

Fitzsimmons Associates
213 Robinson Street _
Wakefield, RT1 02879 ..
401.632.1333
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Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.C. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a/Mountainside Treatment Center
Dear Ms. Martone:

I am writing in support of Mountainside’s CON application. There is a clear need for more
detoxification services in the state of Connecticut. The wait time for a bed can be the difference
between life and death. It is my opinion that Mountainside will have no difficulty filling sixteen
beds, and be able to keep them full.

It would be beneficial to alcoholics and addicts seeking treatment to be able to detox and then
go right in to primary care at the same facility as this provides seamless transition in the
continuum of care. Mountainside and its staff have always sought to provide the best possible
services to substances abusers and the addition of a detox will enable them to engage and help
more people at the onset of their recovery process. it is vital that Connecticut have adeguate
detox facilities available and | strongly urge you to approve the increase in these beds at
Mountainside.

We often get calls from people or their families seeking detox and treatment. They have tried
to find help only to be told about long wait lists. It would be reassuring to have another detox
to refer these struggling families to. There is a definite need.

Mountainside is an outstanding facility, and it is heartening to know that Mountainside and its
clinical team are doing ail they can to further serve and offer help to the residents of
Connecticut.

Sincerely,

Ll

Dori C. Gay LMFT
Director ‘¢
Eden Hill Recoverv Retreat for Women

FO Box 26, Canaan, CT 06018 www.edenhilirecoveryretreat.com
860-824-7462 {p)y 860 824 5008 {1} dgay@edenhillrecoveryretreat.com



October 31, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/h/a Mountainside Treatment Center

Dear Ms. Martone:

I am writing in support of Mountainside Treatment Center's Certificate Of Need
application to have detoxification services on premises. It is my strong belief that there
is a significant need for detox services in the state of Connecticut, at a facility that | trust.
Given the fact that they already provide cutstanding clinical services, the need for
Mountainside to provide this service is obvious, and would easily fill the 16 beds for
which they are applying. Detox services at Mountainside would augment their treatment
program by providing a full, seamless continuum of services. Even as a “competitor”, |
have referred to Mountainside on numerous occasions, and they have shown time and
again, their professionalism and astute clinical acumen. 1therefore, urge approval for
Mountainside to increase number of beds to provide this critical addition to their

treatment services.

As a professional in the field for over 16 years, and being a resident of this state,
there are few places to which | would refer locally. More often than not, for in-state
referrals, Mountainside is my first choice. Certainly, the advent of detox services there
would go a long way in terms of my sending more people who suffer from the disease of

addiction to Mountainside.

~Peter k. Lazar, LCSW
Regional Oufreach Director
Elements Behavicoral Health
PO Box 1650

Fairfield, CT 06825
646-389-2508
plazar@theelements.com
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GALLANT & ASSOCIATES LLC
614 ELM STREET MONROE, CT 06468

WWW.PAULGALLANT.COM

10/31/20M1

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.0. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center

Dear Ms. Martone:

Fam Paul J. Gallant MC, LPC, BRI-IL. | have been a drug and alcohol counselor for over
twenty five years and presently work throughout the state of Connecticut - helping
families affected by addiction. This letter is intended as my support for Mountainside's
CON application. We are in dire need of detox services in CT. Presently, | use Sunrise
detox in Sterling NJ for the patients | am sending to Mountainside. It is a hardship for
some families because of the distance. At fimes | use MCCA in Danbury - but more
often than not | am told that there are “no beds” and to “call back tomorrow”.

I have had great outcomes with Mountainside. They are clinically sophisticated and treat
each patient with Kindness, dignity and respect. The greatest challenge | have faced is
their lack of detox. Treatment outcomes would improve if we had “one stop shopping” -
and were able to keep patients in the Mountainside program from admission to detox to
discharge. There would be no problem filling an additional 16 beds - addiction is a real
problem in Connecticut - as you know. | urge you to accept their CON appiication and
am availabie for further discussion at 203-521-1949

aulJ Galiant MC, LPC, BRI-II

phone 203-521-1949  fax 203-549-0654  emaii paul@paulgallant.com
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11.2.2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Dear Ms. Martone,

Detoxification is an integral part of the treatment continuum. Before a patient can be
approached with a treatment plan or be expected to take the necessary action to get
well, it is imperative that they be detoxified. Thisis a necessary first step in the
rehabilitation of a substance abuser.

The obvious goal of treatment is to put a persor in the best position to succeed. The
most difficult part of the process is getting someone who is abusing substances to
accept help. Once a person accepts help it is of the greatest urgency to get that person
to a Detox. | have seen this process fail many times due to a lack of bed availability at
the Detox level. There is a clear need across the country and specifically in the
Northeast for more facilities that provide this service.

The next step is primary treatment. In my experience, the substance abuser's chances
of success can be dramatically increased if the transition from Detox to primary
treatment is a seamless one. A seamiess transition can be best achieved when the
center administering detoxification also offers a primary treatment program. The patient
is then able to step into the primary treatment phase uninterrupted and with continuity.

Fam the founder and CEQ of Foundation House in Portland, Maine. We are an
extended care sober living facility for young men in early recovery from drugs and
alcohol, specializing in post-primary treatment. Together with Mountainside we have
worked to achieve continuity between the primary treatment and extended care phase
of the process. | have a shared vision with Mountainside on what recovery should look
like for for the alcoholic and the addict. With this shared vision we have successfully
placed many residents into our facility who have completed the Mountainside program.
We fully understand that momentum and consistency are very important componenis in
a successful treatment plan. In working with Mountainside we have been blessed with

38 Deering Street  Portiand, ME 04101 Ph: 207-771-0235 Fax; 207-771-0236
recovery@foundationhouse.net www.foundationhouse.net
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unbelievable, industry leading results. Much of our success has been attributed fo this
continuity of care between our programs. Our residents experience a seamless
transition into our environment where they are immersed in a similar culture. This same
approach would yield similar results when going from Detox to primary treatment.

With my professional experience in the recovery world and my personal experience with
Mountzinside | am able to fully support the proposed Detox facility. As stated above,
there is, without question a general need for Datox facilities on a iocal and national
level. in addition, any new Detox bed wouid be used most effectively if managed by a
treatment facility like Mountainside that will be able to offer the next step in treatment
under the same program.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns.
Seﬁg?r%j
P

Patrick Babcock
Founder / CEQ

38 Deering Street Portland, ME 0410 Ph: 207-771-0235 Fax: 207-771-0236
recovery@foundationhouse.net www. foundationhouse.net
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November 1, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Certificate of Need Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE, LLC d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center

Dear Ms. Martone,

I am writing to support the Certificate of Need application for Mountainside Treatment Center
to expand their services to include a medical detoxification unit. In my work at Fairfield University, and
in my private practice, | routinely send individuais to Mountainside Treatment Center. Mountainside
provides guality treatment to individuals who are struggling with chemicai dependency. The program
at Mountainside is very holistic in appreach, and very effective in outcome,

ft has been less than ideal when an individual needs a medical detox prior to being admitted to
Mountainside. In such a situation, arrangements must be made with another facility that provides
medical detox services, and the coordination of care among ail the providers can be challenging.

It is unfortunate that so many individuals suffer with substance abuse, especially with teenagers
and young aduits. A recent government survey shows the number of Americans using illicit drugs is
rising. “Nearly 9 percent of the U.S. population, or 22.6 million people, abused prescription drugs last
year or regularly used marijuana, cocaine, heroin, hailucinogens, or inhalants”, according to the
National Survey on Drug Use and Health released on September 2011. There is a significant need for a
detox program under the auspices of a substance abuse program such as Mountainside which enjoys a
reputation of excellence. Given the increasing need for detox treatment and Mountainside’s

reputation, W is a guarantee that their detox facility will be highly utilized and routinely af capacity.

(991

1373 North Benson Road Fairfield, 7 O8824.5145 Tel: {203) 254-4000 www. falrfield.edu



Detox is the first step in healing and recovery from addiction, For Mountainside Treatment
Center to provide an inpatient detoxification program wouid enhance their services and provide their
patients with a more coordinated experience of treatment. Mountainside has a proven track record of
professionalism, extracrdinary treatment, and outstanding outcomes. They can be trusted to
continue to provide the very best for individuals struggling with drug addiction and alcoholism. |

strongly urge you to approve Mountainside’s application for this much needed service.

Sincerely,

Susan N. Birge, Ed.D., M.A,, LP.C
Assistant Vice President/Director of Cousneling & Psychological Services
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TURNING POINT

November 1, 2011

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
Dear Ms. Marione:

| am writing in support of Mountainside Treatment Center's {Mountainside) Certificate of Need application.
The obvious need for more qualily detoxification services is overwhelming,

Over the past eight years, Turing Point has worked closely with Mountainside Treatment Center. During
this period, Mountainside has continued to prove that they are among the elite treatment centers in the
country. They have consistently operated at near to full capacity, while exuding a level of excellence in
both patient care and community relations that is often sought after but rarely achieved in our industry.

The addition of these proposed detoxifications services will not only fufill the tremendous need locally in
Connecticut, furthermore, it will strengthen Mountainside’s existing program. The “continuum of care’
philosophy provided by many nationally recognized treatment programs has proven to dramatically
increase the success rates of substance abuse patients. By effectively streamiining the treatment
process, it allows the patient to work with the same professionals throughout this process, making a
historically difficuit endeavor, which often involves moving from treatment provider to treatment provider,
less cumbersome for families and more beneficial to the patient.

As a feliow industry prefessional, | have greaf admiration for Mountainside C E.C. Terrance Dougherty
and his continued commitmeant 1o strive for better care for those in need. It is his unprecedented
dedication to this process that drives Turning Point to refer so many of our clients to Mountainside each
year. Time and time again, the feedback we receive from these clients and their families has been
overwheimingly positive,

If | can convey anything through this leiter, it is that there is not only a need for more detoxification
services, but there is a dramatic need for betlter detoxification services in Connecticut, and Mountainside’s
proven history as a premier provider of substance abuse services makes them a perfect candidate to
fulfill this need.

In summation, 1 am in full support this appiication, and can only urge you to approve it

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 203-837-2309 ext. 101,

With regard,

David Vieau

President & C.E.O.
Turning Point

www tpextendedcare.com
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Listing of Residential Detoxification Facilities in Connecticut
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Budget cuts eliminating beds for substance
abuse treatment

Connecticut Mirror, July 20, 2011
By Arielle Levin Becker

MIDDLETOWN--So far, in his 25-year career as a state employee providing addiction treatment services,
Ken Kroll has worked at two facilities that have since closed their substance abuse programs.

Connecticut Valley Hospital, where he works now, has also cut back. And on Sept. 1, it will eliminate 20
detoxification beds and 60 rehabilitation beds for men,

"It just keeps shrinking," Kroll said Wednesday.
Ken Kroll and other CVH workers rally outside Merritt Hali

The pianned closure of two rehabilitation units at the Middietown hospital's Merritt Hall, part of $1.6 billion
in cuts announced last week, represents the elimination of more than 15 percent of the intensive
substance abuse rehabilitation beds at facilities the state either operates or cantracts with.

A ratified agreement between state employee unions and the administration of Gov. Dannel P. Malloy
could avert the closures. But if the 80 rehabilitation beds are closed, the state will be left with 284
comparable beds, including 30 for women at CVH that will remain open, 21 beds at the state's Blue Hills
campus in Hartford, and 233 run by private nonprofits.

Private substance abuse treatment providers are working with the state Department of Mental Health and
Addiction Services to try to absorb the demand. The private facilities also offer detox services, but not
with the level of medical care that Merritt Hall has, sc some patients will likely go to acute care hospitals
for detox when the 20 Merritt Hall beds are closed.

"Eighty beds is a huge, huge reduction in capacity on the substance abuse side,"” said Jeff Walter,
President and CEQ of Rushford, which provides substance abuse and mental health services. Rushford
has 42 beds for intensive rehabilitation--comparable to the beds the state is cutting--and 16 detox beds.

Walter said he doesn't think the existing providers can completely absorb the need created by the
planned closures. The implications, he said, will be "pretty dire™. Instead of treatment, people will end up
in jail, emergency rooms, of hospitals that cost more.

"} hope this can be averted,” said Walter, the longtime co-chair of the council that oversees the state's
Behavioral Health Partnership, which handles mental health and substance abuse care for people in
Medicaid and other state programs.

Rughford has some beds available now--not uncommon in the summer--but Walter said it's not clear how
long that will last.

Bill Young, chief operating officer of Alcohol and Drug Recovery Centers, Inc., in Hartford, said his
agency has "some small amount” of capacity in a program that's comparable to the rehabilitation units
being closed. Overall, ADRC has 28 intensive rehabilitation beds and 35 detox beds.
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"From our perspective, we can help out a little,” Young said. "l guess the question becomes...when you
add together all the small contributions that a bunch of providers within the system can make, is that
enough?"

DMHAS is hoping that it will be. "Some providers currently have some unused capacity, which we will
utilize,” department spokesman James Siemianowski said.

Going forward, substance abuse services at state facilities will be reserved for patients with no insurance
who meet the medical necessity criteria for the services. "We are the payor of iast resort," Siemianowski
said.

DMHAS closed admissions to the intensive residential programs for men on Wedngsday, a move
intended to give current patients enough time to receive treatment and get follow-up care in the
community. Admissions to the detox program will be closed Aug. 15. Both dates were setl based on
customary lengths of stay, according to the department.

Siemnianowski said the general hospitals in the state provide detox services at the Jevel that Merritt Hall
does now, and can adapt to demand. In addition, Blue Hills has 21 detox beds at a lower level of medical
care, while community providers that contract with the department have 130.

Patty Charvat, a spokeswoman for the Connecticut Hospital Association, said hospitals are particularly
concerned about the closure of detox beds, which she said will iead people to seek services in
emergency departments that are already at or near capacity.

“We are definitely anticipating that we'll be impacted by this closure, and it will start in the ED,” she said.

During a rally outside Merritt Hall Wednesday, addiction services workers, many of whom received layoff
notices, said they hoped an agreement on a concessions deal would make the cuts and layoffs
unnecessary. Their union, the New England Health Care Employees Union, District 1199, SEIU, voted for
the concession package.

But workers warned that the closure of the substance abuse beds would mean some people would be
shut out from care altogether, with potentially dangerous consequences.

"Many patients here have been turned away by private sector agencies because of their complex issues
or inability to pay,” said Sarah Woolard-Raczka, an addiction counselor. She said the programs have at
times had waiting lists of six weeks, and that the beds slated to be eliminated serve about 1,600 people a
year.

"In the short term, it might look like money saved, but in the process, lives will be lost,” she said.

Others said that patients who can't get into Merritt Hall could wind up in emergency departments, on the
streets, or in jail,

"Or a community!" one worker shouted.
"A community near you!" someone else added.
"I they live!" a third called out.

Ann Marie Rankins, a mental heaith worker who has worked at CVH for about 12 years and received a
layoff notice, said patients have learned about the planned closure through the media and have asked
what they will do now, if they'll just be left on the streets to die.
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"Al least we can find jobs," she said. "But our patients need somewhere to go.*
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Results from the 2009
National Survey on Drug Use and Health:
Volume 1. Summary of National Findings
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This report presents the first information from the 2009 National Survey on Drug Use and Health (NSDUH), an
annual survey sponsored by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA). The
survey 1s the primary source of information on the use of illicit drugs, alcohol, and tobacco in the civilian,
noninstitutionalized population of the United States aged 12 years old or older. The survey interviews
approximately 67,500 persons each year. Unless otherwise noted, all comparisons in this report described using
terms such as "increased," "decreased," or "more than" are statistically significant at the .05 level.

Lilicit Drug Use

» In 2009, an estimated 21.8 million Americans aged 12 or older were current (past month) illicit drug
users, meaning they had used an illicit drug during the month prior to the survey interview. This
estimate represents 8.7 percent of the population aged 12 or older. Illicit drugs include
marijuana‘hashish, cocaine (including crack), heroin, hallucinogens, inhalants, or prescription-type
psychotherapeutics used nonmedically.

o The rate of current illicit drug use among persons aged 12 or older in 2009 (8.7 percent) was higher than
the rate in 2008 (8.0 percent).

e Marijuana was the most commonly used illicit drug. In 2009, there were 16.7 million past month users.
Among persons aged 12 or older, the rate of past month marijuana use and the number of users in 2009
(6.6 percent or 16.7 million) were higher than in 2008 (6.1 percent or 15.2 million) and in 2007
(5.8 percent or 14.4 million).

= In 2009, there were 1.6 million current cocaine users aged 12 or older, comprising 0.7 percent of the
population. These estimates were similar to the number and rate in 2008 (1.9 million or 0.7 percent) but
were lower than the estimates in 2006 (2.4 million or 1.0 percent).

« Hallucinogens were used in the past month by 1.3 million persons (0.5 percent) aged 12 or older in
2009, including 760,000 (0.3 percent) who had used Ecstasy. The number and percentage of Ecstasy
users increased between 2008 (555,000 or 0.2 percent) and 2009,

¢ In 2009, there were 7.0 million (2.8 percent) persons aged 12 or older who used prescription-type
psychotherapeutic drugs nonmedically in the past month. These estimates were higher than in 2008 (6.2
million or 2.5 percent), but similar to estimates in 2007 (6.9 million or 2.8 percent).

¢ The number of past month methamphetamine users decreased between 2006 and 2008, but then
increased in 2009. The numbers were 731,000 (0.3 percent) in 2006, 529,000 (0.2 percent) in 2007,
314,000 (0.1 percent) in 2008, and 502,000 (0.2 percent) in 2009.

s Among youths aged 12 to 17, the current illicit drug use rate increased from 2008 (9.3 percent) to 2009
(10.0 percent). Between 2002 and 2008, the rate declined from 11.6 t0 9.3 percent.

s The rate of current marijuana use among youths aged 12 to 17 decreased from 8.2 percent in 2002 to
6.7 percent in 2006, remained unchanged at 6.7 percent in 2007 and 2008, then increased to 7.3 percent
in 2009,

s Among youths aged 12 to 17, the rate of nonmedical use of prescription-type drugs declined from
4.0 percent in 2002 to 2.9 percent in 2008, then held steady at 3.1 percent in 2009.

s The rate of current Ecstasy use among youths aged 12 to 17 declined from 0.5 percent in 2002 to
0.3 percent in 2004, remained at that level through 2007, then increased to 0.5 percent in 2009.
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« Between 2008 and 2009, the rate of current use of illicit drugs among young adults aged 18 to 25
increased from 19.6 to 21.2 percent, driven largely by an increase in marijuana use (from 16.5 ic
18.1 percent}.

s From 2002 to 2009, there was an increase among young adults aged 18 to 23 in the rate of current
nonmedical use of prescription-type drugs (from 5.5 to 6.3 percent), driven primarily by an increase in
pain reliever misuse (from 4.1 to 4.8 percent). There were decreases in the use of cocaine (from 2.0 to
1.4 percent) and methamphetamine (from 0.6 to 0.2 percent).

» Among those aged 50 to 59, the rate of past month illicit drug use increased from 2.7 percent in 2002 to
6.2 percent in 2009. This trend partially reflects the aging into this age group of the baby boom cohort,
whose lifetime rate of illicit drug use is higher than those of older cohorts.

= Among persons aged 12 or older in 2008-2009 who used pain relievers nonmedically in the past 12
months, 55.3 percent got the drug they most recently used from a friend or relative for free. Another
17.6 percent reported they got the drug from one doctor. Only 4.8 percent got pain relievers from a drug
dealer or other stranger, and 0.4 percent bought them on the Internet. Among those who reported getting
the pain reliever from a friend or relative for free, 80.0 percent reported in a follow-up question that the
friend or relative had obtained the drugs from just one doctor,

o Among unemployed adults aged 18 or older in 2009, 17.0 percent were current illicit drug users, which
was higher than the 8.0 percent of those employed full time and 11.5 percent of those employed part
time. However, most illicit drug users were employed. Of the 19.3 million current illicit drug users aged
18 or oider in 2009, 12.9 million (66.6 percent) were employed either full or part time. The number of
unemployed illicit drug users increased from 1.3 million in 2007 to 1.8 million in 2008 and 2.5 million
in 2009, primarily because of an overall increase in the number of unemployed persons.

s In2009, 10.5 million persons aged 12 or older reported driving under the influence of illicit drugs
during the past year. This corresponds to 4.2 percent of the population aged 12 or older, which is similar
to the rate in 2008 (4.0 percent) and the rate in 2002 (4.7 percent). In 2009, the rate was highest among
young adults aged 18 to 25 (12.8 percent).

Aleohol Use

» Slightly more than half of Americans aged 12 or older reported being current drinkers of aicohol in the
2009 survey (51.9 percent). This translates to an estimated 130,6 million people, which is similar to the
2008 estimate of 129.0 million people (51.6 percent).

o In 2009, nearly one quarter (23.7 percent) of persons aged 12 or older participated in binge drinking,
This translates to about 59.6 million people. The rate in 2009 is similar to the estimate in 2008. Binge
drinking is defined as having five or more drinks on the same occasion on at least 1 day in the 30 days
prior to the survey. '

» In 2009, heavy drinking was reported by 6.8 percent of the population aged 12 or older, or 17.1 million
people. This rate was similar to the rate of heavy drinking in 2008. Heavy drinking is defined as binge
drinking on at least 5 days in the past 30 days.

e Among young adults aged 18 to 25 in 2009, the rate of binge drinking was 41.7 percent, and the rate of
heavy drinking was 13.7 percent. These rates were similar to the rates in 2008.

« The rate of current alcohol use among youths aged 12 to 17 was 14.7 percent in 2009, which is similar to
the 2008 rate (14.6 percent). Youth binge and heavy drinking rates in 2009 (8.8 and 2.1 percent) were
also similar to rates in 2008 (8.8 and 2.0 percent).

» Past month and binge drinking rates among underage persons (aged 12 to 20) declined between 2002
and 2008, but then remained unchanged between 2008 (26.4 and 17.4 percent) and 2009 (27.2 and
18.1 percent).

e Among persons aged 12 to 20, past month alcohol use rates in 2009 were 16.1 percent among Asians,
20.4 percent among blacks, 22.0 percent among American Indians or Alaska Natives, 25.1 percent
among Hispanics, 27.5 percent among those reporting two or more races, and 30.4 percent among
whites.



In 2009, 55.9 percent of current drinkers aged 12 to 20 reported that their last use of alcohol in the past
month occurred in someone else's home, and 29.2 percent reported that it had occurred in their own
home. About one third (30.3 percent) paid for the alcohol the last time they drank, including 9.0 percent
who purchased the alcohol themselves and 21.3 percent who gave money to someone else to purchase it.
Among those who did not pay for the alcohol they last drank, 37.1 percent got it from an unrelated
person aged 21 or older, 19.9 percent from another person younger than 21 years old, and 20.6 percent
from a parent, guardian, or other adult family member.

In 2009, an estimated 12.0 percent of persons aged 12 or older drove under the influence of alcohol at
least once in the past year. This percentage has dropped since 2002, when it was 14.2 percent. The rate
of driving under the influence of alcohol was highest among persons aged 21 to 25 (24.8 percent).

Tobaceo Use

In 2009, an estimated 69.7 million Americans aged 12 or older were current (past month) users of a
tobacco product. This represents 27.7 percent of the population in that age range. In addition, 58.7
million persons (23.3 percent of the population) were current cigarette smokers; 13.3 million

(5.3 percent) smoked cigars; 8.6 million (3.4 percent) used smokeless tobacco; and 2.1 million

(0.8 percent) smoked tobacco in pipes.

Between 2002 and 2009, past month use of any tobacco product decreased from 30.4 to 27.7 percent,
and past month cigarette use declined from 26.0 to 23.3 percent. Rates of past month use of cigars,
smokeless tobacco, and pipe tobacco in 2009 were similar to corresponding rates in 2002.

The rate of past month tobacco use among 12 to 17 year olds remained steady from 2008 to 2009 (11.4
and 11.6 percent, respectively). The rate of past month cigarette use among 12 to 17 year olds also
remained steady between 2008 and 2009 (9.1 and 8.9 percent, respectively) but declined since 2002
when the rate was 13.0 percent. However, past month smokeless tobacco use among youths increased
from 2.0 percent in 2002 to 2.3 percent in 2009.

Initiation of Substance Use (Incidence, or First-Time Use) within the Past 12 Months

(]

In 2009, an estimated 3.1 million persons aged 12 or older used an illicit drug for the first time within
the past 12 months. This averages to about 8,500 initiates per day and is similar to the estimate for 2008
(2.9 million). A majority of these past year illicit drug initiates reported that their first drug was
marijuana (59.1 percent). Nearly one third initiated with psychotherapeutics (28.6 percent, including
17.1 percent with pain relievers, 8.6 percent with tranquilizers, 2.0 percent with stimulants, and

1.0 percent with sedatives). A sizable proportion reported inhalants (9.8 percent) as their first illicit drug,
and a small proportion used hallucinogens as their first drug (2.1 percent).

In 2009, the illicit drug categories with the largest number of past year initiates among persons aged 12
or older were marijuana use (2.4 million) and nonmedical use of pain relievers (2.2 million). These
estimates were not significantly different from the numbers in 2008. However, the number of marijuana
initiates increased between 2007 (2.1 million) and 2009 (2.4 million).

In 2009, the average age of marijuana initiates among persons aged 12 to 49 was 17.0 years,
significantly lower than the average age of marijuana initiates in 2008 (17.8 years), but similar to that in
2002 (17.0 years).

The number of past year initiates of methamphetamine among persons aged 12 or older was 154,000 in
2009. This estimate was significantly higher than the estimate in 2008 (95,000), but lower than the
estimate in 2002 (299,000).

There was a significant increase in the number of past year initiates of Ecstasy between 2008 and 2009,
from 894,000 to 1.1 million. The estimate was 1.2 million in 2002, declined to 642,000 in 2003, and
nearly doubled between 2005 (615,000) and 2009.

The number of past year cocaine initiates declined from 1.0 million in 2002 to 617,000 in 2009. The
number of initiates of crack cocaine declined during this period from 337,000 to 94,000,



In 2009, there were 180,000 persons who used heroin for the first time within the past year, sigtgﬁa%tiy
more than the average annual number from 2002 to 2008. Estimates during those years ranged from
91,000 to 118,000 per vear,

Most (85.5 percent) of the 4.6 million past year alcohol initiates were younger than 21 at the time of
initiation.

The number of persons aged 12 or older who smoked cigarettes for the first time within the past 12
months was 2.5 million in 2009, similar to the estimate in 2008 (2.4 million), but significantly higher
than the estimate for 2002 (1.9 million). Most new smokers in 2009 were younger than 18 when they
first smoked cigarettes (58.8 percent or 1.5 million).

‘The number of persons aged 12 and older who used smokeless tobacco for the first time within the past
year increased from 951,000 in 2002 to 1.5 million in 2009.

Youth Prevention-Related Measures

Perceived risk is measured by NSDUH as the percentage reporting that there is great risk in the
substance use behavior. The percentage of youths aged 12 to 17 perceiving great risk in smoking
marijuana once or twice a week increased from 51.5 percent in 2002 to 55.0 percent in 2005, but
dropped to 49.3 percent in 2009. Between 2002 and 2008, the percentages who reported great risk in
smoking one or more packs of cigarettes per day increased from 63.1 to 69.7 percent, but in 2009 the
percentage dropped to 65.8 percent.

Almost half (49.9 percent) of youths aged 12 to 17 reported in 2009 that it would be "fairly easy" or
"very easy" for them to obtain marijuana if they wanted some. Approximately one in five reported it
would be easy to get cocaine (20.9 percent). About one in seven (13.5 percent) indicaied that LSD
would be "fairly"” or "very" easily available, and 12.9 percent reported easy availability for heroin.
Between 2002 and 2009, there were declines in the perceived availability for all four drugs.

A majority of youths aged 12 to 17 (90.5 percent) in 2009 reported that their parents would strongly
disapprove of their trying marijuana or hashish once or twice. Current marijuana use was much less
prevalent among youths who perceived strong parental disapproval for trying marijuana or hashish once
or twice than for those who did not (4.8 vs. 31.3 percent).

In 2009, almost four fifths (77.0 percent) reported having seen or heard drug or alcohol prevention
messages from sources outside of school, lower than in 2002 (83.2 percent). The percentage of school-
enrolied youths reporting that they had seen or heard prevention messages at school also declined during
this period, from 78.8 to 74.9 percent.

Substance Dependence, Abuse, and Treatment

In 2009, an estimated 22.5 million persons (8.9 percent of the population aged 12 or older) were
classified with substance dependence or abuse in the past year based on criteria specified in the
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, 4th edition (DSM-IV). Of these, 3.2 million
were classified with dependence on or abuse of both alcohol and illicit drugs, 3.9 million were
dependent on or abused illicit drugs but not alcohol, and 15.4 million were dependent on or abused
alcohol but not illicit drugs.

Between 2002 and 2009, the number of persons with substance dependence or abuse was stable (22.0
million in 2002 and 22.5 million in 2009).

The specific illicit drugs that had the highest levels of past year dependence or abuse in 2009 were
marijuana (4.3 million), pain relievers (1.9 million), and cocaine (1.1 million). The number of persons
with marijuana dependence or abuse has not changed since 2002, but the number with pain reliever
dependence or abuse has increased (from 1.5 million to 1.9 million) and the number with cocaine
dependence or abuse has declined (from 1.5 million to 1.1 million).

In 2009, adults aged 21 or older who had first used alcohol at age 14 or younger were more than & times
as likely to be classified with alcohol dependence or abuse than adults who had their first drink at age 21
or older (16.5 vs. 2.5 percent).
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« The rate of substance dependence or abuse for males aged 12 or older in 2009 was nearly twice as high
as the rate for females (11.9 vs. 6.1 percent). Among youths aged 12 to 17, however, the rate of
substance dependence or abuse among males (6.7 percent) was similar to the rate among females
(7.4 percent).

= Between 2002 and 2009, the percentage of youths aged 12 to 17 with substance dependence or abuse
declined from 8.9 to 7.0 percent.

e Treatment need is defined as having a substance use disorder or receiving treatment at a specialty
facility (hospital inpatient, drug or alcohol rehabilitation, or mental health centers) within the past 12
months. In 2009, 23.5 million persons aged 12 or older needed treatment for an illicit drug or alcohol
use problem (9.3 percent of persons aged 12 or older). Of these, 2.6 million (1.0 percent of persons aged
12 or older and 11.2 percent of those who needed treatment) received treatment at a specialty facility.
Thus, 20.9 million persons (8.3 percent of the population aged 12 or older) needed treatment for an illicit
drug or alcohol use problem but did not receive treatment at a specialty substance abuse facility in the
past year.

e Of the 20.9 million persons aged 12 or older in 2009 who were classified as needing substance use
treatment but did not receive treatment at a specialty facility in the past year, 1.1 million persons
(3.1 percent) reported that they felt they needed treatment for their illicit drug or alcohol use problem.
Of these 1.1 million persons who felt they needed treatment, 371,000 (34.9 percent) reported that they
made an effort to get treatment, and 693,000 (65.1 percent) reported making no effort to get treatment.

1. Introduction

This report presents a first look at results from the 2009 National Survey on Drug Use and Health (NSDUH), an
annual survey of the civilian, noninstitutionalized population of the United States aged 12 years old or older.
The report presents national estimates of rates of use, numbers of users, and other measures related to illicit
drugs, alcohol, and tobacco products. The report focuses on trends between 2008 and 2009 and from 2002 to
2009, as well as differences across population subgroups in 2009. Estimates from NSDUH for States and areas
within States will be presented in separate reports. NSDUH estimates related to mental health, which have been
included in national findings reports in prior years, are not included in this 2009 report. A separate report
focusing on 2009 mental health data, including co-occwrring mental and substance use disorders, will be
published later in 2G10.

1.1. Summary of NSDUH

NSDUH is the primary source of statistical information on the use of illegal drugs, alcohol, and tobacco by the
U.S. civilian, noninstitutionalized population aged 12 or older. Conducted by the Federal Government since
1971, the survey collects data by administering questionnaires to a representative sample of the population
through face-to-face interviews at the respondent's place of residence. The survey is sponsored by the Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, and is planned and managed by SAMHSA's Office of Applied Studies (OAS). Data collection and
analysis are conducted under contract with RTI International, Research Triangle Park, North Carolina.! This
section briefly describes the survey methodology; a more complete description is provided in Appendix A.

NSDUH collects information from residents of households and noninstitutional group quarters (e.g., shelters,
rooming houses, dormitories) and from civilians living on military bases. The survey excludes homeless persons
who do not use shelters, military personnel on active duty, and residents of institutional group quarters, such as
jails and hospitals. Appendix D describes surveys that cover populations outside the NSDUH target population.

From 1971 through 1998, the survey employed paper and pencil data collection. Since 1999, the NSDUH
interview has been carried out using computer-assisted interviewing (CAI). Most of the questions are
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Attachment F

Web Posting: “Blumenthal Holds Forum on Prescription
Drug Abuse”
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Blumenthal Holds Forum on Prescription Drug Abuse

The goal of the roundtable was o educate the public on the dangers of prescription drugs.
Rocky Hill Patch, October 28, 2011
By Joseph Wenzel IV

The goal of the rounditable was to educate the public on the dangers of prescription drugs.

U.8. Sen. Richard Blumenthal led a panel discussion on prescription drug abuse Friday morning at
the Connecticut Departrment of Veterans Affairs.

“This working roundtable was very important to take the next steps for stopping prescription drug
abuse, which is one of the epidemic scourges in public health,” Blumenthal said. "People need to
understand that their medicine cabinet can be a ticking time bomb. The best way to prevent a
tragedy is fo get rid of drugs no onger being used.”

In 2007, 28,000 people in the United States died from unintentional drug overdoses, mostly due to
prescription drug abuse, according to Blumenthal.

One of those in attendance was the director of the Office of National Drug Control Policy, Gil
Ketlikowske, who discussed the imporiance of getting rid of expired and unnecessary drugs.

“We learn an awful lot going around the country and from a result of listening to what people have
done and seen. lt gives us a chance 1o talk about what the administration’s position is on
prescription drugs.”

The event was held at the State Veterans Home because officials wanted o raise awarensass about
the rise in veterans’ prescription drug abuse. Blumenthal said prescription drug abuse by veterans
more than doubled from 2005 to 2008, shooting from from 5% to 12%.

“So it is definitely affecting veterans.”

Dr. Linda Schwartz, commissioner of the Connecticut Department of Veterans' Affairs, said the
department just finished a needs assessment of 650 veterans in Connecticut and found that
prescription drug abuse in the state is in line with the national average.

Officials were shocked to leamn that many of the soldiers retuming from lraq and Afghanistan are
using steroids.

"I think it is a new issue,” Schwartz said.
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Schwartz, howsver, was not surptised and said that many of them do it to keep with the “macho
image.”

Some of the veterans who really need pain medicine are forced to quit "cold turkey" because of
financial restraints.

Blumenthal added that prescription drugs are the second most commonly abused drugs, behind only
manijuana.

“Prescription drug abuse is horrendously prevalent and pernicious.”

Keriikowske said there are two problems involving young people and prescription drugs. One is that
young people do not recognize that prescription drugs are dangerous and second that they are so
“widely available.”

The key 1o stopping prescription drug abuse is education, Schwartz said.

“l think that it (education) is listed as the first piliar of the administration’s prescription drug controt
strategy,” Kerlikowske said. "And it is not just education for the patients and physicians, but also the
young people.”

Schwartz said the people who prescribe drugs need io make sure their patienis understand what
they are taking and the side effects.

People should also be aware of the dangers of mixing prescription drugs with alcohol, Schwartz
said.

"I think it is one of the things that we see here, people take something for pain and if it doesn’t work
they will have a couple of drinks. And they feel no pain.”

National Drug Take Back day is Saturday. Check with your local police department or town hall on
the location of your town's drop off. About 100,000 pounds of prescription drugs are expected to be
collected nationally, Kerlikowske said.
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DMHAS: “Collection and Evaluation of Data Related to
Substance Use, Abuse and Prevention Programs, June 2011”
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Enacted in 1999, Connecticut General Statutes
(CGS) Section 17a-451(0) requires the
Department of Mental Health and Addiction
Services (DMHAS) to establish uniform policies
and procedures for collecting, standardizing,
managing, and evaluating data related to
substance use, abuse, and addiction programs
administered by state agencies, state-funded
community-based programs, and the Judicial
Branch.

Furthermore, it is DMHAS’ responsibility to
establish and maintain a central data repository
of substance abuse services and submit a report
to the General Assembly, the Office of Policy and
Management (OPM), and the Connecticut
Alcohol and Drug Policy Council {ADPC). This
report shall include: a) client and patient
demographic information; b) trends and risk
factors associated with alcohol and drug use,
abuse, and addiction; c) effectiveness of services
based on outcome measures; and d) a statewide
cost analysis. In 2002, CGS Section 17a-451(0)
was amended, changing the submission of the
report from annual to biennial.

Since the enactment of CGS 17a-451(0), the
number of collaborating state agencies and
scope of data sharing has grown immensely.
Today eleven state departments, the Office of
Policy and Management, and the Judicial Branch
work together to share data and report the
fznd:ngs presented |n the W@ B

(2010 Bsenma! Report). This broad based
interagency collaboration has resulted in the
submission of seven previous reports (February
2000, July 2001, February 2002, December
2003, May 2004, June 2007 and December
2009).



2010 Biennial Report

receiving subsiance abuse treatment; and

SCarce resources.

Progress made over the past eleven years towards achieving the legislative directive has included:

o coniinued assessment of uniform procedures and the data interoperability of substance abuse
treatment and prevention information systems across state agencies;

e sharing data across state agencies to determine the interrelated service needs of those

e enhancing the level of interagency collaboration leading to more effeciive and efficient use of

In 2004, the first of a series of treatment outcome
and effectiveness studies was initiated.
Collaborating with the Department of Labor,
DMHAS’ Research Division and Yale University,
conducted a study of earnings two years before
and after recesvnng treatment. The Treatresny
e i > Studly was the first in
Connecticut to directly link employment wage
data with substance abuse treatment records.
This study of treatment effectiveness was
followed by a study of treatment and its effects on
recidivism as measured by re-arrest and re-
incarceration. Findings from the joint DMHAS
and Department of Correction (DOC) ':r-_ eyt
i 7 s ‘Wm@m nery @l

8 o
ll:A HE

were presented in the ZOGGBlenmal Repert In
the 2008 Biennial Report, the most ambitious yet
data Imkage study was completed—VW@ﬂdﬂﬁ%

analysis linking child welfare, ;uvemie justlce
adult substance abuse treatment; adult arrests
and mortality records. For the 2010 Biennial
Report, DMHAS collabarated with the
Department of Consumer Protection to link
patients in Connecticut’s Prescription Monitoring
Program wn:h substance abuse data The

restimert Systerr focuses on those abusing
opiate prescnptton drugs, particutarly young
aduits, the rate of transitioning to heroin, the rate
of treatment access, and the use of Medication
Assisted Therapies (e.g., Suboxone).

in 2010, work continued on population overlaps
as part of the Data Sharing Project. The
Probabilistic Population Estimation or PPE model
used in previous years was replaced with a direct
linking model. As criminal justice data (i.e.,
arrests, incarcerations and probationers) has
been routinely linked with behavioral health
(substance abuse and mental health) records,
this was thought to be a good starting point to
pilot the new method of analysis. More
comprehensive analyses may soon be performed
to better understand the characteristics of those
who are criminally involved and receiving care for
their behavioral health needs. As confidentiality
requirements are addressed, other state agency
populations will be included in the population
overlap model. This would include child welfare
neglect and abuse cases, social services
recipients (e.g. Medicaid, Temporary Family
Assistance, etc.) and others.

The cross-agency data repository ;mtiatave begun
sn September 2002, known as the Vst PR

(E SATIS) met with chalienges over the years
due to confidentiality concerns brought about by
the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA). Even more stringent
HIPAA security and privacy regulations were
recently enacted. Also, technclogical changes in
data transfer and sharing require reexamination
of how a data repository is conceptualized. Due
o these and other factors, work continues as how
best to bring together the various state-funded
and -operated addiction service data systems.
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Another area of data sharing is the Siate
Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW),
first convened in 2005 as part of DMHAS’
Strategic Prevention Framework State Incentive
Grant funded by the federal Center for Substance
Abuse Prevention (CSAP). The primary mission
of the SEOW is to contribute to the collection,
analysis, and interpretation of state- and
community-level epidemiological data, track data
trends over time, and produce information to
prioritize, focus, and strengthen prevention
efforts. For DMHAS, the SEOW provides a
broader perspective of trends in substance use
and consequences, taps into other state agency
areas of expertise and knowledge, works towards
more universally accessible information for all
stakeholders, and offers the possibility to
coliaborate on studies of common concemn. In
2007, the SEOW was expanded to incorporate
some of the reporting objectives under the
Biennial Report,

The SEOW has collected and reviewed state
level consumption and consequence data from a
variety of state and federal sources. These data
were used to develop a state epidemiological
profile which identified the top six problem
substances in the state based on their impact,
burden and susceptibility to change. This profile
formed the basis of the Comprehensive
Strategic Prevention Plan available at hitp://
wwwe chgovidmhas/lib/dmbas/prevention/clspl/
SEWprofiles09.pdf. Through the SEOW, data is
reviewed and updated biennially, and secondary
data sources are made available to regions and
municipalities to develop community profiles
which are used to plan effective prevention
strategies.

The SEOW, managed by the DMHAS Prevention
and Health Promotion Unit, is working with the
Connecticut Data Quality and Access Consortium
to pilot a web-based interactive social indicator
data repository. The website will contain
approximately 50 indicators, as well as census
data and student survey data collected locally. i
will allow users fo create tables, charts, and

maps, displaying data values (numbers,
percentages, or rates) for towns, Uniform Service
Regions (USR), or statewide, and by population
group. The site is expected to be up and running
by summer 2011.

Another important stakeholder body is the state
Child Poverty and Prevention Council

{CPPC). The Council continues to meet o
formulate strategies for action on its priority
recommendations. To advance its efforis in
reducing poverty among children in Connecticut
by 50% over ten years, the Council’s work has
focused on a process that: selected target
populations; built consensus around priority
recommendations using national experts,
documented research and proven practices;
utiized a Results Based Accountability approach
to focus resources and strategies; created an
economic model to assess which policies will
likely reduce child poverty by 50%; developed a
community mode! where selected municipalities
will work to decrease child poverty; and
promoted interagency collaborations among state
agencies to meet the child poverty and
prevention goals.

Additionally, the Council will examine sirategies
to lessen the impact of the recession on
Connecticut's children. The Council will work with
other agencies to develop and promote policies,
practices and procedures, to mitigate the iong-
term impact of economic recessions on

children; provide appropriate assistance and
resources to families to minimize the number of
children who enter poverty as a result of the
recession; and reduce the human and fiscal costs
of recessions, including foreclosures, child
hunger, family violence, school failure, youth
runaways, homelessness, and child abuse and
neglect. Child Poverty and Prevention Councit
Plans and Reports are available at the Office of
Policy and Management web site at hup://

WL CLgov/oprm/cwn/view.aspTas29978a=383456 |
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xecutive Summary

The 2010 Biennial Report, as in previous reports,
looks across the spectrum of state agency
services for the prevention, intervention, and
treatment of substance use, misuse, and abuse.
A range of information is reported using various
methods (trend analyses, data sharing and
linkage, etc.) to provide the best overview of the
current situation. Barriers to implementing a
consolidated substance abuse services
information system persist but advances in data
sharing technology afford an opportunity for
expanded collaborations.

The 2010 Biennial Report contains the
cuimination of years of work on some very
important cross-agency projects. Among them
are:

1. Adolescent Treatment Service Data

in the last decade, the Department of Children
and Families (DCF) has focused on integrating
services for substance use and mental health
disorders, including co-occurring disorders. At the
same time, the depariment has led the country in
implementing evidence-based approaches to
treating adolescent substance use. This has
included funding services with proven success
such as MultiSystemic Therapy (MST) and Multi-
Dimensional Family Therapy (MDFT). In order to
assess the effectiveness of services DCF has
implemented the Global Appraisal of individual
Needs (GAIN) standardized assessment tool.
Also the department revamped its behavioral
health services information system in 2009, now
known as Programs and Services Data
Coilection Reporting System or PSDCRS.

Together, these data provide rich detail about
those served by DCF's substance abuse
treatment providers, and document the success
of these services in improving the health and
well-being of youth and families. DCF’s entire
report can be found at:

hitp:/hwvewe clLoov/dol/ibidel!

suybstance abuse services report 2071 1.odf

Maijor findings include:

o Ulitization of adolescent substance abuse
ireatment services has more than doubled
since 2004, While the volume of clients
served in outpatient and intensive in-home
community-based programs has risen,
residential reatment has remained
unchanged.

# Ninety-eight percent of adolescents in
residential treatment and 81% of
adolescents in ouipatient treatment report
a 50% or grester reduction in problems
related to substance use from intake to
discharge.

@ Al discharge from Family Based
Recovery , 75% of children were living at
home with their biciogical pareni(s).

e The MST-Building Stronger Families pilot
study shows that children of families
receiving these services were less likely to
be placed out-of-home.

e Intensive, in-home services result in
reduced marijuana and alcohol use;
getiing into trouble at home, school or with
friends; or missed school days,

2. Adult Treatment Service Data

Using data collected through DMHAS’ substance
abuse treatment information systems a trend
analysis was conducted for SFYs 2006, 2008,
and 2010. This comprehensive data repository
contains admission and discharge information
from all community-based substance abuse
treatment programs licensed by the Department
of Public Health (DPH). Additionally, some non-
licensed, state-operated programs report to
DMHAS as well, including DMHAS operated
hospitals and Department of Correction prison-
based services. Client-level data are routinely
submitted and contain information on each
admitted or discharged client.
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As in past reports, trends in admissions are
analyzed for the primary drug reported at
admission, age of first use, demographics,
service utilization and other areas of interest.

Major findings in the SFY 2006 to 2010 analysis
include:

¢ The percent of prmary heroln admissions
continued to drop after years of steady
increases giving rise to alcohol to become,
once again, the most frequently reported
substance at admission.

¢ Treatment admissions due to other
{prescription) opiates (e.g.,OxyContin®,
Vicodin®) had the greatest! percentage
ncrease, coniinuing a seven-year trend.

& The average age at admission for those
with & primary heroin problem decreased
from SFY 2008 to 2010 by one year (34.8
to 33.1) and by 4.5 years for those
reporting other opiates.

3. Caseload Overlaps

Since 2000, the Data Sharing Project has drawn
upon data from seven state agencies and the
Judicial Branch. This project has been highly
successful in generating statistical information in
the past including trends in measuring the
overlap of state agency populations receiving
treatment.

While PPE was useful o examine general rates
of treatment access, it was very limited in its
capacity to provide insight as to the sequencing
of treatment services {e.g., before or after
incarceration) or client outcomes. For this
reason it was decided to move to linking
individual records directly across sysiems. As
DMHAS and the state’s criminal justice agencies
have established consistent and valid methods
for linking large administrative databases, this
seemed a logical starting point.

At the June 2010 meeting of the Criminal Justice
Policy Advisory Commission, a recommendation

was offered that would allow for the routine

finking of behavioral health and criminal justice

data. During SFY 2011, DMHAS and the criminal
justice partners formed a steering committee

responsible for:

o Determining the scope of data sharing.

e Overseeing the creation of essential data
doecumentation.

e Recommending a linking method that
meets state and federal confidentiality
iaws and regulations.

e Suggesting standard reporis and
developing criteria for ad hoc or special
repors.

e Assisting in the interpretation of findings.

¢ Developing and facilitating the execution
of confidentiality agreements and
approvals across all participating parties.

It is anticipated that data documentation and the
Memorandum of Understanding regarding
governance, publication and other pertinent
matters will be completed by late summer 2011.
At that time, five years of criminal justice (arrests,
incarceration and probation) and behavioral
health data will be linked for the purpose of
services research, evaluation, and cuicomes
analysis.

4. Nonmedical Use of Prescrintion
Narcotic Pain Relievers and Trestment

Today, Connecticut’s rate of non-medical use of
pain relievers is estimated to be 3.8% of the aduit
population according to the most recent National
Survey on Drug Use and Health findings. For
young adults {18-25), the rate continues o be
about two and a half times the general adult
population at 10.5%. There is evidence that many
persons who become addicted to prescription pain
relievers move to heroin as a cheaper and more
readily available alternative.
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Recent analyses of DMHAS substance abuse
treatment data indicate that the rate of primary
heroin admissions is declining. On the other
hand, persons entering treatment reporting a
primary substance problem for “other synthetic
opiates” (e.g., Vicodin® ) continues to rise. Over
the past decade, treatment options for opiate
dependent persons have expanded, particuiarly
with the introduction of buprenorphine (e.qg.,
Subutex, Suboxone). Use of buprenorphine for
both detoxification and long-term replacement
therapy has been proven to be effective and
DMHAS has encouraged the expansion of this
treatment approach for opiate dependent
persons.

For the purpose of this study, data from the
Department of Consumer Protection’s (DCP)
Connecticut Prescription Monitoring Program
(CPMP), a central database containing
prescription drug data for Schedule 1I-V controllied
medications, was linked tc DMHAS substance
abuse treatment service records. Other data
included in the linked analytic database were
adult arrests, incarceration, adult probation and
deaths.

Preliminary analyses conducted inciude the
following results:

e Many young adults (18-24) prescribed
puprenorphine were found to have a
history of criminal justice involvement
{arrested - 48%) but at a rate lowsr than
those the same age treated in licensed or
operated programs (arrested - 72%).

e Access to buprenorphine treatment for
young aduiis as been steadily increasing
over the last two years (SFYs 2009 and
2010) providing an important alternative to
Methadone Maintenance for the tfreatment
of oplate addiction.

e ldentifying cases in which guestionabie
activity such as “doctor shopping” or abuse
of prescription pain relievers requires more
careful consideration due o “false
positives”,

As this study was exploratory in nature, analyses
will continue in the coming year.

5. Frevenlion Services

Prevention Data

Over the recent past, the DMHAS Prevention and
Health Unit, in collaboration with other state
agencies, has leveraged federal funding to
enhance its capacity for obtaining, using, and
disseminating interagency data. Since 2005,
through funding from the federal Center for
Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP), DMHAS
has supported the efforts of the State
Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW)
to promote the use of substance abuse
prevention and mental health promotion data to
select effective programs and strategies. The
SEOW provides a framework to expand
interagency collaboration, promote sharing of
state agency expertise to access, interpret, and
analyze data, and explore opportunities to
collaborate on issues of common concern.

Since 2006, the SEOW has been tracking
epidemiological data on six substances (alcohol,
tobacco, marijuana, heroin, prescription drugs,
and cocaine). SEOW data were used to update
profiles for each substance, as well as suicide
and problem gambling. These profiles can be
found at: hitp://www.ct.gov/dmhas/lib/dimhas/
prevention/cispt/SEWorcfites08, odf

In SFY 2010, the SEOW began the process of
replacing its web-based data repository with a
state-of-the-art, interactive site which will enable
any registered user fo access substance abuse
prevention and mental health promotion
indicators, analyze the data, and produce high-
quality visualizations {(maps, graphs, etc.). These
reports may be used to construct community
profiles, assess service needs, prepare funding
applications, and measure the impact and
effectiveness of programs. The new site is
expected o be up and running by summer 2011.
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6. Sistewide Cost Analvsis

Overall funding for substance abuse services has
grown from SFY 1999 to SFY 2009. Some of the
growth, especially in SFYs 1999 to 2002, reflects

improved expenditure reporting. Particularly, the -

increase in {otal expenditures between SFYs
2000 and 2001 is.partially due to the identification
and inclusion of additional state agencies not
previously reporting (e.g., Department of Social
Services—Medicaid).

Overall funding for substance abuse services has
experienced a steady growth from SFY 1999 to
SFY 2007 but saw a 1.2% decrease (not adjusted
for inflation) from SFY 2007 to 2009. Looking at
SFY 2009 expenditure categories, the greatest
reduction (40.9%) from SFY 2007 was seen in
prevention services. The major contributor to this
reduction was a $13.6 million doliar oss in State
Department of Education discretionary federal
grants. Treatment expenditures saw a slight
increase (6.7%) due primarily to DSS Medicaid
expenditures while deterrence dropped by 19% in
SFY 2009 when compared to SFY 2007.
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[ll. Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment

In the last decade, the Department of Children and Families (DCF) has focused on integrating
services for substance use and mental health disorders, including co-occurring disorders. At the
same time, DCF has led the country in implementing evidence-based approaches to treating
adolescent substance use by focusing its funding on services with proven success including
MultiSystemic Therapy (MST) and Multi-Dimensional Family Therapy (MDFT), and implementing
data collection systems to evaluate the effectiveness of these treatment services. In addition, DCF is
leading the nation with approaches to caregiver substance abuse treatment and child maltreatment,
including participating in a National institute of Drug Abuse (NIDA) clinical trial for MST-Building
Stronger Families.

The data that follow are excerpts from a comprehensive service system report prepared by DCF.
The comprehensive report includes data from many of the sources the agency uses to monitor and
evaluate its services including the Global Appraisal of Individual Needs (GAIN) standardized
assessment tool, the Programs and Services Data Collection Reporting System (PSDCRS), and
model-specific quality assurance data. Together, these data provide rich details about those served
by DCF's substance abuse treatment providers, and document the success of these services in
improving the health and well-being of youth and families. DCF’s entire report can be found at;
hitp:/hwwwe . cl.gov/deilib/del/substance abuse services report 2011.pdf

Outcomes from DCF's substance abuse programs inciude:

e All of DCH's substance abuse programs average lengths of stay that meet or exceed NiDA's
recommendation of 90 days or more to obtain a therapeutic effect from reatment. (Table 1)

@ Ninety-eight percent of adolescents in residential reatment and 81% of adolescents in oulpatient
reatment report a 50% or greater reduction in problems related 1o substance use from intake 1o
discharge from treatment. (Graph 2}

e Al discharge, adolescents recelving intensive in-home services (MDFT and MST) report
reductions in: marijuana and alcohol use; getting into trouble at home, school or with friends;
missed school days; and days bothered by mental health problems, {Graph 3)

e Among the 278 caregivers discharged from Family Based Recovery (FBR), there were
statistically significant improvements in parential depression, stress and postpartum bonding with
their child{ren) (Table 2). Atdischarge from FBR, 75% of children were living at home with their
biclogical parent(s). (Table 3)

e The MST-Building Stronger Families pilot study shows that children of families receiving these
services were less likely 10 be placed out-of-home and had significanily fewer reporis of child
maltreatiment when compared 1o services as usual. (Graph 4)

e Project SAFE, a DCF and DMHAS interagency program, provides screening and treatment
referrals 10 families involved in child protective services. The rate at which those referred 1o
reatment actually enter freatment has increased dramatically in recent vears, (Graph 5)

8
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Table 1. Adol
Cutpatient & Residential Treatment
individuals Served: SFY 2010

OUTPATIENT RESIDENTIAL
Total Served 804 Total Served 102
Male 714 % Male 712%
Age of Youth Served Age of Youth Served
11-12 0.7 % 11-12 0.0 %
13-14 13.3 % 13-14 153 %
15-16 50.6 % 15-16 67.8 %
17-18 34.9 % 17-18 16.9 %
>18 0.5 % >18 0.0%
Average Length of 94 Days Average Length of 191 Days
Treatment Treatment

Source: Intake Data for SFY 2010 from PSDCRS, the Behavioral Health Partnership and the GAIN

Adequate
Length of
Treatment

Good
Qutcomes

NIDA
recommends
at least 80
days for
positive
outcomes.

Graph 1. Lifetime Substance Use Severity

Reported by Adolescents at Iniake

Residential 273

Outpatient

0% 20%

7 No Use Tl Use U} Abuse & Dependence B Physiclogical Dependence

40%

60%

80%

100%

Ninety-six
percent of
adolescents in
residential
treatment and
nearly 80% of
adolescents in
outpatient
treatment seff
report having
problems that
indicate a
substance use
diagnosis.
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Graph 2, Percent of Adolescent Treatment Clients
With Reduced Problems® at Discharge

B Outpatient Ireaiment
works:

0 Residential

160+

At discharge,
adolescents
report
significant
reductions in
problems
related to
substance
use,
frequency of
use and
associated
¥ s ienun . | g problems.
Reductions in Reductions in  Reductions in Reductions in Reductions in
Substance Substance Behavioral Family Hlegal Activity
Problems Frequency Problems Problems

[2)] 0
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£
2

Percent of Adolescent Clients

201

* Having a 50% or better reduction in substance related problems from intake to discharge.

T

In-Mome Adolescent Trealment

Graph 3. Mean Days of Family or Peer Problems Reported
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Family Based Recovery (FBR) Programs

Using an evidenced-based and preferred practice model, Family Based Recovery (FBR) Programs
provide intensive home-based services that integrate parental substance abuse treatment with family
ireatment designed to enhance parenting and parent-child attachment. The target population is
infants (birth to 24 months) who have been exposed to parental substance abuse in-uterc and/or
environmentaily from their parent(s) and their siblings; who are invoived with DCF for child abuse /
neglect issues; and who are at risk of removal from their homes.

Table 2. Changes Over Time in Parental Depression, Stress and
Postparium Bonding in FBR

Edinburgh Depres- Significant
sion Scale (N= 174) improvement
in depression,
Total Score 7.24 5.01 5.20 ** parental
Parenting Stress In- stress and
bonding were
dex- seen in Family
ShOi‘t Form (N:163) Based
Program
Total Score 68.03 61.55 5.42 ** participants
Postpartum Bonding from baseline
Questionnaire to discharge.
(N=149)
Total Score 5.79 4.37 3.35%x*
MNote: *p<05
**n<Gl
Table 3. Family Based Recovery - Child Placemen Three out of
at Discharge four children
receiving
Total Served in SFY10 164 family-based
Child Placement at Discharge services were
Home with Biological Parent 75% placed N the
. home with
Relative's Home 13% their biological
Foster Care 10% parent at time
Other 2% of discharge.
Mean Length of Stay 8.7 Months

i1
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A

MultiSystemic Therapy - Bullding Stronger Families (MST-BSF)

MST-BSF provides intensive in-home and community-based treatment for DCF families with physicai
abuse and/or neglect of a child due to parental substance abuse. The target population is children,
age 6 - 17 years, who have had maltreatment reports within the past 180 days and are at risk of
removal from the home.

Graph 4. Maltreatment Reporis After Initial Referral
To MST-BSF Therapy

18 months post-referral 24 months post-referral MST-BSF

i8 o . . . . shows
2 14 statistically
5, : significant
é‘ 12 improvements
%5 1.0 in child
= _ maltreatment
2 0.8
E when
3 0.6 compared to
5 0.4 services as
L)
= 0.2 usual.

0.0

Chiid Parent

BSF e Compariscn

Recovery Services Véummw @gs‘am (REVE)

RSVP is a voluntary program within Project SAFE (Substance Abuse Family Evaluation) for parents/
caregivers who have had a child removed by an Order of Temporary Custody (OTC) and need
support for recovery from problematic use of alcohol and/or drugs. The program is the result of a
joint coliaboration between DCF, the Judicial Branch, and DMHAS in three pilot sites: Bridgeport/
Norwalk, New Britain, and Willimantic DCF Area Offices. RSVP helps the parent/caregiver engage in
substance abuse treatment, conducts random alcohol/drug screens, supports parents in increasing
their recovery capital (e.g. housing, employment), and provides timely documentation to the courts
and DGF on the parents’ efforts and progress. As of December 2010, RSVP has served 113 families
in the three pilot locations.

When parents with substance use problems who are involved with the child welfare system have
their children removed from their homes, the children tend to have significantly longer out-of-home
placements than parents who do not have substance-related problems. The goal of RSVP is to
improve permanency by quickly engaging and retaining parents in substance abuse treatment and
support services. Early data from the court indicates more timely permanency plans for children of
parents who agree to participate in RSVP.

12
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Prolect SAFE

Project SAFE (Substance Abuse Family Evaluation) is an interagency collaboration between
DMHAS and DCF that funds evaluations and direct care services for families identified with
substance abuse treatment needs. Advanced Behaviorai Health, the Administrative Services
Organization, manages all referrals to Project SAFE, collects screening information, and manages
utilization of treatment services. Over the past several years, DCF has implemented a standardized
screening tool, the GAIN Short Screener (GAIN-88), to improve identification of substance use
among caregivers.

Graph 5. Project SAFE Referrals to Treatment
Percent Receiving Services: 8FY 2005 - 2010

100 - The "show rate”
of individuals
80+ 70.2 evaluated and
recommended
for freatment

Percent

through Project
SAFE rose 18%
between 2005
and 2010.

2005 2006 2607 2008 2009 2610

Graph 6. Heslth Insurance Status
at intake to Project SAFE: SFY 2010

Most Project
SAFE clients
have no
1Husky A insurance (55%)
# Non~-Husky while the
remainder have
O None mostly pubiic
& Other entitlement
coverage.
Private
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V. Adult Substance Abuse Treatment

Substance Abuse Treatmen! information for Adulis
Trend Analysis of Admissions for Siate Fiscal Years (BFY) 2006 - 2010

Most Connecticut substance abuse treatment programs report client information, for persons 18 and
older, to DMHAS through its data coliection system. Data are elecironically submitted to DMHAS
monthly and contain information on each admitted or discharged client. The range of client
information collected at admission includes: demographics, employment status, education level, type
of drug use, frequency of drug use, living arrangements, arrests, and other pertinent data.

All substance abuse treatment programs licensed by the Department of Public Health (DPH) are
required, by state statute, to report to DMHAS. Additionally, some non-licensed, state-operated
programs report as well, inciuding DMHAS state hospitals and DOC prison-based services. This
mandatory reporting system ensures that all publicly supported clients, i.e., those whose treatment is
paid out of public entitiement programs such as Medicaid or have no insurance, are included in the
department’s database. Excluded from the DMHAS information system are those persons who
receive services through the Veterans' Administration, general hospitals or private practitioners.

DMHAS routinely checks the data for quality, completeness and internal consistency. On-line
reports are available to treatment providers and DMHAS monitoring, evaluation and planning staff.
The depariment is in the process of finalizing “report cards” to evaluate individual service providers
as well as overall system performance. Specific trends over the three-year period include:

Client Demographics

o Whites comprised about two-thirds of all admissions while blacks accountad for aimost one in five
admissions, and Hispanics about ong in four.

e Males represented the vast majority of admissions (73%).
e The average age at admission dropped slighily between SFY 2008 and 2010 (36.7 vs. 35.9).
s Rates of admissions grew slightly for those age 25 to 34 and 45 o 64 while those age 25 to 34

dropped over the five-year pericd. {Graph 7)
Paltterns and Trends of Primary Problem Substance

@ The percent of primary heroln admissions dropped after years of steady increases giving rise to
atcohol to become, once again, the most frequently reported substance at admission. (Graph 8),

o Treatment admissions due to other {prescription) oplates (e.g., OxyContin®, Vicodin®) continued
to have the greatest perceniage increase continuing a seven-year trend. (Graph 8)

2 The average age al admission for those with a primary hercin problem decreased from SFY 2008
0 SFY 2010 by 1.7 years (34.8 10 33.1) and by 4.5 years for those reporting other opiates.
{Table 4}

14



Percent

The pattern of primary subs
years. Whites most frequently present for treatment of other opiates and alcohol followed by
coceine and then heroin. Blacks reporied primarily marijuana followed by cocaine. Latinos
reported marijuana followed by heroin as their primary problem substance. (Table 4)

Injection drug use in 5FY 2010 remained similar to past years with about one out of every five
persons admitied o treatment having injected drugs.

Type of care received by primary problem substance followed past patterns with atcohol
admissions using outpatient and deioxification; heroin - detoxification and methadone
maintenance; cocaine - oulpatient followed by residential care; and marijuana predominately
cutpatient. Overall, utilization of detoxification services dropped while and outpatient increased,
and residential rehabilitation and methadone maintenance remained urnichanged. (Table 5).

Variation in age of first use for primary problem substances reported at admission showed little
change and only minor differences between males and females. The greatest variance was seen
with clients reporiing age of first use for other opiates. In 8FYs 2006 and 2008, the average age
of first use was about 25.5 years old. In SFY 2010, the average age dropped to 23.5.

46

35

30

15

28

15

10

Graph 7. Admissions to Substance Abuse Treatment
at Time of Admission: SFYs 2006 - 2010

w1824 =-25-34
[ w3544 =-45-64
SFY 2006 SFY 2008 SFY 2016
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While the average
age (35.9) at
admission has
stayed fairly
constant, the percent
of admissions by
those 2510 34 and
45 to 64 has
increased.
Admissions for
persons age 35 to 44
experienced a drop
over the five year
period while young
adult admissions (18-
24} remained fairly
constant.
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Giraph 8. Primary Problem Substance Reported
at Thne of Admission: 8FYs 2006 - 2010

50%

The percent of clients
reporting heroin as
0% their primary drug at
admission began to
drop in SFY 2006 and
by SFY 2009 was
replaced by alcoho!
admissions as the
most reported abused
substance. Cocaine
continued a slow but
steady decrease while
marijuana had a
S , ; noticeable increase
o from SFY 2008 to SFY
0% ’ 2010. Admissions for
SFY 2006 SFY 2008 SEY 2610 other opiates (e.g.,
Vicodin® } continued a
== Alcohol =@~ Heroin =¥ Cocaime/Crack =¥ Marijuang <% Other Opiates [ Sieady upward climb.
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Graph 9. Admissions of Young Adults (18 - 24)

by Primary Dirug Reported at Admission: Admissions by young

SFY 2006 -~ SFY 2010 aduits between SFYs
2006 and 2010 indicate
that the spike in heroin
admissions seen in
SFY 2006 has declined
steadily while
marijuana had a rapid
rise in SFY 2010.
Those presenting for
treatment with
prescription opiate
abuse increased by
60%. Alcohol
admissions increased
while cocaine
admissions had a slight
increase in SFY 2008
before dropping back in
SFY 2010.
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H

16



2010 Biennial Report

Table 4. Characteristics of Substance Abuse
Treatment Clients by Primary Problem
Substance at Admission - SFY 2010

Alcohol | Heroin | Other | Cocaine | Marijuana

Opiates

% Female 247 | 279 | 351 36.2 20.3
Mesan age (years); 42.9 | 33.1 29.3 39.8 26.3
Race

% White 71.5 | 68.1 90.7 50.4 37.9

% Black 17.8 8.7 2.3 33.2 38.7

% Other 0.0 | 214 6.3 15.5 22.2
Ethnicity

% Hispanic 16.4 | 257 9.9 20.9 32.0

%Non-Hispanic; 83.6 | 74.3 | 90.1 79.1 68.0

Types of primary subsiances
reported at admission differ
by gender, ags, race, and
ethnicity. Those who enter
freatment for marijuana are
generally younger and male.
The rate of admission for a
heroin problem continued to
drop for Hispanics from a
previous high of 4 out of 10
to 1 out of 4in SFY 2010.
On the other hand, almost all
admissions for other opiates,
ifke OxyContin® , continue to
be white non-Hispanics. Of
note, the median age at
admission for heroin and
other opiates dropped
between SFYs 2008 and
2010 (34.8t0 33.1 and 33.8
to 29.3), respectively.

Table 5. Level of Service by Primary Substance
Among Substance Abuse
Treatment Admissions - SFY 2010

Alcohol |Heroin & |Cocaine [Marijuana

recent years emphasis has.
been placed on connecting

Other

Opiates
% Hospital & Residential De-| 20.4 31.6 38 0.0
tondfication
% Residential Rehabilitation | 20.S 20.2 33.2 11.6
% Qutpatient Services 49.7 14.1 62.8 88.4
% Methadone Services 0.0 30.9 0.0 0.0
% Ambulatory Detoxification 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0
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Treatment varies by type of
substance and severity.
Persons reporting heroin and
other opiates as their primary
problem substance mainly
use detoxification services
followed by methadone. In.

opiate detox clients fo
residential and methadone
services. This has resulted in
a significant decrease in the
use of costly detox services.
Persons seeking treatment for
cocaine addiction continued
to use mostly outpatient
services followed by
residential rehabilitation. The
vast majority of those
reporting marijuana as their
primary problem substance
received outpatient services.
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The Data Sharing Project, initiated in December 2000, originally drew upon data from seven state
agencies and the Judicial Branch. The project had been highly successful in generating statistical
information including trends over the years regarding shared caseloads. Analyses conducted using
a statistical mode! called Probabilistic Population Estimation or PPE was instrumental in measuring
the “population or caseload overlap” of Connecticut's substance abuse treatment system with
criminal justice, and health and human service systems. Over that 10-year period, a series of
reports were produced which included an unduplicated count of persons in each state agency
poputation, the percent and number of overlap (i.e., those receiving treatment who were aiso
arrested, incarcerated, on probation, receiving welfare benefits, involved in child protective services,
efc.) and demographics such as age, race and gender.

While PPE was useful in examining general rates of treatment access, it was very limited in its
capacity to provide insight as to the sequencing of treatment services (e.g., before or after
incarceration) or client outcomes. For this reason it was decided to move to linking individual
records directly across systems. As DMHAS and the state's criminal justice agencies had
established consistent and valid methods for linking large administrative databases, this seemed a
logical starting point. At the June 2010 meeting of the Criminal Justice Policy Advisory Commission,
a recommendation was offered that would allow for the routine linking of behavioral health and
criminal justice data. Essentially, the concept was to match individual records across separate
databases using person identifiers such as first/last name, Social Security number, date of birth and
gender. Once linked, all person identifiers would be removed although a random identifier for each
person would be assigned so that analyses could be conducted at the person level. This random
unique identifier would not be tied to any person identifiers and therefore would pose no risk for
redisclosure. This linking method has been exhaustively scrutinized by a number of state agency
review boards and academic human subject committees, and has been validated as complying with
state and federal confidentiality laws and regulations.

During SFY 2011, DMHAS and the criminal justice partners (DOC, DPS and JB-CSSD) formed a
steering committee responsible for the following components of the data linking project:

¢ Determining the scope of data sharing (j.e., which data elements to be included, frequency of
updates, etc.).

e Overseeing the creation of data dictionaries and other esseniial documentation.

e Recommending a linking method that meets state and federal confidentiality laws and
regutations.

e Suggesting standard reports and developing criteria for ad hoc or special reports.
e Assisting in the interpretation of findings.

e Developing and facilitating the execution of confidentiality agreements and approvals across
all participating parties.

Itis anticipated that data documentation and the Memorandum of Understanding regarding
governance, publication and other pertinent matters will be completed by late summer 2011. At that
time, five years of criminal justice (arrests, incarceration and probationer) and behavioral health data
will be linked for the purpose of services research, evaluation and outcomes analysis.
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Vi. Data Linkage Study

Nonmedical Use of Narcotic Prescriptions and lts Affect on Connecticut's
Substance Abuse Treatment System

Today, Connecticut’s rate of non-medical use of pain relievers is estimated to be 3.8% of the adult
population, according to the most recent National Survey on Drug Use and Health findings, For
young adults (18-25), the rate continues to be about two and a half times the general adult
population at 10.5%. There is evidence that many persons who become addicted to prescription pain
relievers move 1o heroin as a cheaper and more readily available alternative. An analysis conducted by
the Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services (DMHAS) for the 2006 Biennial Report
highlighted this trend. Treatment admission data for SFY 2003 through SFY 2006 indicted that the
number of young adults (18-24) entering treatment for a primary heroin and other opiate (e.g.,
Vicodin® , Oxycontin) addiction grew significantly. In fact, heroin admissions increased by 18% over
the four-year period for young adults.

More recent analyses (see Graph 98) of DMHAS substance abuse treatment data indicate that the
rate of primary heroin admissions is declining. On the other hand, persons entering treatment
reporting a primary substance problem for “other synthetic opiates” (e.g., Vicodin® ) continues fo
rise. Over the past decade, treatment options for opiate dependent persons have expanded
particutarly with the introduction of buprenorphine (e.g., Subutex, Suboxone). Use of buprenorphine
for both detoxification and long-term replacement therapy has been proven to be effective and
DMHAS has encouraged the expansion of this treatment approach for opiate dependent persons.

For the purpose of this study, data from the Department of Consumer Protection’s (DCP)
Connecticut Prescription Monitoring Program (CPMP), a central database containing prescription
drug data for Schedule -V controlled medications, was linked to DMHAS substance abuse
treatment service records. Two years of prescription records (8FYs 2009 and 2010) and three years
(SFYs 2008, 2009 and 2010) of DMHAS substance abuse treatment were included. Additionally
data sets for SFYs 2008-2010 included:

Department of Correction (DOC) inmate files,

Department of Public Safety arrest records,

Judicial Branch-Court Support Services Division adult probation data, and
Department of Public Health death records.

® @ @ &

Study objectives included:

¢ Understanding the scope of nonmedical use of opiate prescription drugs;

e Assessing the association between abuse of narcotic prescription drugs and initiation of
heroin for those individuals seeking treatment;

¢ Determining whether there has been a change in Medication Assisted Therapies (e.g.,
methadone maintenance and/or buprenorphine) in response to opiate abuse; and

& Analyzing outcomes such as successful treatment completion, criminal justice involvement
(i.e., arrest or incarceration) or death.
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B

Access (o Allemative Treatment for Oplate Addiction

Nationai data, such as the Drug Abuse Warning Network or DAWN which captures emergency
department (ED) visits, show that the nonmedical use of narcotic pain relievers 1o be a growing
problem. in a June 2010 DAWN report, trends ED visits for 2004 to 2008 found the two most
frequently mentioned prescription pain relievers to be oxycodone and hydrocodone. The rate of
reported ED visiis for these two narcolic pain relievers grew by 152% and 123%, respectively.

DMHAS has supported expanded access to buprenorphine as a way of addressing opiate
dependence, whether from heroin or nonmedical use of prescription pain relievers. This has been
especially important for increasing the likelinood of young adults to seek treatment. The CPMP
linkage study affords an opportunity to examine how physician-based buprenorphine treatment has
assisted in expanding access. There were limitations in the CPMP data set as there were fewer
person identifiers upon which to link records. This in turn lowered the possible number of valid
matches and as such the following analyses are more than likely an underreporting.

Graph 10 shows the overlap of young adults prescribed buprenorphine and their rate of
involvement with the criminal justice system or treatment. Compared with all young adults treated
for substance abuse in licensed facilities, those receiving buprenorphine were less likely to have
been arrested (48% vs. 72%), on probation (14% vs. 40%) or incarcerated ( 14% vs. 42%).

el i SRR e e
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Graph 10. Young Aduits (18-24) Prescribed Buprenorphine
Rate of Involved with the Criminal Justice System
or Receiving Substance Abuse Treatment

SFYs 2009 - 2010
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400% +—— buprenorphine, had
a history of arrest.
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percent had been
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100% 4 adult probation.
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) . treatment in the
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Access to Allermative Treatment for Oplate Addiction

One of the aims of the prescription drug linkage study was to determine whether there has been a
change in response {o treating individuals with an opiate dependence. Graph 11 displays, by month,
the rate of young adults prescribed buprenorphine (i.e., Suboxone or Subutex) compared to the rate
of admission of young adults reporting a primary heroin or other opiate substance problem at time of
admission to a licensed or state operated treatment facility. As can be seen from the graph, the
number individuals admitted to all treatment facilities with a primary opiate addiction has declined
slightly over the 24-month period while the rate of those prescribed buprenorphine has continued to
increase.

This appears to be a promising sign that access fo an alternative treatment approach (i.e.,
buprenorphine) to opiate addiction is growing in recognition and access.

Giraph 11. Young Adulis (18-24)
Prescribed Buprenorphine’ ve. Heroin and
Other Opiate Admissions by Monthly Volume:
SFY 2009 and 2010
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prevalence rate (NSDUH) of persons age 18-24 sstimated to be using narcotic pain relievers for
nionmedical purposes.
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Another objective of the prescription drug linkage study was to assess the association between the
abuse of narcotic prescription drugs and initiation of heroin for those individual seeking treatment.
There has been much anecdotal evidence that individuals who become addicted to narcotic pain
relievers often seek out heroin as an inexpensive and readily available substitute.

As part of that analysis, it had been of interest to identify those cases in which there was
questionable activity stich as “doctor shopping” or abuse of prescription pain relievers. This type of
analysis proved difficuit as identifying multiple prescribers or pharmacies, overlapping prescriptions
or increased dosage can produce “false positives”. DMHAS and DCP will continue to explore other
methods to identify those cases in the linked data set which might be recognized as nonmedical
users of prescription drugs.

In an attempt to begun to understand the scope on this phenomenon, persons treated for an opiate
addiction (either heroin or other opiate} in a state operated or licensed addictions treatment program
in SFY 2010 and having been prescribed a narcotic pain reliever were analyzed. Of ali (11,670)
persons admitted to treatment in SFY 2010 who reported a primary opiate problem, 47.7% (5,565)
had a history of narcotic prescription use prior to admission. About 35% (1,934) of the 5,565 might
be identified as having questionable use of narcotic pain relievers. This is based upon criteria used
in a 2009 study of Massachusetts’ prescription drug monitering system (Pharmacoepidemiology and
Drug Safety: 2010: 19: 115-123) . In that study, a cut-point for identifying individuals having
questionable nonmedical use of narcotic pain relievers was - having 4 or more prescribers and 4 or
more pharmacies. Graph 12 shows the distribution by gender, race and ethnicity of those thought to

80
70
60

Percent of Persons

Or Other Opiates as a Primary Substance

have been engaged in questionable use of prescription pain relievers and admitted to treatment,

-

Graph 12. SFY 2010 Treatment Admissions Reporting Heroin

Who Had a History of Prescribed Narcotic Pain Rellevers
and ldentified as Having Gueslionable Nonmedical Use
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Of those admitted
to treatment for
opiate abuse or
dependence and
having a
“questionable”
history of narcotic
pain reliever use,
there was little
difference in
gender.
Regarding race
and ethnicity most
were white, with
Hispanics the
next highest.
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Wi, Prevention Data

Over the past two years, the DMHAS Prevention and Health Unit, in collaboration with other state
agencies, has leveraged federal funding to enhance its capacity for obtaining, using, and
disseminating interagency data. Since 2005, through funding from the federal Center for Substance
Abuse Prevention (CSAP), DMHAS has supported the efforts of the State Epidemiological Outcomes
Workgroup (SEOW) to promote the use of substance abuse prevention and mental health promotion
data to select effective programs and strategies. The SEOW provides a framework to expand
interagency collaboration, promote sharing of state agency experiise to access, interpret, and use
data, and explore opportunities to collaborate on issues of common concern.

In SFY 2010, the SEOW began the process of replacing its web-based data repository with a state-
of-the-an, interactive site which will enable any registered user {o access substance abuse
prevention and mental health promotion indicators, anatyze the data, and produce high-quality
visualizations (maps, graphs, eic.). These reports may be used to construct community profiles,
assess sefvice needs, prepare funding applications, and measure the impact and effectiveness of
programs. The new site is expected to be up and running by summer 2011.

e

Partnerships for Success Initiative

In September 20092, DMHAS was awarded a Partnerships For Success grant from CSAP. The goal
of this grant program is to achieve a quantifiable decline in statewide substance abuse rates,
incorporating an incentive award to grantees that have reached or exceeded their prevention
performance targets. The statewide prevention priority to be addressed is underage drinking. The
performance target approved by CSAP was a reduction in the incidence of past month drinking
among 12 1o 20 years olds as measured by the 2006-2007 National Survey on Drug Use and Health,
from 19.6% to 14.9% - a 4.7 percentage point reduction from the baseline rate.

State Epidemiologic Profile

Since 2006, the SEOW has been tracking epidemiological data on six substarices (alcohol, tobacco,
marijuana, heroin, prescription drugs, and cocaine). SEOW data were used o update profiles for
each substance, as well as suicide and problem gambling. These profiles can be found at: hitp://
www ct.gov/dimhas/lib/dmhas/prevention/cispl/SEWprofiles(9,.pdf

Trends in Alcohol and Other Drug Use in Connecticut

in 2010, Regional Action Councils reconvened subregional Community Needs Assessment
Workgroups, for a third time since 2006, to assist in development of community profiles with regard
to alcohol and other substances. The Community Workgroups were charged with examining the use
and consequences of alcohol, tobacco, marijuana, nonmedical use of prescription drugs, heroin, and
cocaine in their geographic areas. Afier analyzing the data, each substance was scored on a scale
of one to five (low to high) for magnitude (burden/brsadth of problem); impact (depth of problem
across dimensions), and changeability (amenable o change through evidence-based strategies).
Also suicide and probiem gambling data were incorporated for the first time in SFY 2010. Overall,
alcohol use especially underage drinking was ranked as the highest priority Nonmedical use of
prescription drugs rose to be ranked third in SFY 2010. (Graph 13).
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Graph 13. 2010 Community Needs Assessment
Workgroups Priority Problem Ranking

Prescription Drug Misuse
Tobacco

Suicide

Heroin

Problem Gambling
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Cocaine
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13.3%
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In the 2010 community
assessment of alcohol
and other drugs, alcohol
and marijuana continued
to be in the top ranking
for use and
consequences. Of
particular notice is the
ranking of prescription
drug misuse in the top
three substances. As
was noted in earlier in
this report, nonmedical
use of prescription drugs
is @ growing concern
requiring coordinated
efforts at public
awareness, prevention
and treatment.
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Graph 14. Trends in Past 30 Day Alcohol Use and Binge Dri n%mgw T
High School Students Connecticut vs. US
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Findings from the
Connecticut Schoacl
Health Surveys show a
decline in past month
alcohol use and binge
drinking among high
schooi students.
Although Connecticut’s
prevalence of binge
drinking was above the
national average in
2005, it deciined in 2007
and now (2009) equals
the national average.
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Graph 15. Past 30 Day Alcohol Use Among Age Groups
Connecticut vs, US: NSDUH 2003-2008
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Graph 16. Past Year Non-Medical Use of Pain Relievers
Among Age Groups - Conneclicut vs. US:
NSDUH 2004 - 200
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Graph 17. Past 30-Day Use of Marjuana
Armong Age Groups - Connecticut vs. US
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Current {past 30
days) use of
marijuana has
declined since
200472005 but the
decrease has
varied by age
group. Certainly
the most impressive
drop has been with
young adulis (18-
125} havinga 17%

- reduction. While
those 26 and older
showed a general
decline, the rate in
2007/2008 has
begun to reverse
and is on the rise.

Graph 18. Programs and Strategies
DMHAS Funded Prevention Programs
SFYs 2008 - 2010
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Reflecting a shift in
federal priorities toward
changing the
community
environment, DMHAS
refocused its prevention
services to information
dissemination (public
education/media
campaigns) and
environmental
strategies (alcohol
compliance checks,
sobriety checkpoints,
and enforcement of the
social host liability law).
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Community Readiness Assessment

For the third time in four years, a key informant survey was administered 1o a broad range of
community key informants, including youth 18 or under, parents, business community, media,
school, youth-serving organization, law enforcement agencies, religious or fraternal organizations,
civic and volunteer groups, healthcare professionals, State, local, or tribal governmental agencies
with expertise in the field of substance abuse (if applicable, the State authority with primary authority
for substance abuse), and other organizations involved in substance abuse prevention and mental
heaith promotion. Beyond identifying the drug that most concerned them, which across all age
groups was aicohol, they provided their perspective on the importance of data in planning,
budgeting, resource development and other critical functions.

Survey resuits indicated that key informants believed that data relevant for substance abuse
prevention were most likely to be used for strategic planning and evaluation purposes. There was an
overail spike in uses of data from 2006 to 2008 when community grantees had just completed their
needs assessments and were implementing their strategic plans.

Overall, there were fewer barriers to data collection reported from 2006 to 2010 (Table 6). The
greatest reductions in barriers to data collection were the following: community not seeing the need
for data, people to collect data, and funds for a community needs assessment. Although not asked
in 2006, uncertainty about what data to collect, lack of cooperation among stakeholders, and
concermns about negative publicity were less likely to be reported between 2010 than in 2008.

Table 6. Barriers to Data Collection in the Community
DMHAS Community Readiness Assessment
2006, 2008, and 2010

Barrier to Data Collection 2006 12008 |2010
(%) (%) (%)

Community does not see need {o collect data 29 256 21
Lack of uhderstanding of how to collect data 17 26 18
Lack of understanding of how to use data 19 30 24
Lack of trained volunteers/personnel to facilitate data collection 41 39 31
Lack of trained volunieers/personnel to interpret data 31 34 30
Lack of community leadership support to collect data 29 34 25
Unable to gain permission to collect data from students, local government 23 30 23
personnel

Lack of funds to facilitate a comprehensive community needs assessment 58 57 48
process

Uncertainty about which data to coilect N/A 29 15
Lack of cooperation among stakeholders N/A 24 19
Concerns about negative publicity N/A 43 36
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Vil Statewide Cost Analysis

information regarding the funding, directly or indirecily, of substance abuse services was gathered
from ten state agencies and the Judicial Branch, the Office of Policy Management (OPM) and the
Board of Pardons and Paroles. Expenditures reported include all funding sources - state, federal, or
other. Clearly, the most easily defined service is substance abuse treatment. Treatment dollars, for
the most part, are readily identified and reported. Less clearly defined are intervention activities, as
the range of services in this category often overlap into prevention services. Therefore, intervention
funds are included within prevention expenditures. While CGS Section 17a-451(o) speaks about
prevention and education services separately, for purposes of expenditure reporting, these two
activities have been combined, as education is one segment of the prevention continuum. The
category "deterrence”, aiso a component of prevention services, was added in the 2007 Arrwal
Rieport but is reported separately as law enforcement activities. A summary of statewide service
expenditures by state fiscal years is shown in Table 7, while substance abuse service expenditures
by agency for SFY 2009 are included in Table 8.

Overall funding for substance abuse services has experienced a steady growth from SFY 1999 to
SFY 2007 but saw a 1.2% decrease (not adjusted for inflation) from SFY 2007 to 2009. Some of the
growth over the decade, especially in SFYs 1899 to 2002, reflects improved expenditure reporting,
for instance the inclusion of Medicaid expenditures. Also, improvements in reporting methodologies
has made trend analysis of expenditures difficult. Looking at SFY 2009 expenditure categories, the
greatest reduction (40.9%) from SFY 2007 was seen in prevention services. The major contributor to
this reduction was a $13.6 million dollar loss in State Department of Education discretionary federal
grants. Treatment expenditures saw a slight increase (6.7%) due primarily to DSS Medicaid
expenditures while deterrence dropped by 18.7% in SFY 2009 when compared to SFY 2007.

Table 7. Substance Abuse Service Expenditures
By State Fiscal Years {Dollars in Millions)

Services Prevention® Deterrence Treatment Totai

SFY 1996™ $53.70 NA $136.80 $180.50
SFY 2000 $54.80 $6.80 $152.40 $214.00
SFY 2001 $55.90 $8.50 $153.20 $217.60
SFY 20027 $53.60 $7.60 $175.00 $236.20
SFY 2003 $47.25 $8.93 $182.94 $239.12
SFY 2005 $59.21 $5.76 $202.04 $267.01
SFY 2007 $43.05 $7.49 $233.12 $283.66
SFY 2009 $25.45 6.09 $248.69 $280.23

*

Includes substance abuse education, prevention, and intervention expenditures.

**  Expenditures for SFY 1999 updated to include Board of Pardons and Paroles and Department of Veteran Affairs,
but missing Department of Public Health,

* Expenditures for SFY 2000 updated to include Department of Veteran Affairs’ treatment expenditures.

* Department of Social Services treatment expenditures, omitted in previous SFYSs, reported for SFY 2002 forward.
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Table 8. Substance Abuse Service Expenditures

By Agency State - Fiscal Year 2009

. Agency | Prevention | Deterrence | Treatment | Tomal .
DMHAS' $11,657,735 $0 $155,717,125 $167,374,860
JUDICIAL-CSSD? $6,515,788 $0 $9,006,298 $15,522,086
DCF® $1,587,518 $0 $19,068,456 $20,655,974
DV $0) $0 $0 $0
DOC® 30 $0 $13,363,604 $13,363,604
DOT® $1,281,195  $2,602,950) $0 $3,884,145
DPH’ $1,589,305 $0 $0 $1,589,305
DPS $80,9320  $3,484,107 $0 $3,565,039
Dss? $0 30, $51,135,498 $51,135,498
DVA $0 $0 $396,337 $396,337
OPM® $419,260 $0 $0 $419 260
PAROLE " $0 $0) $0 $0
SDE _$2 322177 S0 S0 $2322177
TOTAL $25 453 910 $6,087,057 $248,687,318 $280,228,285

'Note that expenditures do not include administration doliars.

*Expenditures for SFY 2007 and Iater refiect improved reporting and includes only those services that are
directly related to substance abuse prevention and treatment. Since 2005 accounting and data collection
has improved and CSED is now able to identify expenditures devoted to either treatment or prevention.
*Decreases in expenditures for SFY 2009 are due to a shift in funding priorities from residential to
ev:denced based and promising practices of in-home Family treatment.

Cl;ents pay directly for retraining, education and required substance abuse treatment programs.
*Department of Correction expenditures include Parole and Community Services outpatient and residential
drug treatment expenditures.

SAll figures are based upon a Federal Fiscal Year (i.e., October 1 through September 30). Prevention costs
from the Transportation Safety Section include staff saianes public information and education initiatives
and media. Deterrence costs reflect law enforcement initiatives.

7'SFY 2009 expenditures reflect adjustments in existing and new programs involved in tobacco cessation.
|Increase in SFY 2009 expenditures were due to enhanced Medicaid fee and caseload growth.
Expenditures include claims paid for Inpatient and Qutpatient substance abuse treaiment. Excludes
pharmacy, transportation and crossover claims.

SEY 2009 expenditures are lower than in past reporting as several programs previously included no fonger
addr@ss substance abuse.

Treatment expenditures include services provided to offenders in Parole and Community Services, see
DOC expenditures.
"Decrease in FY 2009 expenditures due to the loss of federal competitive grant funding.
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X, Update on DMHAS Three-Year
Strategic Substance Abuse
Treatment Plan

Background

On June 28, 2008 the Connecticut state DMHAS, in partnership with Department of Social
legislature passed, and the governor signed, Services (DSS), converted the State

Public Act 09-149 which required DMHAS, to Administered General Assistance program to the
address in its three-year strategic substance Medicaid Low Income Adult population, taking
abuse treatment plan, a number of specific advantage of provisions within the health reform
elements for consideration, such as data act that afford broader coverage. An Alternative
management, continuum of care and use of Benefit Package, an option under the act, is
evidence based practices. This was offered as being explored to both assure quality and

part of observations and recommendations manage costs.

provided by the Program Review and
lnvestlgat:on Committee’s report entitled Stiate The DMHAS Commissioner was an active
istance Treatment for Adiels pubiished  participant on the Health Reform Cabinet chaired
in December 2008. by the Department of Public Health’s Deputy
Commissioner.

The DMHAS strategic report was issued in

September 2010 based upon focus groups held  Health reform is a standing agenda item in the
with key stakeholders, consultation with advisory Commissioner’s Executive Group where a

bodies such as the Alcohol and Drug Policy number of demonstration projects were

Council and the Criminal Justice Policy Advisory  considered. As a result, a workgroup which
Commission, and the department’s biennial includes Depariment of Social Services staff is
priority setting process. Below is an update on exploring the advantages of the Medicaid state
the status of strategies and activities as plan option - 1915(i) Home and Community
developed in the DMHAS three-year substance  Based Services - that was significantly modified
abuse treatment plan. under the Affordable Care Act.

Strategy #1 Strategy #3

Supported Recovery Housing Services provide
safe, sober housing and case management to
support residents in securing treatment and other
community based recovery supports. There are
currently 11 providers in 21 locations providing  These services are available throughout the state
158 beds with supports. This includes arecent  funded by the federal Center on Substance
acquisition in March 2010 of two new providers  Abuse Treatment grant program known as,

and 18 additional beds. DMHAS is currently Access to Recovery lil. The ability to expand
assessing gaps in need for a potential re- provision of these services will be addressed by
procurement, pending resource availability. the Commissioner’s Executive Group described
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in Strategy #2. Shifting resources in support o
these efforts may be a consideration as greater
numbers of the population obtain coverage for
clinical services through the Patient Protection
and Affordable Care Act.

Sirategy #4

DMHAS is in the process of completing the
Assessment Guidance document and will
complete that by July 2011, as scheduled. The
plan is to disseminate this document 1o state-
operated and DMHAS-funded agencies via their
CEOs and to the various Learning Communities
DMHAS regularly convenes; these learing
communities or collaboratives include program
managers and directors. Agencies will be asked
to review their biopsychosocial assessment
documents and compare them to the DMHAS
Assessment Guidance document. Changes to
assessment forms may be needed so that they
are more consistent with DMHAS’ assessment
expectations.

Strategy #5

DMHAS recently created an Evidence-Based and
Best Practices Governance Commitiee, chaired
by the DMHAS Commissioner, This committee
met for the first time in January 2011 and
continues to meet on a quarterly basis. The
Governance Group consists of 17 members in
addition to the Commissioner and includes other
executive staff and Office of the Commissicner
Division Directors. Over the past year DMHAS
also designated a new position in the Office of
the Commissioner's Community Services
Division: Manager of Evidence-Based and Best
Practices Implementation. This manager
provides staff support to the Governance Group
as described above along with other functions
that promote the adoption of evidence based
practices. A behaviorat health specialist has

been reassigned to woik for thi
enhancing the infrastructure necessary to
complete the multiple and varied goals involving
evidence-based and best practices in the
DMHAS system.

The first product from the Governance Committee
is the DMHAS Catalog of Evidence-Based & Best
Practices. This catalog includes twenty practices
that are currently being implemented in various
ways through the DMHAS system of care, across
six Divisions. The catalog describes each
practice, the number of programs involved, the
implementation process being used, training and
technical assistance currently available, a
summary of fidelity measurement being used,
and a summary of how client outcomes are being
measured. A version of this catalog will be
disseminated to providers in 2011. A project plan
for next steps to more fully implement several of
these practices is being developed with
compietion anticipated by June 30, 2011.

Strategy #6

6.1 Young Aduits

DMHAS is exploring expansion of
buprenocrphine (i.e., Suboxone or Subutex)
services through its recently awarded federal
grant - Access to Recovery (ATR) lIl. The
goals of the federal grant include: 1)
facilitating individual choice and promoting
multiple pathways to recovery; 2) expanding
access to a comprehensive array of clinical
substance use treatment and recovery
suppoert services; and (3) ensuring each client
receives an assessment for the appropriate
level of services. All services are designed to
assist recipients remain engaged in their
recovery while promoting independence,
employment, self-sufficiency, and stability.

When fully operational, ATR HI| will support the
administration or prescription of
buprenorphine for persons having an opicid
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addiction. Clinical supports will include an
assessment of needs, recovery planning,
individuatl and group therapy, and relapse
preventicn strategies.

Suboxone has been suggested as an
alternative to methadone for individuals
uncomfortable with or unable to atiend a
icensed Chemical Maintenance Treatment
Facility (i.e., a methadone clinic) for daily
dispensing and receipt of the methadone. In
order to allow for great access to Suboxone,
DMHAS collaborated with the Department of
Public Health (DPH) to enact changes in
Connecticut’s licensing regulations.

Currently, DPH regulations prohibit
dispensing of Suboxone in substance abuse
outpatient clinics not licensed as Chemical
Maintenance Treatment Facilities. DPH has
subrmitied a bill which wouid allow for the
prescribing of Suboxone in licensed
substance abuse outpatient clinics (other than
Chemical Maintenance Treatment Facilities)
while final licensing reguiations are codified.
This change would greatly increase access to
Suboxone providing an alternative treatment
option to methadene. Individuals having an
opiate dependence, whether to heroin or
narcotic painkillers, would be able to receive
treatment within their own communities. This
is especially true of young adults who are
struggling with a short-term addiction 1o heroin
or painkillers who would be able to access
care through an outpatient program instead of
a methadone clinic.

6.2 Criminal Justice Populations

The first Proposed Outcome for Goal 6.2
indicates that “DMHAS, C88D, and the Office
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of tha Pubhc Defender w;l! meet to dnscuss the
possibility of developing a pilot program
modeled after DMHAS’ Jail Diversion
Program” for “unsentenced inmates who
have an unplanned release from custody by
the counts.” Such a pilot program would
include an increase in services and service
capacity, requiring additional resources. Due
o uncertainty of the State Fiscal Year 2012
state budget, DMHAS is delaying plan
development for this pilot until available
resources are determined. Until then, existing
collaborations to address Goal 6.2 will
continue as follows:

e The DMHAS Jail Diversion program, in
collaboration with CSSD and the Office of
the Public Defender, is present in every
arraignment court and currentiy serves a
significant number of individuals with
substance use disorders.

& A significant portion of individuals
currently served by DMHAS have open
cases in criminal court.

e As described in the 2011 Criminal Justice
Policy Advisory Commission (CJPAC)
Reentry and Risk Assessment Strategy,
DMHAS and CSSD will continue to
operate programs that connect
unsentenced inmates to community
treatment upon planned release from
custody by the court.

Criminal Justice and Behavioral Mealth Data
Linkage Initiative

At the June 8, 2010 meeting of the CJPAC,
members endorsed a proposal 1o link
individual records across the criminal justice
{arrests, incarcerations, adult probation and
parole) and behavioral health popuiations. In
December 2011 a Steering Committee with
representation from the Judicial Branch
(CSSD), Department of Correction,
Department of Public Safety, Department of
Mental Health and Addiction Services, Board
of Pardons and Paroles, and Office of Policy
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and Management was formed. The University than just provsder websste mforma’uen and |

of Connecticut Health Center's Correctional seek out actual “performance” information.
Managed Health Care division was later As previously described, DMHAS has been
added. developing provider performance reporis

intended for use by consumers, providers and
The current plan is for each party to contribute other interested parties for assessing
five years of data (e.g., SFY 2006 - SFY 2010) treatment effectiveness as weil as customer

which will be linked and de-identified. satisfaction. Although customer satisfaction
Currently, work continues on drafting a reports are currently avaitable, provider
Memorandum of Understanding that will performance reports are still under
include the data sharing protocol, . development. DMHAS will make performance
confidentiality and governance, and reports avaiiable on its provider locator
documentation of data sets (e.g. data website once available.
dictionaries). Intensive work is underway on
data documentation and conventions {(e.g., Finally, DMHAS is in the process of
racefethnicity values). It is anticipated that al developing a “Facebook” page for users of
work will be concluded by summer 2011 at this form of social media. The intent is not to
which time the data linkage wili be completed. replicate what already exists on the DMHAS
website but rather to help individuals know
6.3 Treatment Availability for Public when and how to access the website for
Information treatment service resources, as well as other
relevant information pertaining to behavioral
Upon further review of the Connecticut health.

Clearinghouse’s Behavioral Health Service
Directory, DMHAS decided that improvements 6.4 Demand for Services
could be implemented on the department’s
website that would result in a more consumer-
and public- friendly application for locating
treatment resources.

As a result of some of these changes already
being implemented, a consumer or member of
the public can now be linked directly to a
specific provider website, once the geographic
preference has been indicated. By accessing
the provider's web site through a hyperiink, an See Strategy 8.1
interested individual will be able to develop

his/her own impression of the freatment Strategy #7
provider and perhaps be motivated to make
that first contact to enter treatment. DMHAS
website users are given the opportunity to
offer feedback about the use of the website
though the “Contact Us” imk

¢k The Preliminary Action Steps of Goal 7 indicates
that “DMHAS will convene an interagency
workgroup to develop a detailed Action Plan to
W@bm&st@&’@g&&&fdtbEC?.US” establish a comprehensive substance abuse
service system for reentry.” Such an Action Plan
Some individuals may be interested in more  would include an increase in services and service

33




2070 Biennial Report

Due to uncertainty of the State Fiscal Year 2012
state budget, DMHAS is delaying development of
an Action Plan until available resources are
determined. Until then, existing collaborations to
address Goal 7 wili continue as follows.

e DMHAS, DOC, CSSD, and BOPP have
constant format and informal
communications to manage referral of
discharging inmates to the community
service system.

e DMHAS, DOC, and CSSD will continue to
operate reentry programs as discussed
earlier.

e State agencies and the Judicial Branch will
continue to develop and implement the
reentry strategy as discussed in the 2011
CJPAC Reentry and Risk Assessment
Strategy.

Strategy #8

Address data menagement and policy orovisions
of P.A. 09-149

DMHAS implemented two new data systems in
SFY 2010. The Avatar system collects client level
data from state-operated facilities. This system
was implemented in mid-May 2010. The DMHAS
Data Performance system (DDaP) captures client
tevel data from private not-for-profit providers.
DDaP was implemented in mid-July 2010. Since
these systems were implemented, DMHAS has
been designing and developing a data
warehouse that standardizes and stores the data
form both of information systems. The data
warehouse became fully operational in March
2011 and the department is now aggressively
working to enhance its reporting capacities.
These new data systems have greatly enhanced
the department’s ability to collect and report on
client outcomes. Providers have been required to
report outcome data on an episodic basis (every
6 months) and early efforts post-implementation
have focused on reporting compliance and data
guality. The sections that follow highlight the
status of certain measures.
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DMHAS’ new data systems now capture the
date a person requested service from a
substance abuse agency. DMHAS is using
this data element to track how long it takes
before a client receives their first service at
that agency. Providers are now entering this
data on all new admissions. Providers are
required to report the services they provide so
DMHAS is able to determine the time it takes
to receive treatment. Now that all data has
been consclidated in the data warehouse, a
report is being developed that will measure
the “time to treatment”. DMHAS will be able to
report a full year’s data in the next (2012)
Biennial Report.

DMHAS issued provider Quality Reports
throughout SFY 2010 to all DMHAS providers.
These “report cards” compared how providers
were performing in relation to DMHAS
benchmarks and statewide averages for key
indicators such as abstinence, arrests, stable
living, employment, use of 12 step programs,
and treatment completions. The reports also
show utilization rates and the degree to which
consumers are satisfied with their services.
Report cards were issued on a quarterly basis
during SFY 2010.

Currently these Quality Reports are being
redesigned to be more consumer-friendly.
DMHAS expects to pilot a new version of the
report cards in summer 2011 and to begin
posting report cards to the web in fall 2011.
Since the report cards were implemented,
data quality has significantly improved as
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providers have focused more attention on between the state agencies.
data reporting and data quality. The report

cards will be available to consumers and will

help inform them as they make decisions

regarding where to access treatment. These

reports are also being used to target

monitoring and corrective actions by

identifying providers with poor performance.

8.2 Percentage of clients who should receive a
freatment episode of ninety days or greater

off

The data warehouse now provides DMHAS
with the ability to monitor the length of time
that a consumer is exposed to substance
abuse treatment. Substance abuse literature
suggests that patients with treatment
exposures in excess of 90 days have
improved outcomes. DMHAS is now
developing a report that shows the number
and percentage of DMHAS clients that have
continuous ireatment episodes of 90 days or
more. The report definitions and
specifications are being developed and
DMHAS will be able to report on a full vear's
worth of data in the next Biennial Report.

8.3 Department polides and ouldelines
concerning recovery oriented reatment

it is in the best interest of DMHAS to wait for
a decision from DPH regarding their position
on oral swabs for drug testing before the
department proceeds with a policy or
position. This issue will be covered under
DPH’s licensing of substance abuse
treatment agencies. it will be addressed as
an adjustment io DPH's technical bill
authorizing this testing and then in DPH
proposed regulation revisions that are being
developed. DMHAS will revisit this issue in a
timeframe that will ensure consistency
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Substance Abuse and Mental Health Issues At-A-Glance

Prevalence of lllicit Substance® and
Alcohol Use

the National Survey on Drug Use and Health

(NSDUH]) generates state-level estimares for 23

measures of substance use and mental health problems
for four age groups: the entire state population over the age of
12 (12+); individuals age 12 to 17; individuals age 18 to 25;
and individuals age 26 and older {26+). Since state estimates
of substance use and abuse were first generated using the
combined 20022003 NSDUH:s and continuing until the
most recent state estimates based on the combined 2005-2006
surveys, Connecticut has been among the 10 States with the
highest® rates on the following measures (Table 1).

Table 1: Connecticut is among those States with the highest rates
of the following:

Measure Age Groups
Past Month IHlicit Drug Use 18-25

Past Month Marijuana Use 18-25

Past Year Marijuana Use 18-25

Past Month Alcohol Use 12+, 18-25, 26+

It is worth noting that on the three measures of drug use in
Table 1, the rates of use for all age groups have been above the
national averages for all survey years.

This s one in o series of brief stote-based reports infended 1o give The reader

Ty U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES @ quidi_overv‘\ew 0{'su§35‘\‘_an;e abuse and F‘T’IBHTO‘ health issues within o single
/ Substance Abuse and Meal Hezlth Ssrvices Administrstion Stcte. The data derive principally from national surveys conducied by the
ﬁ ww, 5amNSa. gov Office of Applied Studies, @ component of the Substonce Abuse and Mental
%::2 Health Services Administrodion SAMHSA) Sources for oll date vsed in this
reporf appear ot the end.



Abuse and Dependence

Questions in NSDUH are used to classify persons as
being dependent on or abusing specific substances
based on criteria specified in the Diagnostic and
Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, 4th Edition
(DSM-IV) (American Psychiatric Association,
1994).

On the global measure of any abuse of or
dependence on illicit drugs or alcohol, Connecticut’s
rates have generally been at or above the national
rates. In 2004-2005 and again in 20052006, the
rates for those individuals age 18 to 25 were among
the highest in the country. It is also worth noting
that over the same time period, the rates of alcohol
dependence or abuse and illicit drug dependence

or abuse were among the highest in the country for
this age group (Charts 1 and 2).

Substance Abuse Treatment
Facilities

According to the National Survey of Substance
Abuse Treatment Services {N-SSATS)? annual
surveys, the number of treatment facilities in
Connecticut has declined from 247 in 2002, to 209
facilities in 2006. In 2006, the majority of facilities
(179 of 209, or 86%) were private nonprofit. An
additional 12 facilities were private for-profit.

One facility in Connecticut is owned/operated

by a Tribal government. The decrease in facilities
between 2002 and 2006 is primarily accounted for
by the loss of 32 private for-profit facilities and 10
private nonprofit facilities.

Although facilities may offer more than one
modality of care, 152 facilities (73%) offer some
form of outpatient care. An additional 66 facilities
offer some form of residential care, and 41 facilities
offer an opioid treatment program. In addition,

Chart 1 Past Year Alechiol Dependence or Abuse Among individuals
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171 physicians and 46 treatrnent programs are
certified to provide buprenorphine treatment.

In 2006, 73 percent of all facilities (153}

received some form of Federal, State, county,

or local government funds, and 142 facilities

had agreements or contracts with managed care
organizations for the provision of substance abuse
treatment services,
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State treatment data for substance use disorders

are dlerived from two primary sources—an annual
one-day census in N-SSAT'S and annual treatment
admissions from the Treatment Episode Data

Set (TEDS).* In the 2006 N-SSATS survey,
Connecticut showed a one-day total of 22,809
clients in treatment, the majority of whom (20,896
or 92 %) were in outpatient treatment. Of the total
number of clients in treatment on this date, 645
(3%) were under the age of 18.

Since 1992, there has been a steady increase in the
annual number of admissions to treatment; from
39,000 in 1992, to 46,000 in 2006 (the most recent
year for which data are available). Chart 3 shows
the percent of admissions mentioning particular
drugs or alcohol at the time of admission.” Across
the last 15 years, there has been a steady decline

in the number of admissions mentioning alcohol
as a substance of abuse; from 78 percent of all
admissions in 1992, to 50 percent in 2006. At the
same time, the number of admissions mentioning
heroin has nearly doubled; from 22 percent in
1992, to 41 percent in 2006.

Across the years for which TEDS data are available,
Connecticut has seen a substantial shift in the
constellation of problems present at treatment
admission. Alcohol-only admissions have declined
from over 36 percent of all admissions in 1992, to
just over 16 percent in 2006. Concomirtantly, drug-
only admissions have increased from 22 percent in

1992, to 45 percent in 2006 (Chart 4).

Chart 3
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Unmet Need for Treatment

NSDUH defines unmert treatment as an
individual who meets the criteria for abuse of or
dependence on illicit drugs or alcohol according
to the DSM-TV, but who has not received
specialty treatment for chat problem in the past
year. Connecticut’s rates of unmet need for drug
treatment have generally remained at or above the
national average. In 2005-2006, the rates of this
unmet need for individuals age 12 to 17 and for

those age 18 to 25 were among the highest in the
Nation (Chart 3).

Similarly, rates of unmet treatment need for
alcohol use have generally remained at or above
the national rates for all age groups, but especially
tor those individuals age 18 to 25 {Chart 6).

Tobacco Use and Synar
Compliance

Connecticut’s rates for past month cigarette use
and tobacco products use for the State population
age 12 and older for all survey years have been
among the lowest in the country. However, the
rates for underage smokers have generally been at
or above the national rate (Chart 7).

SAMHSA monitors the rate of retailer violation of
tobacco sales through the Agency’s responsibilities
under the Synar Amendment. Rerailer violation
rates represent the percentage of inspected retail
outlets that sold tobacco products to a customer
under the age of 18. Connecticut’s rates of
noncompliance with the Synar Amendment have
been consistently below the target rate since 1998

{Chart 8).

Chart 5
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Mental Health Indicators
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For individuals age 18 and older, the National
Survey on Drug Use and Health measures past
year serious psychological distress (SPD3), an overall
indicator of nonspecific psychological distress.
Since 2004-2005, the survey also measures past
year major depressive episodes (MDE) for the
same age group and for individuals age 12 to 17.
MDE is defined as a period of 2 weeks or longer
during which there is either depressed mood or
loss of interest or pleasure, and at least four other
symptoms that reflect a change in functioning
such as problems with sleep, eating, energy,
concentration, and self-image.

In the 20052006 analyses, Connecticut’s rates on
both of these measures for the State population age

18 and older were among the lowest in the country
{Charts 9 and 10},
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SAMHSA Funding

SAMHSA funds two basic types of grants—block and formula grants allocated to states and territories by
formula, and discretionary grants which are awarded competitively (Charr 11). Each of the three SAMHSA
Centers {Center for Substance Abuse Treatment {CSAT], the Center for Substance Abuse Prevention {CSAP]
and the Center for Mental Health Services [CMHS]) has a unique discretionary portfolio.

20042065

$16.9 million Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant
$5.5 million Mental Health Block and Formula Grants

$22.8 million SAMHSA Discretionary Program Funds

$45.2 million Total SAMHSA Funding

CMHS: State Mental health Data Infrastructure Grant; Children’s Services; Youth Violence Prevention:

Jail Diversion; Emergency Response (mental health); Statewide Family Networks; AIDS Targeted Capacity
Expansion—=Service Capacity Building in Minority Communities; Past-Traumatic Stress Disorder in

Children.

CSAP: Drug-Free Communities (20 grants); Drug-Free Communities—Mentoring; HIV/AIDS Sesvices;
Strategic Prevention Framework State Incentive Grang; State Incentive Cooperative Agreement; Ecstasy and
Other Club Drug Prevention.

CSAT: Targeted Capacity Expansion-—HIV/AIDS; Targeted Capacity Expansion—Innovative Treatment;
Strengthening Communities—Youth; Access to Recovery; Recovery Community Suppore—Recovery; State
Data Infrastructure; Effective Adolescent Treatment; and SAMHSA Dissertation Grants.

2005-2006:

$16.7 million Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant
$5.5 million Mental Health Block and Formula Grants

$28.8 million SAMHSA Discretionary Program Funds

$51.0 million Total SAMHSA Funding

CMHS: Children’s Services; Child Mental Health Initiative; Mental Health Transformation State Incentive
Grant; Co-Occurring State Incentive Grant; State Mental health Data Infrastructure Grang; Jail Diversion;
Statewide Family Networks; AIDS Targeted Capacity Expansion—Service Capacity Building in Minority
Communities; Community Treatment and Service Centers of the National Child Traumatic Stress Initiative;
National Child Traumaric Stress Initiative— Treatment and Service Adaptation Centets.

CSAP: Drug-Free Communities (18 grants); Drug-Free Communities—Mentoring; Strategic Prevention
Framework State Incentive Grant; Stare Incentive Cooperative Agreement; HIV Strategic Prevention
Framework; Ecstasy and Other Club Drug Prevention.

CSAT: Targeted Capacity Expansion—HIV/AIDS; Targeted Capacity Expansion~Innovative Treatment;
Swrengthening Communities—Youth; Access to Recovery; SAMHSA Conference Grant; State Adolescent
Substance Abuse Treatment; Targeted Capacity Expansion-—Campus Screening/ Colleges and Universities;
Recovery Community Suppore—Recovery; Homeless Addictions Treatment; and Effective Adolescent Trearment.
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2006-2007:

$16.7 million Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant
$5.5 million Mental Health Block and Formula Grants

$28.8 million SAMHSA Discretionary Program Funds

$51.0 million Total SAMHSA Funding

CMHS: Child Mental Health Initiative; Mental Health Transformation State Incentive Grant; Co-
Occurring State Incentive Grang; State Mental health Data Infrastructure Grant; Youth Suicide Prevention
and Early Intervention; Childrens Services; Jail Diversion; Statewide Family Netwotk; Campus Suicide;
Community Treatment and Service Centers of the National Child Traumartic Stress Initiative; National
Child Traumatic Stress Initiative—Treatment and Service Adaptation Centers,

CSAP: Drug-Free Communities (15 grants); Drug-Free Communities—Mentoring; Stravegic Prevention
Framework State Incentive Grant; State Incentive Cooperative Agreement; HIV Strategic Prevention Framework.,

CSAT: Targeted Capacity Expansion—HIV/AIDS; Targeted Capacity Expansion-—Innovative Treatment
Strengthening Communities—Youth; Access to Recovery; SAMHSA Conference Grant; State Adolescent
Substance Abuse Treatment; Targeted Capacity Expansion—Campus Screening/ Colleges and Universities;
Recovery Community Support—Recovery; Homeless Addictions Treatment; and Fffective Adolescent Treatment.

2007-2008:

$16.7 million Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant
$5.5 million Mental Health Block and Formula Grants

$28.8 million SAMHSA Discretionary Program Funds

$51.0 million Total SAMHSA Funding

CMHS: Child Mental Health Initiative; State Mental health Data Infrastructure Grang; Seclusion and
Restraing; Mental Health Transformation State Incentive Grant; Statewide Consumer Network; Co-
Occurring State Incentive Grant; Youth Suicide Prevention and Early Intervention; Jail Diversion; Statewide
Family Networks; Community Treatment and

Service Centers of the National Child Traumatic SAMHSA Grant Funds (in miltions)
Conngcticut

Chart 11
Stress Initiative; National Child Traumatic Stress

Initiative— lreatment and Service Adapration
Centers.

CSAP: Drug-Free Communities (17 grants);
Drug-Free CommunitiesMMentoring; Strategic
Prevention Framework State Incentive Grant,

CSAT: State Adolescent Substance Abuse Trearment;
Access to Recovery; Targeted Capacity Expansion—
HIV/AIDS; Targeted Capacity Expansion—Campus
Screening/ Colleges and Universities; and Homeless
Addictions Treatment,
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For Further Information

Prevalence Data

A comprehensive listing of all NSDUH

measures for every state is available at:
http://oas.samhsa.gov/statesList.chon.

Also, information about variations in incidence and
prevalence of the NSDUH substance abuse and
mental health measures within each state is available
at: httpi//oas.sambsa.gov/metro.htm.

Data Sources

Grant Awards: http://www.samhsa.gov/
statesummaries/index.aspx.

Facility Data: Nartional Survey of Substance Abuse
Treatment Services (N-SSATS)—2006 available at:
heep:/fwww.dasis.samhsa.gov.

Treatment Data: Treatment Episode Data Set—
Concatenated File——available from the Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Data Archive:

heep:/ www.icpsrumich.edu/SDA/SAMHDA.

P NSDUH defines Hlicit drugs to include marljuana/hashish, cocoine
{intluding crack), inhatants, hellucinogens, heroin, or prescription-ype
drugs used nonmedically. Nonmedical use is defined as use not
prescribed for the rezpondent by a physician or used only for the
experience or feeling the drugls) caused. Nonmedicat use of any
prescripfion-fype pain reliever, sedative, stimulont, or iranquilizer does
rot include over-the-counter drugs. MNonmedical use of stimulanis
includes methampheiomine use.

“ Startes are assigned 1o one of five groups according to their ranking
{quintiles}. Because there are 51 areas to be ranked for each measure,
the middle quintile was assigned 11 areas and the remaining groups 10
euch. Throughout this document “highest” refers to the 10 siotes in the
first quintile and “lowest” fo those in the fifth quintile.

FN-SSATS is designed to collect information from off facilities in the United
States, both public and private, that provide substance abuse ireatment.
N-33ATS does not collact information from the foliowing three types of
facilifies: ron-treaiment hathway houses; jails, prisons, or other organizations
that freat incarcerated dients exdlusively; and sofo prodifioners,

“TEDS is an admissions-based system, and TEDS admissions do not
represent individuals. For example, an individua! admitied to frestment
twice within a calendar year would be counted as two admissions,

STEDS collects information on up to three substances of abuse that
lead 1o the freaiment episode, These are not necessarily 6 complete
enumeration of all drugs used ot the fime of admissien,

Wright, D. & Sathe, N. (2005) State Estimates of
Substance Use from the 2002-2003 National Surveys
on Drug Use and Health (DHHS Publication No.
SMA-05-3989, NSDUH Series H-26) Rockville,
MD: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Office of Applied Studies.

Wright, D. & Sathe, N. (2006) State Estimates of
Substance Use from the 2003-2004 National Surveys
on Drug Use and Health (DHHS Publication No.
SMA-006-4142, NSDUH Series H-29) Rockville,
MD: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Office of Applied Studies.

Wright, D, Sathe, N. & Spagnola, K. (2007)

State Estimates of Substance Use from the 2004-2005
National Surveys on Drug Use and Health (DHHS
Publication No. SMA-07-4235, NSDUH Series
H-31) Rockville, MD: Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration, Office of Applied
Studies.

Hughes, A, & Sathe, N. (2008) State Estimates of
Substance Use from the 2005-2006 National Surveys
on Drug Use and Health (DHHS Publication No.
SMA-08-4311, NSDUH Series H-33) Rockville,
MD: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Office of Applied Studies.
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CONNECTICUT

State Profile and Underage Drinking Facts™

State Population 3,501,252
Population-Ages 12-26 425,060
Percentage
Ages §2-20
Past-Month Alcohol Use 32.3
Past-Month Binge Alcohol Use 23.5
Ages 12-14
Past-Month Alcohol Use 5.9
Past-Month Binge Alcohol Use 2.8
Ages 15-17
Past-Month Alcohol Use 32.3
Past-Month Binge Alcohol Use 22.5
Ages 18-20
Pasi-Month Alcohoi Use 60.7
Past-Month Binge Alcohol Use 47.1

Number
137,060
100,000

8,000
4,600

51,000
35,000

78,000
61,000

* Overall population information is taken from 2008 population estimates based on 2000 Census data. Data about

the portion of each State’s population comprised of 12- to 2(-year-olds is averaged from 2003, 2006, 2007, and

2008 NSDUHSs (SAMHSA, CBHSQ, NSDUH, special data analysis, 2009), as are facts about past-month alcohol

use and binge use. Additional references for data in this section can be found in Appendix C.
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Alcohol-Attributable Deaths (under 21) 34
Years of Potential Life Lost (under 21) 1.976
Traffic Fatalities, 15- to 20-Year-Old Drivers With BAC >.61  22.0 g

Laws Addressing Minors in Possession of Alcohol

Underage Possession of Alechol

Possession is prohibited WITH THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTION(S):
e Private location OR
¢ Parent/guardian presence and consent OR
e Spouse

Underage Consumption of Alcohol
Consumption is not explicitly prohibited.

Internal Possession by Minors
Internal possession is not explicitly prohibited,

Underage Purchase of Alechol
Purchase is prohibited, but youth may purchase for law enforcement purposes.

False Identification for Obtaining Alcohol
Provision(s) targeting minors
e Use of a false ID to obtain alcohol is a criminal offense
e Penalty may include driver’s license suspension through a judicial procedure

Pravisions targeting retailers
« State provides incentives to retailers who use electronic scanners that read birth dates and
other information digitally encoded on valid identification cards
¢ Licenses for drivers under age 21 are easily distinguishable from those for drivers age 21
and older
e Specific affirmative defense: the retailer inspected the false ID and came to a reasonable
conclusion based on its appearance that it was valid

Laws Targeting Underage Drinking and Driving

BAC Limits: Youth (Underage Operators of Noncommercial Motor Vehicles)

e  BAC limit: 0.02
¢ BAC at or above the limit is per se (conclusive) evidence of a violation
e  Applies to drivers under age 21
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Loss of Driving Privileges for Alcohol Violations by Minors (“Use/Lose Laws”)
Use/lose penalties apply to minors under age 21,

Type(s) of violation leading to driver’s license suspension, revocation, or denial:
s Underage possession

Authority to impose driver’s license sanction:
¢ Mandatory

Length of suspension/revocation:
o 30 days

Graduated Driver’s License

Learner stage
e Minimum entry age: 16
e Minimum learner stage period:
e 4 months —with driver education
e 6 months—without driver education
e Minimum supervised driving requirement: 40 hours

Infermediate stage

e  Minimum age: 16 years, 4 months

e Unsupervised night driving:
e Prohibited after 11 p.m.
e Primary enforcement of the night driving rule

¢ Passenger restrictions exist:
& First 6 months—Ilimited to one parent, instructor, or licensed adult who is at least 20

years old

» Second 6 months—expands to inchude immediate family
e Primary enforcement of the passenger restriction rule

License stage
e Minimum age to lift restrictions: 18
= Passenger restrictions expire 12 months after issuance of intermediate license
s Unsupervised night driving restrictions remain until age 18

Notes: A parent or guardian of any applicant less than 18 to whom a learner’s permit is issued
on or after August 1, 2008 shall attend twe hours of safe driving instruction with such applicant.

Laws Targeting Alcohol Suppliers

Furnishing of Alcohol to Minors

Furnishing is prohibited WITH THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTION(S):
e Parent/guardian OR
¢  Spouse
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Responsible Beverage Service
No beverage service training requirement.
Minimum Ages for Off-Premises Sellers
e Beer 15
e Wine 18
e Spirits 18
Minimum Ages for On-Premises Sellers

e Beer 1§ for both servers and bartenders
e Wine 18 for both servers and bartenders
» Spirits 18 for both servers and bartenders

Bram Shop Liability
Statutory liability exists subject to the following conditions:
o Limitations on damages: $250,000.

¢ Limitations on elements/standards of proof: Minor must be intoxicated at time of service.
e The courts recognize common law dram shop liability

Notes: A common law cause of action is not precluded by the dram shop statute. Under common
law, the limitations on damages may be avoided.

Social Host Liability
There is no statutory liability. The courts recognize common law social host liability.

Host Party Laws
Social host law is not specificaily limited to underage drinking parties:

Action by underage guest that triggers violation: possession

Property type(s) covered by liability law: residence, outdoor, other

Standard for hosts’ knowledge or action regarding the party: KNOWLEDGE—host must
have actual knowledge of the occurrence

Preventive action by the host negates the violation (see note)

Exception(s): family

Notes: The “preventive action” provision in Connecticut requires the prosecution io prove that
the host failed to take preventive action.
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Direct Sales/Shipments From Producers to Consumers

Direct sales/shipments from producers to consumers are permitted for wine with the following
restrictions:

Age verification requirements
# Producer must verify age of purchaser: ID check is required at some point prior to delivery.

¢ Common carrier must verify age of recipient: ID check required at some point prior to
delivery.

State approval/permit requirements
e Producer/shipper must obtain State permit
e  State must approve common carrier

Reporting requirements
e Producer must record/report purchaser’s name
s Common carrier must record/report purchaser’s name

Shipping label sitatement
¢ Contains alcohol
e Recipient must be 21

Keg Registration
Keg definition: 6 gallons or more.

Prohibited
e Possessing an unregistered, unlabeled keg—max. fine/jail: $500 or 3 mounths

Purchaser information collected

+ Purchaser’s name and address: verified by a government-issued ID

e Warning information to purchaser: passive—no purchaser action required
¢  Deposit: not required

# Provisions do not specifically address disposable kegs
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Additional Publications in Support of Proposal

Attachment |

« New England High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area: Drug

Market Analysis 2010

e Article: “Prescription Drug Abuse in Danbury Area is

Stealing Lives”







U.S. Department of Justice
Mationa! Drug Intellipence Center

2010-R0813-018 June 2010

This assessment is an outgrowth of a partnership between the NDIC and HIDTA Program for preparation
of annual assessments depicting drug trafficking trends and developments in MIDTA Program areas. The
report has been coordinated with the HIDTA, is limited in scope to HIDTA jurisdictional boundaries, and

draws upon a wide variety of scurces within those boundaries. '
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trategic Drug Threat Developments

Opioid abuse (particularly the abuse of South American (SA) heroin and diverted controlled prescription opioids)
is the primary drug concern in the New England High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (NE HIDTA) region. Opioid
abuse is associated with high levels of violent ¢rime and property crime and accounts for 70 percent of all illicit drug-
related treatment admissions and the majority of poison center hotline calls, hospital visits, and drug-related deaths in
the region,

The following are significant strategic drug threat developments in the NE HIDTA region:

= Mexican drug trafficking organizations (DTOs) have increased their operations in the NE HIDTA region and are
now significant wholesale suppliers of SA heroin, cocaine, and marijuana, which they transport directly from
their sources of supply in Atlanta, Georgia; Houston and Dallas, Texas; and the Southwest Border area to New
England.

« Cocaine is readily available in the region; wholesale prices in most areas are elevated compared with those
reported prior {o cocaine shortages that occurred in New England in 2007,

* Violence among street gangs is increasing in the NE HIDTA region, particularly violence associated with dis-
putes over drug territories. Street gangs are expanding their drug distribution operations into rural and suburban
areas.

« [llicit drug abusers in the NE HIDTA region are unwittingly being exposed to illicit substances that they do not
intend to ingest, primarily through their use of synthetic drug tablets/capsules (often represented as MDMA
(3,4-methylenedioxymethamphetamine, alsc known as ecstasy)), which are increasingly available in the region.
The harmful adulterant levamisole has also been identified in cocaine samples from the region,
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Figure 1. New England High intensily Drug Trafficking Area
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HIDTA Overview

The NE HIDTA region comprises 13 counties in six states, including six counties in Massachusetts, three in Con-
necticut, and one each in Maine, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, and Vermont. Approximately 8.8 million residents,
6] percent of the New England population, reside in the HIDTA region. Drug distribution within the NE HIDTA
region is centered in two primary hubs located in the Hartford, Connecticut/Springfield, Massachusetts, and Lowell/
Lawrence, Massachusetts, areas. The Providerce, Rhode Island/Fall River, Massachusetts, area is a secondary distri-
bution center that supplies Cape Cod. Boston, Massachusetts, New England’s largest city, is predominantly a consum-
er market supplied primarily by distributors operating from Lawrence, Lowell, and the New York City metropolitan
area. The approximate wholesale value of drugs seized under NE HIDTA initiatives in 2009 was $42.1 million,

New England is a global financial center that is linked electronically to world markets as well as (o numerous domestic
and foreign markets in drug source and transit zones. High per capita income levels make New England an attractive area
for drug traffickers. During 2009, per capita income among New England states was among the highest in the nation.
Connecticut ranked first, Massachusetts ranked third, and New Hampshire ranked eighth nationally in this category.

Drug Threat Overview

Opioids—-including heroin (primarily SA heroin) and diverted controlled prescription drugs (CPDs) such as Oxy-
Contin and Percocet (both oxycodone} and Vicodin (hydrocodoney—collectively pose the greatest drug threat to the
NE HIDTA region. According to National Drug Intelligence Center (NDIC) National Drug Threat Survey (NDTS)
2010 data, 173 of the 276 state and local law enforcement agency respondents in the NE HIDTA region identify either
heroin or CPDs as the greatest drug threat in their jurisdictions. Law enforcement officials seized 21.7 kilograms of
heroin, 13,200 dosage units of OxyContin, 4,502 dosage units of Percocet, and 1,316 dosage units of oxycodone in
conjunction with NE HIDTA initiatives in 2009. (See Table | on page 5.)

Figure 2. Greatest Drug Threat to the New England HIDTA Region as Reported
by State and Local Law Enforcement Agencies, by Number of Respondents

ice Mo Response
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Source: Nafional Drug Threat Survey 2010,

a. NDTS data for 2010 cited in this report are as of March 1, 2010, NDTS data cited are raw, unweighted responses from federal, state, and local
taw erforcement agencies soficited through either NDIC or the Office of National Drug Control Policy (ONDCP) HIDTA program. Data cited
may include responses from agencies that are part of the NDTS 2010 national sample and/or agencies that are part of HIDTA solicitation lists.,
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Controlled prescription opioid abusers are fueling the heroin abuse problem in the region: an increasing number of
these abusers are switching to heroin because of its higher potency and greater affordability. Heroin prices at the street
level decreased substantiafly in some primary drug distribution centers in 2009 and remain low. Heroin abuse now
encompasses a broad cross section of society, including chronic abusers in urban areas, residents of suburban and rural
commugities, and young adults and teenagers who switched to heroin after initially abusing CPDs.

Cocaine, parficularly crack, is commonly abused in some parts of the region, mainly inner-city neighborhoods in
Boston, Springfield, and Providence, and in Bridgeport, Hartford, and New Haven, Connecticut. Crack availability has
also expanded in many northern New England cities, such as Burlington, Manchester, and Portland, largely because
Alfrican American and Hispanic criminal groups and street gangs from southern New England states and New York
City have increased distribution in those areas,

Marijuana abuse is pervasive throughout the NE HIDTA region, with commercial-grade Mexican marijuana and
high-potency marijuana from regional domestic and Canadian suppliers readily available. New England law enforce-
ment officials believe that marijuana seizure amounts will decline as local production increases in the near future,
mainly as a result of the Massachusetts law passed in November 2008 that decriminalized the possession of small
amounts of marijuana, and state-enacted medical marijuana programs in Maine, Rhode Island, and Vermont.

MBMA is widely available, and distribution and abuse are increasing in some areas of the region. Some synthetic drug
tablets available in the NE HIDTA region are represented as MDMA but actually contain methamphetamine—or
methamphetamine and MDMA in combination, as well as other drug combinations.” Public health officials report that
MDMA and methamphetamine combinations may produce greater adverse neurochemical and behavioral effects than
either drug alone. thus placing abusers at greater risk.

Drug Trafficking Organizations

New York City-based Colombian DTOs are the primary wholesale suppliers of SA heroin and cocaine in the NE
HIDTA region. They typically transport drugs to the region to supply midievel and retail-level distributors, Colom-
bian DTOs sometimes contract with Dominican, Guatemalan, Honduran, Jamaican, Mexican, Puerto Rican, and other
Central America- and Caribbean-based groups to smuggle heroin and cocaine directly into the region for distribution.
Increased law enforcement pressure along the Southwest Border has led some DTOs to use smuggling routes through
Venezuela, Central America, and the Caribbean.

Mexican [TOs have increased their operations in the NE HIDTA Region and are now significant wholesale suppli-
ers of 5A heroin, cocaine, and marijuana, which they transport directly from their sources of supply in Atlanta,
Georgia; Houston and Dalfas, Texas; and the Southwest Border area to New England. Mexican DTOs also supply
timited amounts of ice metharaphetamine to the region.

Dominican DTOs are significant transporters and distributors of retail-level quantities of cocaine, commercial-grade
marijuana, SA heroin, and CPDs in the region. Some New England-based Dominican traffickers travel to New York
City to obtain drug supplies from Colombian and Dominican DTOs; conversely, some Colombian and Dominican
distributors from New York City travel to New England to supply illicit drugs to Dominican traffickers.

b. Synthetic drug tablets, capsules, or powder seized in New England often contain multiple ingredients in various combinations, including substances
such as MOMA, MDA {3 4-methylenedicxyamphetamine), methamphetamine, amphetamine, 4-Mathylmethcathinone (d-MMC, Mephedrone), BZP
{1-henzylpiperazing), caffeine, ephedrine, ketamine, LSD {ysergic acid diethylamide), OMPP (ortho-methoxyphenylpiperazine), PCP (phencyclidine},
proceing, pseudoephedrine, and TFMPP (1-(3-+rifluoromathyipheny)piperazine}. Some laboratory operators who produce synthetic drugs custom-
biend drug tablets and capsules to provide abusers with a spechic physiological effect, and they use information about that effect as a marketing tool.
Moreover, methamphetamine, which is fess costly 1o produce, has been used as an adulterant/additive fo MDMA tablets for several years. MDMA
preducers sometimes add methamphetamine during MDMA manufacturing to stretch their supplies and increase their profit margins. Metham-
phetamine is oftert more readily available fo laboratory operators and less expensive than pure MDMA. Because the chemicat struciure of MDMA is
similar to that of methamphetamine and the two drugs prodiuce similar stimulant effects, producers can sell combination MDMA/methamphetamine
tabiats 10 an unsuspecting MDMA user population.




Table 1. Drug Seizures in the New England HIDTA Region, 2009

Dirug Amount Seized Whelesale Value
Cogaine HCL (in kilograms) 183.5 $ 6,350,051
Crack Gocaine {in kilograms) 11.8 $ 493,017
Herein (in kilograms) 21.7 $1,618.044
Marfiuana {in kilograms) §,8214 $ 29,704,942
Wiartjuana, hydroponic (in kilograms) 23.2 $ 150,233
Methamphetaming (in kilograms) 36.7 $212,955
Hydrocodone (i dosags unils) 194 §2188
LSD (in dosage unils) 45 $ 225
MOMA (in dosage units} 108,667 § 2,708,580
Methadone {in dosage units) 155 $4,590
Mgrphine (in dosage units) 1,265 $ 35,420
Oxycodone {in dosage unifs) 1,316 $15,752
UxyContin {in dosage wnils) 13,200 $ 325927
Parcocet {in dosage unils) 4,502 $ 44,876
Ritaliz (in dosage units) 220 $ 1,100
Suboxone {in dosags uniis) 234.2 £ 2,394
Valium (in dosage uaits) 7,462 §$ 37,208
Vigodin {ir dosage unils) 777 $ 6,155
Kanax {in dosage unils) 6,148 % 30,761

Source: New England High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area.

La Familia Michoacana Drug Carlel Linked to Massachusetis

in October 2009, the Attorney General of the United States announced the arrests of
individuals in 19 states, including Massachusetis, during Project Coronado, a significant
international law enforcement effort directed against the La Familia Michoacana Car-

tel. This violent Mexican DTO based in the southwestern state of Michoacan had been
operating multiple cocaineg, marijuans, and methamphetamine drug distribution cells in
the United States. The DTO had smuggled large quantities of illicit drugs from Mexico to
the United States and laundered millions of dollars in drug proceeds. The DTO had also
acqguired military-grade weapons and arranged to smuggle them into Mexico for use by
La Familia. Law enforcement officials report that Project Coronado resulted in the arrests
of 1,186 individuals and the seizure of approximately $33 million in U.S. currency, 1,999
kilograms of cocaine, 2,730 pounds of methampheataming, 29 pounds of heroin, 16,380
pounds of marijuana, 389 weapons, 269 vehicles, and 2 clandestine drug laboratories.

Source: U.S. Department of Justice.
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Asian polydrug trafficking organizations operating between New England and Canada are the primary producers,
transporters, and distributors of Canadian high-potency hydroponic marijuana, MDMA, and synthetic drug combi-
nations containing such substances as methamphetamine, MDMA, and MDA. They smuggle drug shipments from
Canada for distribution in New England and elsewhere in the United States.

Guatemalan, East and West African, and Native American organizations are also active in the NE HIDTA region.
Guatemalan DTOs transport SA heroin to the region and distribute retail quantities of heroin and cocaine. East African
DTOs transport khat to the region for distribution to Somali commumnities in the Boston and Lewiston areas, while
West African DTOs transport small quantities of Southwest Asian (SWA) heroin to the region for distribution, Native
American traffickers smuggle high-potency Canadian marijuana to the region for further distribution in New England
and other regions of the United States.

Street gangs such as 18th Street, Asian Boyz, Bloods, Crips, La Familia, Latin Gangster Disciples, Latin Kings,
Mara Salvatrucha (MS 13), Neta, Surefios (Sur 13), Tiny Rascal Gangsters, and Vatos Locos distribute cocaine, mari-
juana, heroin, and CPDs in the NE HIDTA region. Most street gangs operating in New England can be classified as
one of four main racial/ethnic groups—African American, Asian, Caucasian, or Hispanic. New York City and southern
New England-based African American and Hispanic street gangs travel to areas throughout the NE HIDTA region to
distribute powder cocaine, crack cocaine, and heroin at higher prices than they command in their home areas. They
also obtain weapons in the NE HIDTA region, which, along with drug proceeds, are typically returned to the gangs’
urban bases of operation.

Members of international cutlaw motorcycle gangs (OMGs), such as Hells Angels and Outlaws and their associates,
distribute cocaine, marijuana, MDMA, powder methamphetamine, and CPDs in New England. Some OMG members
also engage in various financial crimes, firearms offenses, and violent crimes, including assault and armed carjacking.
Violence among OMUs is increasing in the region as the gangs and their associates compete for territory.

Production

Most of the illicit drugs distributed in the NE HIDTA region are produced at locations outside the region; however,
marijuana production occurs at indoor and outdoor grow sites throughout New England. Data from the Drug Enforce-
ment Administration (DEA) Domestic Cannabis Eradication/Suppression Program (DCE/SP) reveal that the number
of cannabis plants eradicated from indoor and outdoor grow sites in the region trended upward in 2009, reaching the
second-highest total since 2005. (See Table 2.) Production levels are rising in some areas of New England where young
adults are increasingly renting properties in rural lecations and establishing indoor grow sites. An increasing number
of weapons are also being encountered at grow sites in the region.

Tabie 2. Cannabis Plants Eradicated af Indoor and Ovtdoor Cultivation Sites in the
Hew England HIDTA Region, 2005-2009

2005 2006 2007 2068 2009
indoor culiivation sites 2,712 15,337 5,277 5677 10.047
Ouidoor cultivaiion sites 11,054 13,622 14,486 7,430 10,636
Tolal 13,766 28,958 15,763 13,101 29,683

Scurce; Domestic Cannabis Eradication/Suppression Program.
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Transporiation

Drug traffickers exploit the NE HIDTA’s proximity to New York City and the eastern provinces of Canada as well
as the region’s vast transportation network, which provides links to drag sources in other regions of the United States
and internationally. Numerous land ports of entry (POEs) and the mostly remote, 759-mile land boundary along the
U.S~Canada border provide traffickers with various avenues to transport drug shipments from foreign locations to the
NE HIDTA region. International airports and maritime ports further facilitate illicit drug smuggling into and through
the region. In 2008, Boston Logan International Airport, New England’s largest air transportation center, ranked
28th in the world for passenger traffic. Major airports are also located in Hartford; Providence; Burlington, Vermont;
Manchestet, New Hampshire; and Portland and Bangor, Maine. Major commercial seaports are located in Bridgeport,
Groton, New London, and New Haven, Connecticut; Boston and Fall River, Massachusetts; Portsmouth, New Hamp-
shire; and Eastport, Portland, Sandy Point, and Searsport, Maine. Six major interstate highways, three intraregional
mterstates, and a network of secondary and tertiary roadways link New England to major population centers through-
out the country. Additionally, Interstates 89, 90, 91, 93, and 95 offer direct routes through New England to locations at
or near the U.S~Canada border.

Traffickers in the region frequently use transportation brokers and couriers who specialize in smmggling contraband,
primarily overland. These specialists employ a variety of sophisticated concealment methods, use countersurveillance
measures, alter methods of communication, and frequently change routes and methods of conveyance to thwart law
enforcement interdiction efforts. Traffickers also send drugs and drug proceeds through the mail and parcel delivery
services.

Drug-Related Crime

Law enforcement officials throughout the NE HIDTA region report a distinct relationship between drug trafficking
and erime~—both violent and property crime. They indicate that most robberies, thefts, shootings, murders, and cases of
domestic violence have a drug nexus. Illicit drug abusers in the HIIDTA region have robbed pharmacies to obtain CPDs
for personal use and for resale to other addicts. Additionally, most of the bank robberies in the HIDTA region have been
linked to drug abusers. According to NIDTS 2010 data, 94 of the 276 state and local law enforcement agency respondents
in the NE HIDTA region identify crack cocaine as the drug that most contributes to violent crime in their areas; 118
respondents identify heroin as the drug that most contributes to property crime.

Violent, armed street gang members who engage in midlevel and retail drug distribution, particularly of powder
cocaine, crack cocaine, and heroin, frequently commit violent crimes (such as assauits on police officers and civilians,
home invasion robberies, shootings and assaults with dangerous weapons, and robberies) and property crimes (bur-
glaries and thefts) to protect and expand drug operations and to collect drug debts. Additionally, some drug traffick-
ers in the region use threats of violence to intimidate witnesses in trials against them. The propensity for violence is
significant, particularly among gang members who joined the military, received training in weapons and tactics, and
returned to gang life following discharge.

The acquisition and use of firearms by street gang members poses an increasing threat in the NE HIDTA region. Gang
members generally obtain firearms through either direct or intermediary purchases, by theft, or in exchange for drugs.
Many suburban and rural communities in New England are experiencing increasing gang-related crime and violence be-
cause of expanding gang influence, particularly incidents related to disputes over drug territories. Most street gangs that
operate in New England engage in violence in conjunction with various crimes, including retail-level drug distribution.

Abuse

Opioid abuse, particularly abuse of SA heroin and diverted controlled prescription opioids, is the most significant
drug concern in the HIDTA region, according to various drug abuse indicators. Optoid-related inquiries accounted
for the highest percentage of substance abuse-related, nonemergency information calls from healthcare professionals
and the general public to the Northern New England Poison Center (NNEPC) hotline from 2005 through 2009, Most
of the opioid-related calls to the hotline, which serves Maine, New Hampshire, and Vermont, involved oxycodone;
hydrocodone products accounted for the second-highest number of calls.
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Treatment Episode Data Set (TEDS) reporting indicates that the number of heroin-related treatment admissions to
publicly funded facilities in New England exceeded admissions related to all other illicit substances combined from
2003 through 2008, the latest year for which such data are available. Heroin and other opiate-related treatment admis-
sions increased during that time frame, peaking in 2008, when they accounted for approximately 70 percent of all
itlicit drug-related treatment admissions. Other opiate-related treatment admissions increased by more than 76 percent
from 2004 (8,591) through 2008 (15,134), and heroin-related admissions rose from 50,246 1o 53,688, or nearly 7
percent. {See Figure 3.)

Figure 3. Drug-Relaled Treatment Admissions to Publicly Funded Facilities in New England, 2004-2008
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Opioids are mentioned in the majority of the drug-related deaths reported in New England, and most of these deaths
occurred in HIDTA counties. (See Table 3 on page 9; see Appendix A.) There is also a distinct relationship between the
abuse of heroin and controlled prescription opioids and addiction treatment drugs such as methadone and buprenorphine
in New England. According to substance abuse treatment providers in the region, in addition to controlled prescription
opioid abusers switching to heroin use, former heroin abusers are abusing the synthetic opioids methadone and buprenor-
phine, which are addiction treatment drugs. Some heroin abusers self-medicate with drugs such as Suboxone o avoid
the withdrawal symptoms commonly associated with heroin abuse. These individuals are then able to resume using her-
oin mere quickly than heroin addicts who did not use Suboxone. In 2009, methadone was mentioned in approximately 25
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Table 3. Dreg-Related Deaihs in New England States

Total Number of Opiold |
Year Total Number of Mentions (Heroln and/sr Top IHice? Drug Mentions and Number
State ﬁ?@sﬁgﬁg Bmggﬁ:ted Contrsifed Prescription {Exciudes Alcohal)
) Gpioids)
Hercir (98), mistiple drugs (88), cocaine (48),
Comnecticut 2009 515 192 1 methadone (31), oplate (25}, oxycodone (21},
fentanyi (11}
Maine 2008 168 Not available | Not available
Massachusells 2067 905 £33 | Mot avaliabis
Methadone (41), oxycodane (29), cocaine (25),
, heroin (22), citalopram (11), fentanyt (16},
New Hampshire 2009 164 124 morphine (15), alprazofam (14), diazepam (13),
clonazepam (11}, opiate (9)
Rhode Isiang 2004 BaT* Mot avallable | Mot available
Methadone (18), oxycodone (13),
Vermont 2008 93 52 hydrogodone {10}, marphine (10)

Source: State Medical Examiner Offices.
*Data provided by DAWN Live!

percent of all drug-related deaths in New Hampshire, 6 percent in Connecticut,® and 19 percent in Vermont. The number
of opioid-related deaths that occurred in New England is likely underreported, since not all decedents are avtopsied and
specific drugs are not always identified in deaths involving multiple drug mentions. Moreover, a significant number of
potentially fatal opicid overdoses were reversed because first responders administered Narcan.?

Heroin was mentioned in an increasing percentage of drug-related deaths in Connecticut from 2006 through 2009—
approximately 22 percent of drug-related deaths in 2006, 23 percent in 2007, 29 percent in 2008, and 38 percent in
2009, according to the Connecticut Medical Examiner’s Office.* The ages of the heroin-related overdose decedents
ranged from 19 to 65 during 2009,

Many heroin abusers in the region are “functional abusers™—they hold jobs, have families, attend school, and par-
ticipate in community events, Moreover, many abusers from the northern New England states are commonly viewed
by law enforcement and public health officials as “day trippers” because they drive to the Lowell/Lawrence and
Hartford/Springfield areas to purchase heroin on a daily basis. They often ingest or inject a portion of the heroin while
driving back to their home state and typically self a portion of their purchase to other abusers to defray costs associ-
ated with their addiction. Canadian law enforcement officials have reported that SWA heroin has replaced Southeast
Asian heroin as the primary heroin type available in Canada, Other types of heroin may become more available in
New England if the demand for heroin remains high.

Some cocaine abusers in the region have been unwittingly exposed to illicit substances, such as tevamisole, used by
distributors as cutting agents to stretch cocaine supplies and increase profits. (See text box on page 10.)

c. Multiple unidentified drugs were mentioned as having contributed o approximately 17 percent of the drug-related deaths reporied in Connecti-
cut during 2009.

d. Narcan {naloxone}, also marketed as Nalone and Narcanti, is an injectable narcotic antagonist that immediately reverses respiratory arrest
caused by a heroin or other opiate overdosa,

&. The mortality percentages listed may be understated becauss they includs only incidents in which heroin was mentioned as coniributing to
a drug-related death; the percentages may exclude incidents in which hercin was involved and the pathologist listed the cause of death as
multipie drug toxicity.
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Potential Health Risks Associated With the Abuse of Cocaine Cut With Lovamisole

Public health officials in New England, some other regions of the Uniied States, and some foreign countries are
investigating the potential health conseguences to patients who abused cocaine that had been cut with the diluent
fevarmisole and were subsequantly diagnosed as having agranulocyiosis—a condition that destroys bone marrow,
makes it difficult for a patient to fight off infections, and can be fatal because it compromises the human immune
systern. Levamisole, a drug initially developed 1o treat worm infestations in humans and animals, has been encoun-
tered as a cutling agent in some bulk and user guantities of cocaine. The New Hampshire State Police Foransic
Laboratory reports that it encounters levamisole in 30 to 40 percent of the cocaine exhibits submitted for analysis.
Levamisole-contaminated cocaine has also been encountered in other New England states.

Source: Bureau of Aicoho!, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives; Drug Enforcament Administration; New Hampshire State Police Forensic Laboratory; New Mexico
Department of Health,

Hilicit Finance

Tens of miflions of dollars in illicit drug proceeds are generated in the NE HIDTA region each year. New England
HIDTA initiatives seized more than $61.8 million in drugs and drug assets in 2009, including drugs valued at more
than $42.1 million and more than $19.6 million in cash and other assets. Hlicit drug proceeds generated in the NE
HIDTA region are typically transported by traffickers through bulk cash and monetary instrument smuggling or
laundered through money services businesses (MSBs), depository institutions, front companies, casinos, securities and
futures instruments, and the purchase of real property and expensive consumer goods. Wholesale-level traffickers
transport drug proceeds in buik, either in the form of cash (U.8. and foreign cutrency) or monetary instruments, to
New York City, Canada, the Dominican Republic, Mexico, and other source areas for eventual repatriation; they
generally transport the proceeds in private vehicles and tractor-trailers and aboard commercial aircraft. They also ship
drug proceeds through the U.S. mail and via package delivery services.

Wholesale-level traffickers operating in the HIDTA region use personal and business accounts to launder drug proceeds
through depository institutions, a segment of the New England financial industry that ranked first in the number of Suspi-
cious Activity Reports filed in the region in 2008 (the latest available data) after ranking second annually from 2004 through
2007. (See Figure 4 on page 11.)

Wholesale-level traffickers also launder drug proceeds through MSBs, typically by electronic wire transfers of funds
to associates outside the HIDTA region or te domestic and international bank accounts owned by the trafficker or
money brokers. Law enforcement officials seized approximately $2.4 million in U.S. currency in 46 incidents linked
to New England during 2009, according to National Seizure System data. U.S. postal inspectors seized 71 parcels and
nearly $1.8 million in cash that had been mailed from New England to various locations from 2007 through 2009;
most of the seized currency parcels were destined for California and Puerte Rico.

Midlevel and retail traffickers operating in the region often launder proceeds by commingling them with legitimate
funds generated from cash-intensive area businesses such as clothing, music, and convenience stores; restaurants: tan-
ning and nail salons; travel agencies; and used car dealerships. Retail distributors also use drug proceeds to purchase
real estate and high-value personal items such as expensive clothing, jewelry, consumer elecironics products, and
automobiles. In addition, drug traffickers use prepaid cards—often referred to as stored value cards—to anonymously
move monies associated with all types of illicit activity. Some traffickers use unscrupulous members of the financial
and legal professions to launder drug proceeds in the New England region.

0
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Figure 4. Number of Suspicious Activity Reperts Filed in New England, by Type, 2604-2008
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Source: U.S. Department of the Treasury, Financial Grimes Enforcement Network.

Outlook

Opioid abuse will remain the primary drug threat in the NE HIDTA region over the next vear, SA heroin will con-
tinue to be widely available and abused and will present a greater threat if street-level prices continue to decline.
Additionally, the availability of SWA heroin in the region may increase if heroin demand escalates. The rate at which
controlled prescription opioid abusers switch to heroin use will increase as more of these abusers are aftracted by
the lower cost and higher potency of heroin. The abuse of CPDs that are used to treat opioid addiction is expected to
increase if abuse of heroin and CPDs continues to rise in New England; this situation will result in greater demand for
drug treatment and other health-related services.

NDIC analysts expect that Domintcan DTOs will take a more prominent role in drug trafficking in the NE HIDTA
region as increased law enforcement efforts along the Southwest Border cause Colombian and Dominican [3T0s to
use the Caribbean corridor and the Dominican Republic as transshipment points to transport cocaine and heroin to the
eastern United States.

The level of violence occurring among street gangs competing for drug distribution territory in New England will
escalaic as gangs expand their areas of operation to suburban and rural locations. Canada-based Asian DTOs will pose a
serious threat as they expand their high-potency marijuana and synthetic drug distribution networks. They will use their
well-established marijuana distribution networks to introduce larger quantities of synthetic drugs, primarily MDMA and
methamphetamine, into the region.
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Appendix A. Maps

Map A1, Opioid Deaths in Connecticut, by County, 2009
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Map A3. Opioid Deaths in New Hampshire, by County, 2009
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Sources

Local, State, and Regional

Connecticut
Bridgeport Police Department
Bristol Police Department
Connecticut Intelligence Center
East Haven Police Department
Hartford Police Department
New Britain Police Department
New Haven Police Department
Norwalk Police Department
Stamford Police Department
State of Connecticut
Connecticut National Guard
Connecticut State Medical Examiner
Department of Public Safety
Connecticut State Police
West Haven Police Department

faine
Portland Police Bepartiment
South Portland Police Department
State of Maine
Maine Drug Enforcement Agency
Maine Office of Substance Abuse
Maine State Medical Examiner
Maine State Police
Office of the Atiorney General
Office of the State Medical Examiner

Massachuselis

Auburn Police Department
Brockton Police Department
Chelsea Police Department
City of Boston
Centers for Youth and Families
Police Department
Prug Control Unit
Public Health Corminission
Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Department of Banking
Department of Corrections
Department of Public Health
Bureau of Substance Abuse Statistics
Office of Statistics and Evaluations
State Medical Examiner
Massachusetts National Guard
Office of the Attorney General
State Police
Division of Investigative Services

Essex County Sheriff’s Department
Fitchburg Police Department
Framingham Police Department
Holyoke Police Department
Lawrence Police Department
Lowell Police Department

Lynn Polive Department

Methuen Police Department
Milferd Police Department

North Andover Police Department
Southbridge Police Department
Springfield Police Department
Webster Police Departrnent
Worcester Police Department

New Hampshire

Munchester Police Department
Nashua Police Department
State of New Hampshire
New Hampshire Attorney General’s Drug Task Force
New Hampshire National Guard
New Hampshire State Medical Examiner
New Hampshire State Police

New Mexico
Department of Health

Rhode Island

Cranston Police Department
Hopkinton Police Department
Pawtucket Police Diepartment
Providence Police Department
State of Rhode Island

Rhode Island National Guard

Rhode Island State Medical Examiner

Rhode Istand State Police
Warwick Police Department
Westerly Police Department
Woonsocket Police Department

Vermont

Colchester Police Department
Hartford Police Department
South Burlington Police Department
State of Vermont
Office of the Chief Medical Examiner
Vermont National Guard
Vermont State Police
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Regional
New England State Police Information Network
Northern New England Poison Center

Federal

Executive Office of the President
Office of National Drug Control Policy
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area
New England
Financial Task Force
U.8. Department of Commerce
Bureau of Economic Analysis
.S, Census Bureau
American Community Survey
U 5. Department of Health and Human Services
National Institutes of Health
National Institute on Drug Abuse
Community Epidemiology Work Group
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administra-
tion
Office of Applied Studies
Drug Abuse Warning Network
Treatmeni Episode Data Set
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
U.5. Customs and Border Protection
U.S. Border Patrol
LS. Immigration and Customs Enforcement
U.S. Department of Justice
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives
Violent Crime Impact Teams
Drug Enforcement Administration
Domestic Cannabis Eradication/Suppression Program
Domestic Monitor Program
El Paso Intelligence Center
National Seizure System
New England Field Division
Federal Bureau of Investigation
U.S. Attorneys Offices
District of Connecticus
Drigtrict of Maine
District of Massachusetts
District of New Hampshire
District of Rhode Island
District of Vermont
U5, Department of State
LS. Department of the Treasury
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network
11.5. Postal Service
U.8. Postal Inspection Service
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Other

The Boston Globe

Commurity Substance Abuse Centers
Director of Operations

Hargford Courant

International Law Enforcement Association

National Assoctation of Drug Biversion Investigators
Project North Star




Cluestions and comments may be directed to
New cngland/New York/New Jersey Unit, Regional Threat Analysis Branch

National Drug intelligence Center

319 Waghington Street 5th Floor, Johnstown, PA 15901-1622 « (814) 532-4601
NDIC publications are available on the following web sites:
INTERNET www justice.gov/ndic ADNET hitpi/ndicosa.adnet.sgov.gov RISS ndic.riss.net
LEO  hitps/Mwww.leo.govihitp:/iecwes. leopriv.goviesig/indic/indeax. hirm

0862510
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Prescription drug abuse in

stealing lives

Danbury News Times, Published 02:03 p.m., Mconday, August 16, 2010

8y Nanci G. Hutson, Staff Writer

Ridgefield substance abuse therapist Liz Jorgensen is shocked that no one has hit the panic button yet over the latest
drug abuse trends.

Statistics indicate prescription drug overdoses are killing nice kids from nice families in well-to-do communities all over
the country.

Prescription drug use in Connecticut now kills more people under the age of 34 than car crashes, Jorgensen said,
guoting a national study of figures from 2006 released this year.

Nationwide, 45,000 are kitled in car crashes; 39,000 die from prescription drug overdoses, according to the study.

"Why isn't everybody freaking out?” asked Jorgensen, who owns Insight Counseling and leads educational seminars and
workshops on substance abuse. "it's terrifying.”

Jorgensen’s professional network and private practice indicate an increasing number of teens are dying from the
scourge of prescription drugs, particularly opiates that mimic heroin. She said kids do not perceive the addictive
danger of these drugs.

Jorgensen said some teens get hooked on heroin when the price of narcotic painkillers gets too high.

in recent months, Jorgensen said she has sent 30 of her patients under age 22 to in-patient treatment for opiate abuse.
They all started using strong painkillers and then moved toward heroin as a cheaper alternative.

One OxyContin pill -- a trademark version of the narcotic painkiller oxycodone -- costs about $80; a gram of cocaine is
$50, and heroin is even cheaper at about $10 a bag, area experts said.

Jorgensen and other substance abuse specialists said opiates -- many found in bathroom cabinets and family medicine
drawers -- are quite prevalent and accessible. Not only are they addictive, too often they can prove deadly when
combined with other medications or alcohol.

The much-publicized death of a 17-year-old Newtown High School student, Danielle Jacobsen, just before her
graduation ignited renewed concern about these troubling trends, according to area substance abuse specialists.

The investigation determined Jacobsen ingested a relatively unknown drug at a party in a Monroe condominium
complex and early the next morning was found dead in a nearby pond.

Soon after news broke about Jacobsen's death, rumors started to circulate about teens who attend “pharm” parties,
where unknown brands of prescription drugs are offered to guests.

Local substance abuse officials and police said they think that is relatively rare. Rather, they said, teens tend to sell or
barter prescription drugs raided from family stashes, with some even stealing the drugs or altering medications they
are able to buy over the counter.

" don't think this "bowl thing' is exactly what it looks like,” said Allison Fulton, executive director of the Housatonic
Yalley Coalition Against Substance Abuse. "But prescription drugs are out there.

Students don't just abuse narcotic painkillers, Fulton said.
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She said she regularly hears of teens and young adults abusing attention deficit disorder and anti-anxiety drugs, as well
as taking over-the-counter cough medications in higher doses than advised.

Cocaine is making a resurgence in some of the wealthier towns, and heroin use is clearly on the rise and readily
available, she said.

Fulton also is highly concerned about underage drinking and marijuana use. She and others said that often is the
beginning of drug exploration by teens and young adults. If not stopped early it can fuel addictions that lead them
crave other drugs.

"it's pretty scary,” Fulton said.

Newtown Parent Connection co-founder Dorrie Carolan said the availability of prescription drugs is cause for concern.
In recent months, she has received calls about overdosing teens who ended up in emergency rooms and some in relapse
after a period of sobriety.

Teens most vulnerable to these drugs tend to be those with lower self-esteem who are yearning for peer acceptance or
approval, Carolan said.

"When they are high, they feel good,” she said.

As for the cult or rare, drugs, Carolan said she doesn't hear much about that. Rather, it is opiates, prescription
narcotics and heroin. She also hears from teens about marijuana experimentation, and the pot teens smoke today is far
more potent than what their parents might have tried vears ago.

Most disturbing, though, is teens mixing drugs and alcohol, she said.

“They all think they are invincible, nothing’s going to happen,” Carolan said, noting she has attended far too many
funerals of teenagers whose friends’ final goodbye is a night of drinking and drugging. "When there's a death, it raises
awareness, but two weeks later everyone goes back to their day-to-day routines.”

Some overdose deaths go unreported as such, deemed accidental or linked to some other health ailment, local
specialists said. Families fear the stigma, so they stay silent.

But Carolan, a mother who helped create the coalition in 1999 as a response to the prescription drug overdose of her
28-year-old son, Brian, chooses to fight back by educating all those who can make a difference: parents, teachers,
doctors, sccial service providers and their peers,

The coalition wants to ensure that addicted teens and their families find the right treatment the first time or for a
relapse; embrace the success of a recently sober teen; and educate the entire community on prevention technigues
and why this problem can affect everyone.

Carolan said teen drug abuse hurts senior citizens when they cross paths with an impaired driver; it hurts the
unsuspecting student who shares the locker next to someone dealing drugs or the neighbor whose house is burglarized
by someane looking for prescription medications.

"When we started Parent Connection, we figured it would be worth it if we saved one life. And we have seen many,
many kids stay clean for years, and some of those kids have given a lot back to their community," Carolan said.

But the effort to halt drug abuse requires constant community vigilance, Carolan and others said.

Parents, schools, law enforcement, the medical profession, civic leaders, and the media need to be banging the drum
about the reatities sp the danger is clear and easy access diminishes, the local experts said.

"What needs to happen is a whole culture shift,” Fulton said, citing the success of the decades-long anti-smoking
campaign that taught the public its health risks.



"We can't be Pollyanna about it. We have to create real awareness about what is going on ... and get kids to g@ more
informed,” Fulton said.
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Mountainside Treatment Center
2011 Admissions by Connecticut Town

cT

Town

Andover
Avon
Bantam
Bethany
Bethel
Bethlehem
Bloomfield
Bozrah
Branford
Bridgeport
Bristol
Brooidield
Canaan
Canton

Canton Center

Cheshire
Colbalt
Colchester
Colebrook
Cos Cobb
Cromwell
Danbury
Darien
Beep River
Durham

E. Hartford
E. Windsor
East Granby
Enfield
Fairfield
Farmington
Gales Ferry
Glastonbury
Granby
Greenwich
Griswold
Guilford
Haddam
Hamden
Hartford
Harwinton
Hebron
fvoryton

Admission
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cT

Town
Ledyard
Litchfield
Madison
Manchester
Mariborough
Middletown
Milford
Monroe
Mystic
Naugatuck
New Britain
New Canaan
New Hartford
New Haven
New London
New Milford
Newington
Newtown
Niantic
Norfolk
North Branford
Northfield
Norwalk
Norwich
Oakville
Old Lyme
Old saybrook
Oxford
Plantsville
Portland
Prospect
Ridgefieid
Rocky Hill
Salisbury
Sandy Hook
Sharon
Shelton
Somers
South Giastonburry
South Windsor
Southbury
Southington
Storrs
Stratford
Suffield
Terryville

Admission
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T

Town
Thomaston
Tolland
Torrington
Trumbul
Uncasville
Wallingford
Waterbury
Waterford
Weathersfield
west Granby
West Hartford
Woestbrook
Weston
Westport
Wethersfield
Wilton
Winsted
Wolcott
Woodbury

Admission
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TERENCE R. DOUGHERTY
President and CEQ

Mountainside Treatment Center
Canaan, CT 06018
terence.dougherty@mountainside.com

Mr. Dougherty has some fifteen years of experience in the addiction treatment fiald,
having been a co-founder of Mountainside Treatment Center, where he holds the positions of
President and Chief Executive Officer.

in 1995, Mr. Dougherty formed a Connecticut corporation to start a new alcohol and
drug treatment center in Canaan, Connecticut. The founders took title to the former Parkside
Lodge in 1997, and the center was iicensed and opened in February 1988. Mountainside had a
change of ownership in Qctober 2008, and Mr. Dougherty was retained as President and CEG. In
its almost fourteen years of operating, more than 6,000 people have come through its doors far
treatment.

It was the goal of Mountainside’s founders that the center provide innovative and
individualized treatment. It has incorporated many new treatment modaiities to support its
evidence based program; its holistic program is viewed as one of the most innovative and
effective holistic programs in the treatment field. Mountainside’s treatment program wins
widespread acclaim throughout the treatment field.

Mr. Dougherty is regularly invited to speak at treatment industry conferences and
forums in this country and overseas about Mountainside’s unique and innovative treatment
program.

He is a member of the National Association of Addiction Treatment Providers and
serves on the Drugs and the Law Committee of The Association of the Bar of the City of New
York. He is a member of the Board of Directors of the National Council on Alcoho! and Drug
Addiction in Westchester County, New York.

Prior to starting Mountainside, he held various positions with companies in New York
City. He holds a BA from St. John's University,

Route 7, Box 717 Canaan CT 06018 > P 840.824,1397 F 8640.824.4021 E www.mouniainside.com
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Martin Fedor
Chief Operating Officer
Mountainside Treatment Center
Canaan, CT 06018

Mr. Fedor has significant industry experience (+10 years) and has held other executive roles
including Chief Financial Officer. Apart from managing the growth and operations at
Mountainside, Martin is a Managing Director at Artemis Partners,

Martin received his BS from Fordham University where he majored in Economics and
graduated with high honors, Afterward Martin received his Master in Business with a
concentration in Finance from Columbia School of Business where he graduated with high
honors and is a member of the Hermes Society and Beta Gamma Sigma honors society.



NANCY TREVOR, MS, APRN
Nurse Practitioner

Mountainside Treatment Center
Canaan, CT 06018
nancy. frever@moyntainside.com

Ms. Trevor is a Certified Adult Psychiatric Nurse Practitioner, Certified Clinical Nurse
Specialist in Adult Psychiatry and Certified Addictions Nurse-Advanced Practice.

Ms. Trevor has worked as a charge aurse at The University of Connecticut inpatient
psychiatry unit, as an outpatient clinician in the Latino Program at MidState Medical Center and
as Manager of the inpatient psychiatric unit at MidState Hospital in Meriden, CT. She was
Director of Nursing at Alliance Treatment Center in Avon, CT for both Detox and Residential
Services. She also provided psychiatric medication management for the IOP Program at Ailiance
Treatment Center.,

Ms. Trevor has been at Mountainside Treatment Center for five years as an Advanced
Practice Psychiatric Nurse. Her responsibilities include monitoring for detox needs of newly
admitted clients, medication management, referrals to outside providers when necessary and
supervising staff members involved in nursing needs and medication management,

Ms. Trevor received her BA in Psychology from Mount Holyoke Coltege and her MS in
Nursing at Vanderbilt University where she was inducted as a member of Sigma Theta Tau, the
international honor society of nursing. She is currently a member of Sigma Theta Tau, The
American Psychiatric Nurses Association and The International Nurses’ Society of Addictions.

Route 7, Box 717 Canaan CV 04018 . P 840.824 1397 F 840.824.4021 www. mountainside.com
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Fred Keane, LCSW
Clinical Director
Mountainside Treatment Center
Canaan, CT 06018
fred keane@mountainside com

Fred Keane, LCSW, is primarily responsible for management and oversight of the Clinical
Counseling Team, as well as the integration of Family Wellness, Continuing Care, MBS, and ABC into
individualized Client Treatment Plans. He is also engaged in program development initiatives, trainings,
in-services, medical records maintenance and compliance related issues. He has overalf responsibility for

Mountainside’s evidence based treatment program and incorporating into our program other treatment
components such as our Holistic Program,

Mr. Keane is currently engaged in the planning of the addition to Mountainside’s services of
Residential Detoxification and Evaluation.

Prior to joining Mountainside, Mr, Keane worked in a variety of clinical case management and
supervisory capacities in the field of substance abuse. He served as Program Director of the 31 bed
Detox Unit at Arms Acres Treatment Center in Carmel, NY. While there he worked in close collahoration

with the Nursing and Medical staff to provide truly coltaborative care and assure that all standards and
practices of care were met.

Among his achievements, he integrated elements of trauma informed care and dual diagnosis
into treatment planning and program development as well as other relative evidence based practices.
He has presented at several conferences on these topics.

Mr. Keane is a graduate of Colgate University and Fordham University Graduate School of Social
Services. He has been an Adjunct Professor and faculty advisor at Fordham Graduate Schoo! of Social
Services since 2009 where he has taught the elective course on Practice with Substance Abuse.

Route 7, Box 717 Canacan CT 046018 ¢ P 860.824.1397 F 860.824.402) ° www mouniginside.com
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Departrnent of Public Health

License No. 0388
Facility for the Care or Treatment of Substance
' Abusive or Dependent Persons
In accordance with the provisions of the General Statutes of Connecticut Section 192-493:
MCEHieai’thcaricLLﬁc;)fCaxiaan,CT,dfbfaMoumadnsideTreatmemﬂant_e_rishe;rebyiicens.edtqmahﬁainand :
operate a Facility for the Care or Treatment of Substance Abusive or Dependent Persons.

Mountainside Treatment Center is located at 187 South Canaan Rd., Rte 7, Canaan, CT 06018 with:

Timothy J. Walsh as Executive Director
The maxirnurmn number of beds shall not exceed at any time:

62 Intermediate and Long Term Treatment and Rehsbilitation Beds
The service classification(s) and if applicable, the residential capacities are as follows:
Intermediate and Long Term ‘Treatment and Rehabilitation
Day and Evening Treatment
Cutpatient Treatrent
This license expires September 30, 2613 and may be revoked for cause at any time.

Dated at Hartford, Contiecticut, October 1, 2011, RENEWAL.

%@iwm

Tewel Mullen, MD, MPH, MPA
Commissioner
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MCT HEALTHCARE, LLC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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Carl ). Bagge, CPA L §6 Maple Avenue
seimd BAGGE CENNAMO &PASCOEE  Eesiesiien:
A . CPA - B telephone
Kenneth P. Pascoe, CP s B0 e
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants advisogs@bcp-cpag_com ertail

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Member

MC1 Healthcare, L1.C
Route 7, Box 717
Canaan, CT 06018

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of MC1 Healtheare, LLC as of December 31,
2010 and the related statements of income, changes in member’s equity, and cash flows for the
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of MCI Healthcare, LLC as of December 31, 2010, and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

217~ ém%% e

BAGGE, CENNAMO 3 PASCOE LLP
Certified Public Accountants

November 18, 2011
-1~

CPAs for Today...Business Strategists for Tomorrow
www. bcp-cpas.com




MC1 HEALTHCARE, LLC 188

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31.2010
ASSETS
Current Assets;

Cash and Cash Equivalents ~ $ 46,907

Accounts Receivable - net . 228,133

Employee Advances 5974

Inventory 27,500

Due from Limestone, LLC : 51,329

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 5,753
Total Current Assets 7 365,596
Property and Equipment:

Leasehold Improvernents . 17,534

Vehicles 40,268

Equipment and Furniture 519,905

Less: Accumulated Depreciation . {79,853)
Net Property and Equipment 497,854
Other Assets:

Start up Costs, Net of Amortization 5,370
Total Other Assets 5,370
TOTAL ASSETS ' $. 868,820

LIABHITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable ' $ 34,656
Advance Payments 91,683
‘Line of Credit Payable 168,000

Vehicle Notes Payable - Current Portion 11,727

Due to Related Parties . - 216,000
Total Current Liabilities 522,066

Long-Term Ligbilities

Vehicle Notes Payable T 22,992

Less Current portion , (11,727)
Total Long-Term Ligbilities ‘ 11,265
Member's Equity | 335,489
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY $ 868,820

See notes to financial statements



MC1 HEALTHCARE, LLC
STATEMENT QF INCOME
AND CHANGES IN MEMBER'S BOUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010

Revenye
Resident Revenue b 6,503,162
Total Revenue 6,503,162
Operating Expenses
Salaries 2,578,583
Payroll Taxes 223,538
Workers Compensation Insurance 48,336
Health Insurance 268,458
Staff Expenses 6,037
Payroll Service 27,380
Food 198,518
Contract Labor 112,665
Bank Fees 118,158
Profassional Fees 84,657
Rent Expense 480,000
Utilities, Telephone & Cable 172,208
General Insurance 88,037
Maintenance 223,681
Leased Equipment and Laundry 42,312
Dues, Subscriptions and Miscellaneous 23,446
Auto Expense 54,224
Donations 13,895
Program Expense 165,072
Security 72,485
Office Expenses 142,844
Events 10,877
Marketing . 175,716
Travel and Entertainment 3,792
Management Fee 576,000
Depreciation Expense 58,668
Amortization Expense 390
Interest Expense 3,095
Total Operating Expenses 6,003,356
Net Income 499 806
Memtbers Equity (Deficit) -Beginning of Year (164,317
Members Equity - End of Year 5 335,489

See notes {o financial siatements



MC1 HEALTHCARE, LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FL.OWS
POR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net Income

Adjustments To Reconcile Change In Net Assets
To Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
{Increase} Decrease in Fmployee Advances
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Advanced Payments -
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase in Due to Related Parties

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchase of Equipment and Improvements

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds From Line of Credit
Repayments on Line of Credit
Principal Payments on Notes Payahle

Net Cash Used By Financing Actjvities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Begimming of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Suppiemental Information:
Cash Paid for Interest
Cash Paid for Taxes

See notes to financial statements

$

499,806

58,668
390
(205,933)
1,352
(5,753)
91,683
(124,200)
1,424

84,500

401,937

(286,774)

(286,774)

193,000
(265,000)

(12,650)
(84,650)

30,513

16,394

46,907

3,095
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MC1 HEALTHCARE. LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

MC1 Healthcare, LL.C. (The Company) is a Ieading provider of substance abuse treatment
services in the United States. The Company is organized as a limited liability company
(LLC) in the state of Connecticut.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.

Inventory

Inventory is recorded at cost, determined on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis and consists of
food and supplies used for resident dining facilities.

Hstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and labilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment of the Company is stated at cost. Expenditures for major renewals
and betterments, which extend the useful lives of property and equipment, are capitalized;
expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Upon the
sale of depreciable property and equipment, the costs and the related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts; any gain or loss on disposition is reflected in
net income in the year of realization.

Depreciation expense for the year was $58,668. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method for assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture & Fixtures 5-10 years
Building improvements 10 years
Computer equipment and software  3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
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MCI HEALTHCARE, LL.C
Notes to Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recognition of Revenue

The Company uses the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting
provides for the recognition of revenue when earned, and expenses when incurred rather

than when collected or paid.

Accounts Receivable

The Company carries its accounts receivable at cost less an allowance for doubtful
accounts. On a periodic basis, the Company evaluates its accounts receivable and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts, when deemed necessary, based on its
history of past write-offs and collections and current credit conditions. At December 31,
2010, the allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $31,950.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the year ended
December 31, 2010 was $102,617.

Income Taxes

The Company is an LLC which is a non-taxable entity. In lieu of income taxes, the owners
of an LLC are taxed on the Company’s taxable income. Therefore, no provision or
liability for federal and state income taxes has been included in these financial statements.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and the state of
Connecticut. The 2010 and 2009 income tax returns arc subject to U.S. federal and state
income tax examinations by tax authorities,

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid
securities purchased with a three month or less to be cash équivalents,

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts that, at

times, may exceed federally insured depository limits. The Company has not experienced
any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk.



MC1 HEALTHCARE, LLC | 1
Notes to Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

2.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Company leases real property from Limestone Partners, LLC, a related entity by virtue
of common ownership. The lease, dated October 1, 2009 expires on September 30, 2014,
and stipulates monthly rental amounts of $40,000 with periodic increases. Rental expense
amounted to $480,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010. The lease agreement allows
for three extensions at five years each, and was increased to $50,000 per month effective
January 1, 2011 and to $150,000 effective August 1, 2011.

Future obligations relating to the above lease are:

201 . $ 1,100,000
2012, s 1,800,000
2013, 1,800,000
2014, . 1.350.000
Total.....oooviinninn $ 6,050,000

o

The Company also paid a monthly management fee of $48,000 during 2010 to Artemis

Partners, LLC, the sole member of the Company. Management fees totaled $576, 000 for
the year.

The Company had the following balances due from and to reléted parties as of December
31, 2010:

Due From Limestone Pariners, LLC  § 51,329
Due To Artemis Partners, LLC b 216,000

There are no formal repayment terms for these amounts and no interest associated with this
balance. These amoumnts have been repaid during 2011,

3. PENSION PLANS

The Company has instituted a 401(k) profit sharing plan which covers all employees who
are 18 years of age with 1,000 hours of scrvice, and who are not covered by collective
bargaining agreements. The plan has no provision for Company matching contributions.




MC1 HEALTHCARE., LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

4.

NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Notes payable and long-term debt consists of the folowing:

The Company has a revolving line of credit with a
bank which is secured by real and personal property of
Limestone Partners, LLC and guaranteed by Artemis
Partners, LLC. The line had a limit of $250,000 as of
December 31, 2010 which was increase to $350,000
on January 31, 2011 upon renewal. The line is payable
upon demand and monthly interest payments are due
at the banks prime rate plus 1.75% with a floor of 5%.
The line has a provision which requires that the
outstanding principal balance be paid downto a
maximum of $100 for 30 consecutive days annually... $ 168,000

Installment notes due in amounts of $551 and $426
including interest of 0% and 1.9% through May 2013,

secured by vehicles....iniiiiiencinin, - 22,992
TOtAL ..ottt va e 190,992
Less: Current Portion......ceerosisrrcnressreererssesersesnens 179,727
Long-term debi........covveiei e e s cnceisn s § 11,265

Maturities on long-term debt are as follows:

Long-term deblo. .ottt eraens s $ 11,265

5. CLAIMS AND CONTINGENCIES.

6.

The Company, from time to time, has miscellaneous claims and lawsuits arising from the
ordinary course of business. Management believes that such proceedings in the
aggregate are within the limits of the Company’s hability insurance policies, and
therefore, will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s financial position.
No other known contingencies exist which, in the opinion of management, will have a
materially adverse effect upon the Company's financial position or operating results,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 18, 2011, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued.
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Bankof ﬁmerica/

November 15, 2011

Mr. Martin Fedor

MC1 Heafthcare dfb/a Mountainside Treatment Center
187 South Canaan Road

Canaan, CT 06018

RE: APPLICATION TO OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED
MC1 HEALTHCARE LLC d/b/a MOUNTAINSIDE TREATMENT CENTER

Dear Mr. Fedor,

This letter is offered to be shared with the State of Connecticut Office of Health Care Access with respect to the
application of MC1 Heaithcare d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center for approval of its Certificate of Need.

Bank of America is pleased to have provided conditional approval for financing to construct a 34,000 square foot
detoxification program facility at approximating a total expense of $10 million. We look forward to supporting the
programs and operations of Mountainside Treatment Center and its affiliates.

Please contact me with any guestions.

1/ w ff -

Smcereiy,

L‘ W L i,,f/[ Mjm
{ J@nathanB Dayton ‘‘‘‘‘ 7
“Senior Vice President

Bank of America, Business Banking
Recyeled Paper
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

December 28, 2011

VIA FAX & EMAIL ONLY

Terence Dougherty

President & CEO

MCI Healthcare LLC d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
P.O. Box 717

Cantaan, CT 06108

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31734-CON
MCI Healthecare I.LC d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
Increase of 16 Licensed Beds at Mountainside Treatment Center

Dear Mr. Dougherty:
On November 29, 2011, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA™) received your initial Certificate of
Need application filing on behalf of MCI Healthcare LLC d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center

(*Mountainside” or “Applicant™), for increase of 16 licensed beds at the Center to accommodate its new
residential detoxification and evaluation service.

OHCA has reviewed the CON application and requests the following additional information pursuant to
General Statutes §19a-639a(c):

Page 20 & Attachment C

1. Upon further research by OHCA, it appears that there are other facilities such as Southeastern
Connecticut Council on Alcohol and Drug Dependence (“SCADD™) in Lebanon, Community
Prevention and Addiction Services (“CPAS™) in Willimantic, Silver Hill Hospital in New Canaan
and Connecticut Valley Hospital (Merritt Hall} in Middletown, that are offering detoxification
services in Connecticut. Please explain and discuss why the Applicant did not include the
aforementioned facilities.

2. Please address available capacity for similar beds at each of the facilities mentioned above.

Page 19 & Attachment B

3. It appears that majority of the letters of support submitted in this record are from out-of-state
providers. Please discuss Mountainside’s existing relationship with other substance abuse
providers in Connecticut and if the Applicant has referral agreements with any of these in-state
providers.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053 '




Mountainside Treatment Center December 28, 2011
Docket Number: 11-31734-CON Page 2 of 2

In responding to the questions contained in this letter, please repeat each question before providing your
response. Paginate and date your response, i.e., each page in its entirety. Information filed after the
initial CON application submission (i.e. completeness response letter, prefile testimony, late file
submissions and the like) must be numbered sequentially from the Applicant’s document preceding it.
Please begin your submission using Page 207 and reference “Docket Number: 11-31734-CON.” Submit
one (1) original and four (4) hard copies of your response. In addition, please submit a scanned copy of
your response, int an Adobe format (.pdf) including all attachments on CD. If available, a copy of the
response in MS Word should also be copied to the CD.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, feel free to contact me by email or at (860) 418-7069.

Sincerely,
e

»J‘(‘

s e

Steven W. Lazarus e
Associate Health Care Analyst
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Jonathan Spodick, MA, LCSW
NEW ENGLAND MENTAL HEALTH LLC
762 Post Rd
Darien, CT 06820

Janunary 11, 2012

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
Dear Ms. Martone:

T am writing in full of the above application. I have worked closely and made many referrals to
Mountainside over the past two years. Often my patients have required detox in order to start inpatient
rehab and have been forced to go long distances in order to receive those services. They have out of state
at times. It makes a significant difference, in my professional opinion to have the patient be in one
program for their entire treatment. We refer at least five patients a year to Mountainside. There is a clear
shortage of detox beds in the region and approval of this application should be expedited to help those
suffering from the disease of addiction and cannot find proper care due to a shortage of beds. These 16
beds will make a significant difference to the inadequate detox system that is now in place.

Mountainside offers one of the best programs in the region and certainly use best practice,
evidence based treatment. A detox program would enhance the e‘xperiénce not just for the patient but also
for the referent. : C - _

1 am happy to answer any questions, the committee may have but urge acceptance of this
application as soon as possible.

Sincerely,

Jonathan Spodick, MA, LCSW

NEW ENGLAND MENTAL HEALTH

{203) 662-3232

762 Post Rd

Darien, CT 06820
jonathan@newenglandmentalhealth.com
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January 23, 2012

Ms. Kimberly R. Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

RE: Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-
31734-CON MCI Healthcare LLC d/b/a Mountainside
Treatment Center Increase of 16 Licensed Beds at
Mountainside Treatment Center

Dear Ms. Martone:

Please find responses to the questions requested by the Office of Health Care Access on
December 28, 2011. As per your request, an original and four (4) hard copies are provided as
well as a scanned copy in an Adobe format (.pdf) on a2 CD.

Thank you for your time and effort in reviewing this important Certificate of Need application.
Please do not hesitate to contact me at (203) 459-1601 or Terence Dougherty at (860) 824-
1397 if you have any additional questions.

Sincerely,

e} . .
it/ W "Q’ﬁ/

Karen M. Banoff
Principal

Attachments

Copy to: Terence Dougherty, Mountainside Treatment Center
Steven Lazarus, OHCA

91 Old Hollow Road * Trumbull, CT 06611 * Phone/Fax: 203-459-1601 » kbanoff@kmbconsult.com
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Certificate of Need Application
Docket Number: 11-31734-CON
MCI Healthcare L1.C d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
Increase of 16 Licensed Beds at Mountainside Treatment Center

Responses to Completeness Questions

Page 20 & Attachment C

1. Upon further research by OHCA, it appears that there are other facilities such as
Southeastern Connecticut Council on Aicohol and Drug Dependence ("SCADD"} in
Lebanon, Community Prevention and Addiction Services ("CPAS") in Willimantic,
Silver Hill Hospital in New Canaan and Connecticut Valley Hospital (Merritt Hall) in
Middletown, that are offering detoxification services in Connecticut. Please explain
and discuss why the Applicant did not include the aforementioned facilities

Response
In response to OHCA’s CON question requesting information about other

residential detoxification providers, a listing was initially requested from DPH’s
Facility Licensing & Investigations Section to identify residential detoxification
facilities in Connecticut. The original listing from DPH is included as
Attachment I. DPH was unabile to identify substance abuse providers that
provided specifically residential detoxification, but indicated that those
included on the listing with bed counts should be contacted regarding
residential detoxification services. This original listing did not include any of
the facilities listed above and therefore they were inadvertently not included in
the originali CON submission.

Each of the facilities listed above has been contacted to confirm that they do
offer residential detoxification and their present bed availability. The results
are noted below.

Facility Beds Availability on 1/5/12
CPAS 6 None
CT Valley Hospital (Merritt Hall) | 20 None
SCADD Detox 20 2
Silver Hill Hospital 18 None, possibly 1 at night |

It is clear from this information that although these are additional residential
detoxification providers, their beds are highly utilized and they have minimal
bed availability.

2. Please address available capacity for similar beds at each of the facilities mentioned
above.

Response
See response to Question 1 above.
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Page 19 & Attachment B

3.

it appears that majority of the letters of support submitted in this record are from out-
of-state providers. Please discuss Mountainside's existing relationship with other
substance abuse providers in Connecticut and if the Applicant has referral
agreements with any of these in-state providers.

Response
Mountainside has served thousands of Connecticut residents who have

struggled with substance abuse and remains committed fo meeting the
substance abuse treatment needs of Connecticut residents. Mountainside has
long standing relationships with many substance abuse providers in
Connecticut. There are almost 30 individuals and/or organizations in
Connecticut, who routinely refer clients to Mountainside. They are listed
below:

Bridgeport Hospital

Bristol Hospital

Camilie M. Bertram Consultants

Charlotte Hungerford Hospital

Connecticut Therapy Associates

Dwenger, Randall,MD

Fairfield Counseling Services

Fairfield University

Farreli Treatment

First Step

Galiant & Associates

Gary Alger

Gatter, Dori, L. PsyD, LPC

Greenwich Hospital

Griffin, Raymend, A. Ph D

HAVEN |
Jacobs, Allen MD |
Mohegan Indian Tribe
New Direction, The

Newtown Parent Connection

Positive Directions

Regional Network of Programs, Inc.

Sharon Hospital

Silver Hill Hospital

Stonington institute

Turning Point

Waynik Group, The

Yale-New Haven Psychiatric Hospital

e & & o 2 0 & & 6 & &6 & & & O € £ & & & P £ S &5 & & © ©

Mountainside does not have any formal (i.e. written) referral agreements with
any other substance abuse providers, just long-standing relationships.
Additional letters of support from Connecticut providers have been included in
Attachment il or have been mailed to OHCA directly. :
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Attachment | — Substance Abuse Provider Listing from DPH
July 2011 to Movember 2011 Substance abuse fag from DPH_2

CT DEPT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

LISTING OF SUBSTANCE ABUSE PROVIDERS
IWITH BERS

NﬁM £ PH [FAX ADDR1 TOWN STATE [ZIP

CATHOLIC CHARITIES, [NC. {203)7357481 [{203)7355021 1205 WAKELEE AVENUE |ANSONIA CT 38401 0
BIRMINGHAM GROUP HEALTH SERVICES CLINIC (20317362601 |{203)7568597 |455 EAST MAIN STREET|ANSONIA CT 06401 0
ANSONIA COUNSELING SERVICES @03]5033577 (203)5033659 (121 WAKELEE AVENLIE JANSONIA CT 06401 [
ANGELUS HOUSE {203)2868080 |(203)2668030 |158 FLANDERS RQAD IBETHLEHEM CT 08751 1} |
NORTH CENTRAL COUNSELING SERVICES (36012430584 {(BBM2436591 1603 BLOOMFELD AVE |BLOOMFIELD CT 06602 0
HARBOR HEALTH {203)4832650 |(20314832644 |14 SYCAMORE WAY BRANFGRD CT 08405 i
FIRST STEP [203)41619580 |(2034 161910 [£35 GRANT 8T BRIDGEPORT CT 05510 19
CONNECTICUT RENAISSANCE, INC. (20213689755 |(203)3689760 |135 MIDDLE STREET BRIDGEPCRT oT N5604 0
NEW PROSPECTS {263)6106252 [{203)6106332 392 PROSPECT 8T BRIOGEPCRT CT 06504 23
SOUTHWEST COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER, INC. |(2063)3306000 [{203)3821438 |968 FAIRFIELD AVENUE |BRIDGEPORT CT 08605 [y
CONNECTICUT RENAISSANCE, INC. {203)3311503 |{203)3311504 |1 LAFAYETIE SQUARE iBRIDGEPORT CT 088064 .0
RECOVERY ADOLESCENT PROGRAM (20313334108 |{203)3314740 [1549 FAIRFIELD AVENUEBRIDGEPORT CT 06505 1)
LIBERATION METHADONE CLINIC (BRIDGEPORT) {(203)3846301 (20333364395 398 MILL HILL AVENLUE |BRIDGEPORT CT DEE10 0
CONNECTICUT RENAISSANCE, NG, 203)3677570 [{203)3677571 [1120 MAIN STREET BRIDGEPORT CT (6604 0
NEW ERA REHABIRLITATION CENTER, ING. 203)3723333 [(203)3747815 |3881 MASN STREET BRIDGEPORT CT QEBOB 0
SOUTHWEST COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER,

INCJOUTPATIENT TREATMENT {20313308054 [{203)3314716 11046 FAIRFIELD AYENU{BRIDGEFQORT CT Q5604 0]
CHILD GUIDAMCE CENTER OF GREATER

BRIDGEPORT, INC, {203]3946529 |(203)3946534 | 180 FAIRFIELD AVENUE|BRIDGEPORT CT 08604 1]
CASA EUGENIO MARIA DE HOSTOS {203)3394112 (2033394115 |§90 ARCTIC STREET BRIDGEPGRT CT 08608 18]
HORIZGNS {203)3333518 {(20313825589 {1635 FAIRFIELD AVE BRIDGEPTRT CT 05605 1 5]
KINSELLA TREATMENT CENTER [203)3352173 |{203)3330754 [1438 PARK AVENUE BRIDGEPORT CT OBR0S ]|
RECQVERY COUNSELING SERVICES {203)3685817 |(203)3946790 [480 BOMD STREET BRIDGEPCORT CT ORST0 Q)
PROJECT COURAGE {203)3354777 |(203)3394110 [592 KOSSUTH STREET {BRIDGEPCORT CT OB508 0|
APT RESIDENTIAL SERVICES {203)3279943 H203)3570988 425 GRANT STREET BRIDGERPCRT o7 DEB0R 125
COMMUNRITY MENTAL MEALTH AFFILIATES, INC. (BENIHBAGHE4 |(860)5856811 |81 NORTH MAIN STREEFBRISTOL CT 05010 3]
HARTFORD DISPENSARY-BRISTOL CLINIC {BEMEBO6433 |(BED)5B96442 1098 FARMINGTOM AVE[BRISTOL CT 06010 [y
UNITED COMMUNITY AND FAMILY SERVICES (86015377676 |(B6OSIFIGTO (212 UPTON ROAD COLCHESTER = 06415 g,
UNITED SERVICES, INC. (BED)2284480 |(BSO}2286921 |233 ROUTES COLUMBIA T 16237 i
[ TRAVISAND NETWORK {203)7941975 |(203)7641967 |24 SHELTER ROCK RD |DANBURY CT 6310 &
CONNECTICUT COUNSELING CENTERS, INC {202)7434698 [(203)7437393 B0 BEAVER BROGK ROADANBURY cT 6810 0
IMCCA (2037024515 (2D3!7482604 38 OLD RIDGESURY RO DANBURY o7 0810 30
NORTH CENTRAL COUNSELING SERVICES (860125358020 |(B60)2535030 |153 HAZARD AVE ENFIELD T OB0EZ 0
NEW CIRECTIONS, INC, OF NGRTH CENTRAL

CONNECTICUT (88017413001 {(B60)74 18332 {113 ELM STREET ENFIELD T DEG82 i |
CHILD & FAMILY AGENCY OF SQUTHEASTERN

CONMNECTICUT, INC. SHILE GUINDANCE CLINIC

ESSEX (B60)7670147 [{BB0)7670148 |190 WESTBROOK RUASESSEX T 06426 0)
FAIRFIELD COUNSELING SERVICES, ING. (20332555777 |(203)2550673 |126 PENFIELD ROAD FAIRFIELD ZT 06824 0
CLAYTOM HOUSE {BBOE590308 (BBD)5591864 |203 WILLIAMS ST GLASTONBURY |CT 05033 15
RUSHFORD CENTER, INC. (BEDJB57RO10 |(BBMIHS78212 110 NATIONAL DRIVE  |GLASTONBURY [CT 05033 D]
GREENWICH YOUTH OPTIONS (203)869134% 1{203}6612289 |55 OLD FIELD POINT ROIGREENWICH CT 06830 [i]
UNITED COMMUNITY & FAMILY SERVICES, INC, (850)3787040_|(BBOD)S767045 |70 MAIN 8T JEWETT CITY CT 06351 0
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES AT HAMDEN {203)2886253 (202)2R80848 |65 CIRCULAR DRIVE HAMDEN o7 06514 v

Page 1
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DN:11-31734-CON
Mountainside Treatment Center
July 2011 o November 2011 Substance shuse e fom DPH_2
NAVE PHOME EAX ADDR1 TN STATE 7| BEDS
CHILDREN'S CENTE1 OF HAMODEN, INC., THE (20312482116 (2022870815 (1400 WHITNEY AVENUE[HAMDEN T 05517 i [
COMMUNITY RENEWAL TEAM, INC, BEHAVIORAL I
HEALTH (85002400640 {B60IBO5604 136 CLARK 8T HARTEQRD CT 04120 0
VILLAGE FOR FAVTLIES & CHILDREN, PIG. (362364511 1(860)2318449 (105 SPRING ST HARTFORD CT 05103 i
COVMUINITY HENSWAL 1AM, INC SEHAVIORAL :
HEALTH 88035603632 [{BE0)3R0E850 90 RETREAT AVE HARTFORD cT 05108 : i
SALVATION ARMY ADULT REAABILTATION
CENTER, THE {RRIIS27R106 [{BA0)5245581 1333 HOMESTEAD AVE  [HARTFORD cT 051320440 | 1100
CATH0OLE CHARITIES, [NC. 18505228241 [{BA0)5271915 20 ASYLUN AVE HARTFORD CT 06105 0
HARTEORD BEAAVIORAL HEALTH {BR0I7272703 | (B60)5482045 (ONE MAIN STREET AARTZORD cT 05106 [
HARTFORD SEHAVIORAL HEALTH {BEMS480101 {BR0S24T7E1 126550 WAIN STREST HARTFORD cT 05105 0
JINSTITJIE FOR THZ HIGPANES FANILY {(8BIN5271124 [(BA0)7242538 145 WADEWORTH STREFHARTFORD cT 06106 : 0
HOGAR CREA WOMEN & CENTER (8R0ID5 17006 [{BAM2334733 | 164-166 BARTHOLDMEWHARTFORD CT 05106 20
COVMLINITY RENEWAL | EAM INC. BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH SEAVICES (BB 149200 (B60IT148578 675 TOWER AVENUE  {HARTFORD cT 06112 0
COVMINTY RENSWAL TEAM. THC. ASIAN FAMILY
SERVIGES (BE0A1RTT0 (6012252706 {1921 PARK STREET  {HARTFGRD o1 o6108 0
HARTFORD DISPENSARY-16-18 WESTON STREET 4860275100 [{BHM2448017 {16-18 WESTON STREETIHARTZORD o1 06120 0
FRESH START (EE0MSE05805 (BBMEZTI05 |17 ESSEX STRER T AARTFGRD T 06120 21
VILLAGE PO FAVILIES § CHILDREN,NC (EE0IEAETT (86H208 7384 1351 WETHERSH ELD AVIHARTEGRS &F 36774 ]
DETOXIFICATION BERTER" HBROIT 143701 {BAN7 148974 1506 BLUE HILS AVENUIHARTFORD cT na112 73
HARTEORD DISDENSARY/DOCTORS CLINIE {BANIG252181_{(BAMI5267332 1345 MAIN §7 HARTFORD o1 05108 f)
COVMINITY HEALTH SERVICES, NG, 1850]249‘96_2:"5 HE6MB0B1540 (500 ALBANY AVENUE  [HARTFORD CT 06120 4]
VIZCAGE FOR FAVILIES & CHILDREN, INC, (BB0)2384811 {BADI2318440 11680 ALBANY AVENUE [HARTFGAD 5 85105 8
ENT COUNSELIMG CENTER (BB0)7143704 ({BARY7 148074 |16 COVENTRY STREET [HARTEORD T 6112 B
(BE0)5239768 (BENY2325049 R4S ~ARMINGTON AVENHARTEGRD &7 6105 |
COMMUNITY SUBSTANGE ASUSE CENTER. INC.  {880)2478300 (850153487325 |55 FISHFRY STREET  |4ARTRORD T 06120 8
COVENTRY HOUSE (B60)7145703 (6017696788 A€ COVENTRY STREET [HARTFGRD [ 36112 16|
HOGAR CREA {B50)527 7440 | (850)5278744 (33 CENTZR STREET  [HART-GRD T FRES [ |
YOUTH CHALLENGE MISSION FOR WOMEN (850)5272000 {BAH)A2H5790 (32 ATWOOD STREET  [HARTFORD T DE1GS 8]
YOUTH GHALLENGE OF CONNECTICUT. NG -
MEN'S RESIBENTIAL CENTER (B60)7285109 {B6L)S240418 151719 MAY ST HARTEORD T 98105 35
HARTEORD HHEPENSARY HENDERSONZIGHNSON
CLINIC (850)5275100 |(860)2801080 112 - 14 WESTON 5T HARTFORD CT 06103 I
HIGH WATC H RECOVERY CENTER (#5MD273772_{BB0)9271840 |62 CARTER RD KENT T 06757 73]
UNITED SERVICES, NG, {BBM7742020 |{BBO)7740826 1007 NORTH MAIN STREDAYVILLE T 0f241 [}
MNEW AOPE BEHAVIORAL 4EALTH § SUBSTANCE
ABUSE CLINIG (86015454801 [{BE0YB472032 |008 MAIN STREST, SUIT|VANCHESTER _|CT 06040 : o
HARTFORD DISPENSARY-MAMGCHESTER GLINIG _ ({BBQIG433210 KASMIG435211 1335 BROAD §TREET  [MANCHESTER  (CT 08040 0
GENESIS CENTER o (BAOIBAGIBRE 4BB0IG408576 587 EAST MIDDLS TURNVANCHESTER [T DE04D 0]
COVMUNITY Crl_D GUIDANCE CUNIE, HE (BAG)E432101 AE0W4AE1A70 317 NORTH MAIN STREANANCHESIER _[CT 08042 0]
COVMINTY HEALTH CENTER OF WHEREVER ! -
YOU ARE SHELTES NOW (20272374020 (20332374020 143 ST. CASIMIR §T MERIDEN T 45450 u
RUSAFORD CENTER NG (20316505280 (2036542799 1885 CADDGCK AVENUE [WERIDEN T 8450 0
COUNECTION COUNSELING CENTER, THE (20318301568 (20510300608 [17B STATE STREET  |MERIDEN T 0E450 0
CHILD GUIDANCE CLINIC FDR CENTRAL
CONNECTICUT, NG, {202)2355 {202)2382010 MERIDEN cT 08451 ¢
WHERZVER ¥OuU ARE EDDY CENTER (85003425526 {BS0IRE30801 = VIDDLETOWN  |CT 08457 [
WHEREVER ¥OU ARE SHEPHERD HOME {BAMALANTER ((BEMBTSR0T (112 30W LANE [VMIRDLETOWNeT 06457 [y

Page 2
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Juty 2011 10 November 2011 Subsiercs 2buse ¢ from DREH 2

NANE PHONE. FAK DDA TOWN BIAE 175 EEEY
HALLIZ HOUSE WOMEN AND GHILDAENS l
GCENTER (BEMA4I5H 13 HBRMB4SRENE |08 EASTERN DRIVE  IMIDDLETOWN _ICT 08457 8
RUSHFORD CENTZR [N {BR034B0300 [{BEO34BRa17 1260 GILVEX 8T MIDDLETOWN (GT 05457 58|
CONNECTION HOUSE (BB0j34I5512 HAROYS4ao0R0 167 LIBERIY &1 MIDDLETOWN _ [GT 08457 T4
CONNECTION COUNSELING CENTER, THE {880)3435510 [{B60)3435507 [196 COURT STREET  [MIDD_ETOWN _ IGT 08457 0]
CATAGLIC CHARFES, NC. (08746270 (20018743301 203 HIGH STREST MILFORD et GRIED i
BRIDGES. A COMMUNITY SUP20RT SYSTEM {20318 T8H3RS [{2N3)877IN8R 949 BRIDEEPORT AVEN[MILFORD o7 DEABG )
COMMUNITY HEALTH CEMTER OF WHEREVER i

YOU ARE PRUDENCE CRANDALL (BS0)2255187 |{BBOGTBI042 |504 BURRITT ST NEW BRITAIN _CT 08353 0
COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER OF WHEREVER

YOU ARE FRIENDSHIP SERVICES CENTER (BRI2200211 ((BE0YHIR0040 |241-249 ARCH ST NEW BRITAIN CT 0a0ae 0
WHEZLER CLINIC, INC. [BE0I2246360 {{BRO)2297302 {75 MORTH #OUNTAIN S[NEW SRITAIN cT DEOS3 1]
COMVUNITY MENTAL HEALTH AFFILIATES ING, (85012248192 [(BR0IR246068 |55 WINTHRGR STREET INEW BRITAIN T 5052 0
COMYLNITY VENTAL HEALTH AFFILIATES, INC.  |(86012294850 |(BE0)B273472 |5 HART STREE NEWBRITAIN  CT {08032 a
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH APFLIATES, INC. (83012222778 [(B60)2233207 126 RUSSSLL STREET  |NEWSRITAN  CT 05052 0
ALUANCE TREATMENT CENTER, INC. (BARIZ237707 |(REO)Z237708_132 HIGALAND STREST |NEWSRITAN _ CT 08052 18
FARRE.LL TREATMENT CENTER (B60N2254641 [{ABO)2254R42 [586 WAIN BT MEW BRITAIN  CT 98031 24
HARTFGRD DISPENSARY NEW BIUTAIN CLINIC (856098273313 |/BB018273317 |70 WHITING ST MEW SRITAN  (CT 0850 3
WHEELER CLINIE, NE. (BEMZE3RE85 |{AE0)2255162 |36 RUESELLSTREET  [NEW SRITAINCT BR052 [
HISPANGS UNIDOS, INE. {203/7810226 [{20%)7R10229 [116 SAERVAN AVE NEW HAL CT 06511 o
PARK STREET INN (0318483061 [{202)6241801 |98 PARK STREET NEW HAVEN BT DRAT1 [i
ELN CITY WOMEN AND CHILDREMN'S CENTER AND

THE CONNECTION COUNSELING CENTER {205)7529109 |(203)7529112 |48 HOWE STREE NEW HAVEN or 6511 15
HEVY ERA AEHABLITATION CENTER, ING. (2035622101 [{205)5822102 |311 EART STREZT NEW HA ST 06511 0
STATE STRZET COUNSELING SERVICES (203)503366G |(203)5030662 |011-913 STATE STREST [NEW HAVE T 76511 0
GUTRATIENT CLINIC (20317872111 |(208)7875500 |205-200 ORANGE STRENEW HAVEN — €T 66411 Y
GATHGUIE CHARITIES. ING (0317872207 (203)7723626 {501 LOMBARD 5T NEW HA T 86513 Y
CROSSROADS, INC. (203)3870094_[(203)9074513 |44 EAST RAMSDELL STINEW HA T 06515 [y
ADLLT PEYCHIATRIC CUNICACHILD AND FAMLY i
GUIDAMCE CLINIC (2075033055 (20215033206 |300-428 COLUMBUS AVENEW HAVEN (o) 08519 9
NORTHSIDE COMMUNITY OUTPATIENT

SSRVICESICHILD AND FAMILY GUIDAMCE CLINIC  {20%15023472 [(202)5033478 |226 DIXWELL AVENLE JNEW HAVEN cT 08511 i
SOUTH GENTRAL HEHABILTATION CENTER (203)5023300 [(202)4013362 [232 CEDAR STREET  {NEW HAVEN o1} 06510 ).
CACEEROADE BIC (20313870004 _[{202)3872610 |54 EAST RAMESDELL 5T [NEW HAVEN [y 08315 174
ACCESS CENTZR (20317814645 (20317814524 |ONE LONG WHARF NEW HAVEN cT 05311 i
GRANT STHEET PARTNERSHIZ (20%E033356 (20315033370 |62 GRANT STREET NEW HAVEN o 08515 i
WULTICUL TURAL AVMBULATORY ADDICTION

SERVICES . (2034057710 [{200)4067713 426 EAST STREST  |NEW HA et 08511 0
ORCHARD HILL TREATMENT SERVICES (2037874805 [(20NTEIAIG0 |HA0ELLA T GRASSO BONEW HA T 05515 i3
LEGION AVENLE CLINIC (037814740 [{205)7814751_|465 CONGRESS AVENU{NEW HAVE ) 08511 il
MCCANEW MILFORD (BBDIABR7A12 |(ABINALAIN2% B2 BRIDGE &1 NEW MILFORD __iGT 06776 0]
NEWTOWN YOUTH AND FAMILY SERVICES, IWC.  |{2034268163 §(202)2704338 |17 CHURCH HILL RD [NEWTOWN cT 05470 v
NGRTH HAVEN COMMUNITY SERVICES (202)2095321 [(203)2343842 |5 LINSLEY 5T NORTHHAVEN (GT 05475 0|
STONINGTON INSTITUTZ (BBRA6300R [(REOMABININ |75 SWANTOWN HILL ID|NGRTH STONINGCT [ 3
CONNECTICUT RENAISSANCE [NC. (20218642015 | (2038556474 |17 HIGH ST NDAWALK [ 08851 g
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July 2611 10 November 2011 Subsieince abuse fac from DPH_2
NAYE PHONE AR TADDR TOWN STALE [ZIF BELS
FAMILY & CHILDREN'S AGENCY, INC. 20318558765 (20318383325 19 MOTT AVE NORWALK cT 0850 ! [
EONNECTIGUT COUNSELING CZNTERS, INC, {203)8388508_[{203)8527021 {20 NORTH MATN STREE MO RWAK CT 05854 ; [}
CONNECTICUT REHAIGSANCE, L. H203)8B6R341 (2038545682 14 BYINGTON PLACE  INORWALK T 05852 [}
PROJECT REWARD (20318318301 {(203)8383325 1165 FLAX HRL RD NORWALK CT 05834 0
ALTRJISM JOUSE “OR MEN (RA01BRIGA 1L H{ABCIBBOB414 (318 MAIN STREET NORWICH CT 05380 13
CATHOLIG CHARITIES . DIOCESE DF NORWICS,
BC, {(BE0IBBORIAS (BAC)REOIE5R 1331 MAIN STREET NORWICH cT 06360 o]
i

UNITED COMMUNITY & FAMILY SERVICES, INC.  (BE0IBD27D42 [(850)8233002 47 TOWN STREET NORWICH CT 06350 i
HART RO A0 DISPCNSARY - NI H CLINIG (BG0)B8E044G | (ARDIBBAZ78S 772 WEST THAMES STR|NDRWICH (% 06350 g
GUTPATIENT TREATMENT (BED)BA93178 |(ARO)AZSaRA0 221 MAIN STREZT NORWIGH [ FERE 0
CONMEGTION COJNEELING CENTER, THE (BSC)39T65380 | (AEC13956582 | J62 WA o1 OLD SAYBROGK 1T B6475 i
ORANGE FANLY COUNSELING {702)7956698 |(203)8773088 | 605-A ORANGE CENTER URANGE CT 08477 i
YOUTH CHALLENGE BIBLE TRAMMG CENTER (86005648400 |(BG0)Z300851 1111 NORTH STERLING RMOGSUR i 08354 g
UNITED SERVICES, INC, (86MI5646100 {(BBGIGE4G110 303 PUTHAM ROAD WAJREGAN cT 05387 3
WHEELER CLINIC {R66)7953500_|(B6017937290 (01 NORTHWEST DRIVE {PLAINVILLE eT 0052 [
CATHOLIC CHARITIES, DIOCESE OF NORWICH, H
BN 1{B60)3420780 |(B60)3424226 |553 PORTLAND-GOBALTPORT AND <T 18480

SHFORD CENTER NG o (BR0)3A23252 1BE0)3424586 NSTREEY SPORT.AND €T |dsaso :
TLESTONENEW TIPS CENTERPATIWAYS (BRGYS2H 1850 {BE0IDESETEL 35T POMFRET STREET |PUTNAM <T 05260
MCCARIDGERELD {2031438R6R0 (20718048386 (50 EAST RIDGE RGAD [RIDGEFIELD [ 05877
TRINITY GLEN (85015726680 (BB0)5723021 |145 WEST CORNWALL HEHARON T 05065 :
LIBERTY CENTER (203)9440365 |(205)0440139 (30 CONTROLS DRIVE  |SHELTON [ 06484
STAFPFORD FAVILY SERVICES (BB015844: 1A _|STAFEORE SPRINGT G
INTEGRATED CARECLINIC (203 780 STAMFORD cY i
[CONNECTICUT RENAISSANTE E. (20518024441 1(303)6027782 (1471 FRANKLIN §T. FRANSTAMEORD i 05901
LIBERATION PROGRANS, NG STAMFORD FAMILY
AND YOUTH OPTICNS (2033561986 (2036041160 {103 WEST SR0AD ST [STAMEORD %43 05902 o
[LIBERATION CLINIC (2033567960 [(20519679475 125 MAIN STREET STAMFORD [ 05901 i [}
LISERATION HOUSE (20373561980 (20313530588 119 MAIN STREET STAMFORD CT 05901 6y
MAIN STREET CLINIG (Z02)356 1980 j(202)3521748 |17 MAIN STREET STAMFGRD T A0 1 [
FAMILIES IN RECOVERY PROGRAN H203)3521800 2033231805 {141 FRANKLIN STREET [STAMEGRD CT 069401 i 10
VIEW20INT RECOVERY PROGRAW, (20315061053 (20313561054 1104 RICAMOND HILL AV STAMFORD cT 05902 12
FARILY RESOURCE ASSOCIATES. .G (20313784514 [(203)3780433 (3000 VAN STREET STRATEORD CT 03514 [
CENTER FOX HUMAN SERVICES (203138BBB02 1(205)2B6836G 12 RESEARGT DIANE  [STRATEORD CT 05615 [
WATKINS NETWORK (P50)4827242 (ReEMBIFIER 357 WAINST TORAMGTON _ [CT 05750 7|
CATHOUC CHARITIEE. INC. (A60)4B253558 (RER)IB92984 132 GROVE STREET  [TORRINGTON _ 1oT 06750 q
MCCALL HOUSE (BEN)A 982105 (RRE40R2111 127 MIGEON AVE TORRINGTON 1671 06790 14
WMCCALL FOUNDATION [(B6)4062100 |(BBOMDGZ111 (58 HIGH 37 TORANGTON [CT 06790 el
CARNES WEEKS CENTER (ECC14062107 [(BE0MO80100 [58B HIGH STREET TORRINGTON [ET 36790 24
HOCKANUM VALLEY COMMUNITY COUNCIL, NG [{BA0)8720825 |(RED)A7I0384 (27 NAEK RD, SWITE 4 [VERNON T 06086 0
GENESIS CENTER {R60)B7 18207 |(BBO)B5H20Y |43 WEST VAR STREET [VERNOMN T OFO56 [
COMMUNITY HEALTH GENTER OF WHREREVER
YOU ARE MASTE NNA _HZ03)8783042 H203)B783042 45 NORTH ALA cT 08492 o
MECATWATERS Y (20315570643 {205)5070854 (228 MEADOW STRE CT_ T logioz ]
CATHOLIC CHARITIES, INC. (202)5989350 {208)7579753 118 WOLCOTT STREET [WATERBIRY ¥ 08705 0
PATRICK F. MCALLIERE CENTER (203)3461931_{203)3461935 170 CENTRAL AVENJE | |WATERBURY [y 08702 25
CATAQLIC CHARITIES, INC, (F03)7541198 {(203)5759675 (8h CHURCH BTREET  |WATERBURY  [CT 08702 [
WOMEN AND CHILOREN'S HROGRA o Hon3)h7433(1 (20315743315 70 BEACON STREZT  |WATSRBURY  |GT 06704 E
FAWILY INTERVENTION CENTER (20375321563 (20317565032 122 CHASE RIVER ROADWATEREIAY T 05704 [V

AISSANCE WEST {203)5D18010 (20315818585 466 WEST wAN STAECTWATERBIRY €T 05702 5

MORRIS FOUNDATION, NG, (20335743685 {(203)5976459 {26-NORTH ELM STREETWATERBUAY ___CT 0R708 27

Page 4




Page 213

DN: 11-31734-CON
Mountainside Treatment Center
Sy 20T 10 Hovember 2011 Substarce abuse e from DPEH 2

| e R EAX TADDR] TOWN STATE [ZIP TAEDS
MORRIS SOJNDATION, G, OUTRATIENT i
SERVICES {20317551145 (20315743315 402 EAST MAIN STREET|WATERBYAY _ |CT 05702 %
CONNECTICJUT JUMIOR RECUBLIC (203)7579000 (20317569922 (R0 CRUSPECT STRELT [WATERBIAY _ [CF 05702 [
MORRIS FOUNDATION, INC. (Z05)5741419 (20315784180 {142 GRIGAS STREST [WATERBUAY _ [CF 06704 [
RENAIGGAMGE CAST (O03) 7502343 {20317656002 21 WOLCOTT ST VWATERBURY  [CT 06702 32
TREVEREND ELWAHD o DEMPSEY LI
SERVICES (203)7568084 1120317568084 (500 WATERTOWN AVE |WATERBJRY _ |CT 86708 a4
CONNECTICUT COUNSEING GERTERS, BIC. (203)7558874 {20a)5979670 4 MIDLAND ROAD WATERBJRY __[CT 86705 1
BRIDGES..A COMMUNITY SUPPORT SYSTEM, INC. [{203)9375412 (20319371859 1270 CENTER STREST _|WEST HAVEN T 06318 o}
WEST HAVEN AEALTH CENTER COUNSELING
SERVICES (203)3833075_[{203)5033414 {288 MAIN STREET WEST SAVEN  ICT 96318 [
FOSTIVE DIRECTIONS-THE CENTER FOR
FREVENTION AND RECOVERY, INC. (203)2277644 1203)2270037 1420 POST ROAD WEST WESTPOXT T B8R0 2
MCCAL. COUNDATIONANTNG 12D GEFE (BB0YI3R1516 |(B60)1062111 251 NORTH MAR ST [WINGTED [%13 0BI58 a}
HARTFORD DISFENSARY-WILLIMANTIC €LINIC {{8B0}4A67990 ({8A1)4564342 [54-568 BUSTON POST ROWILLIMANTIC CT BE226 ﬁl
UNNTED GERVICES, INC, [(BA0562261 |(BB0MA01367 (152 NANSFIELD AVEN{WILLIVANTIC | [CT 05226 o}
NEW PERCERTIONSRIGHT TORN {B6014500151 (EA0R507152 (A4 NORTH STHEET WILLIVANTIC |G Of2E6 B
[FERCEFTIONHOUSE THEA0S07To8 [(BA0ISHFIS1 134 CHURCH ST WILLIVANTIC €T DB2E6 260)
TRANEITIGNS QUTPATENT SERVICESTHOMAS
MURPHY CENTER {B50)4561769 [(BBO1$233351 1491 WEST MAIN ST |WILLIVANTIC  |CT 05226 14
MOUNTANSIORE TREATMENT CENTER (25018241357 {(26618244021 167 SOUTA CANAAN AD|CAMAAN 5] 0E018 S
DARTEN YOUTH OPTIONS {203)6558073 [{200)6558074 |2 RENSHAW ROAD DARIEN &) hEERG) i [i
INTERCOMMUNITY INC. (BE0)5605000 {BEM5AS4514 287 MAIN ST ZAST AARTFORDICT 05118 : 0
NTERGOMMUNITY, ING. (B6N)5655900 [(B6M5605614 2R MAN ST ZAST HARTFORDIGT B118 0
PACES COUNGELING ASSOCIATES, NG, (BE)52R3238 |(BA0)2182480 951 MAIN STREZT EAST RARTFORDICT 06108 : [i
CHILD & SANEY AGENCT OF SOUTHEASTERM
CONMECTICUT, INC. GROTONMYSTIC CAMPUS  |(BB01498217 |(BE0MA408320 (581 POQUONNOCK ROAGROTON T DE340 0
STONINGTON INSTITUTE (SE049081 1 [(BEDM491332 1428 LONG HILL ROAD  {GROTON cT 0E340 0
STOMINGTON INSTITUTE {BBOAH3000 H{ERMH453031 11353 GOLD STAR SIGHIGROTON T [$1:%231) o
MOTHER'S RETAEAT AND THE CONNECTION
COUNSELINGCENTER (BB0MO52107 (8604052102 {542 LONG HILL ROAD  IGROTON et 88240 8
[NEW SERCEPTIONSRIGHT TORN {BR0V7 793652 (8807705080 15 WATER AT DANIELSON [e1) 05239 [
TRANSITIONS QUTDATIENT SERVICES {BERI7747179 ((BB0Y7796526 157 COVMERCE AVENUE DANIELEON T [ty [}
LEBANDN PINES LONG TERY, CARE {BR0)ARO1717 |(BEO1B852361 (37 CAKMP MO0V SANDN [oii 5245 10
CONNECTICUT JUNGOR REPURLIC BRMBE/B423 [{RE0IBGTIA79 1550 GOSHEN ROAD LITCHFIELD cT 05759 3]
CATHOLIC CHARITIES 850j4435328 [{BE0}436013 (2B HUNTINGTON ST NEW L ONDON cT DB320 4]
ALTRJISY HOJSE FOR WOMEN 26014478021 1{AB0)AS 78021 1000 BANK ST NEWLONDON _|CY 05320 10
CHILD & SAMILY AGENCY OF SOUTHEASTERN
CONNEOTICUT, ING. SMITH BENT CHILDREN'S
CENTER (B8M4422797 |(BROTO1R7TE |7 VALIXHALL STREET  |NEW LGNDOM |0t 05326 s
LHITED COMMUMITY B FAMILY SERVICES, INC.  {ES0M424319 [(860)4572334 1406 AYONET STREET {NEW LONDON [T 05320 [y
SOUND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INE. (BROMS30058 [(BA014IA540 165 STATE STREET - SUNEW LONDDN___ICT 06320 o
ALTRJISM ACUTE CARE 8 EVALUATION (BA0K4T1717 ((BADAATIB3Y 147 GO 5T NEW LONDON [T OR320 20
HARTFORD DISPENSARY/NEW LONDON CLNIC (BA0144 72233 (BAMA47266% (931-030 BANK STREET |NEW LONDOM T 5320 U]
ALTRUISM HOUSE FOR WOMEN 185014421017 [{BA0MS574424 162-64 COIM STREET _ |NEW _ONDGON [T BE3E0 i1

Page 5




Page 214
DN: 11-31734-CON
Mountainside Treatment Center

Attachment Il — Additional Letters of Support

POSITIVE DIRECTIONS PAGE B2/B2

<<\

Positive Directions

@1/12/2812 11:25 2e32270037

The Center for Pr&veﬁtion & Recovery

January 12, 2012

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS# 13HCA
P.Q.Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0208

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE dib/a Mountainside Treatmen: Center

Dear Mz Martone:

We have made many referrals to Mountainside Treatment Center to secure residential
treatment. Qur experience (and the experience of clients reporting back to us) with

Mountainside's program has been very pesitive. The staff and program have exhibited

‘ s residential program. Often
this two-step (facility} process and the difficulty in finding an available detox bad have delayed
and sometimes diminished the client's initial motivation and willingness to enter treatment.

Certainiy Mountainside's ability to provide detox would positively change the flow of treatment,
| feel contident that the staff at Mauntainside will provide equally good treatment for
detoxification as they have for continuing treatment.

! support the above dpplication. Mountainside’s abifity to provide detmdfication will banefit the
people seaking treatment, the community of freatrment providers and the public haalth of the
State of Connecticut

Rosp lly,

(~a A5, Lape
Bab Vietra, MS, LADC
Clinical Director

4Z0 Post Road Waest, Westport, CT 065580
(203) 227.7644 Fax: (203) 227.0087
Www.positivedirections.org
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JAN-18-2812 B8:25 From: 9143281171 Tor 1888T498TS2 F.171

THE GREENWICH CENTER

90 Grecnwich Hibls Drive % Waller Avenu,

Greenwich, CT D683t Sudie 101

203 249-7678 phone While Plains, NY 10601

014.328 3433 fux 414 328 1171 phane
914 328 3433 fis

FORENSIC EVALUATIONS

BAIR TESTING

DRUG SCREENS

CONSULTATIONS

ARDICTION TREATMENT

January 3, 2012

Ms, Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Accass

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
F.0). Box 340308

Hartford, CT 068134-0308

Re: CON Application: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
Dear Ms. Martone:

I am writing in full support of the above application. 1 have worked closely and made mary
refetrals to Mountainside since they opened. Many times my patients have required deiox in order to start
inpatient rehab and have been forced to go long distances in order 10 receive those serviges. They have
grone lo facilitics such as Arms Acres in NY to Greenwich Hospitaf and then up to Canagu. It makes a
stgnificant difference, in my professional opinion, to have the patient only be in one prjgram for their
enlire treatment. Tn fact, it seems to me alter thirly three years of practice in this field, thpt all inpatient
rehabs should be required o have a detox unit, T refer at least fve to six patients a year t& Mountainside,
and some of these are aficr interventions. 1 have had problems on three cases this past year alonc because
Greenwich, Arms and three other detoxes I tricd, had no detox beds, There is a clear shortage of detox
beds in the region and approval of this application shoeld be cxpedited to help those suffering from the
disease of addiction and cannot find proper care die to 2 shortage of beds. These 16 beds will make a
significunt difference 10 the inadequate detox system thal is now in place.

Mountainside offers one of the best programs in (he region and certainly use bcisji practice,
evidence based (reaiment. A detox program would enhance the experience not just for fhe patient but also
for the referent. | have had to use other facilitics, not as good, at times because the patieﬂt refzsed 1o be
admitted to one hospital for detox be discharzed and then travel 10 another facility be admitled thers and
continue the treatment process.

1 am happy to answer any guestions, the committee may have but urge acceptangs of this
applicaticn as soon as possible.

i

R[y ond A, Griffin, Ph.D., CASAC, LADC
Diplomate & Fellow ABMP
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237 Taconic Rd.
Greenwich, CT 06831

January 3, 2012

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Accass
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308 :
Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: CON Applicatiorf: MC1 HEALTHCARE d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Ctr.

Dear Ms. Martone:

: ;
3

I am writing this letter of support regarding Mountainside’s CON application for
the addition of a detox unit at their facility. As an Interventionist in Connecticut
and the New England|area in particular, the absence of a detox unit on their
campus has been a factor on occasions in my decision not to send a client there.

Mountainside is a wonderful facility, with an excellent clinical staff. In this
geographic area, it provides a unigue, well-rounded program that incorporates
programs attending to the mind, body, and spirit, while people are in recovery
from addiction. | have had many positive experiences with the staff and good
clinical outcomes from their work as an acute care treatment facility.

However, Connecticut is tacking in access fo detox units, At times, we have to
wait and scramble to det a bed just at the momeant our client has agreed to go to
treatment which can derail the process. This should not be an issue after all the
work we put into preparing or persuading a person in distress to get help. Thare
have been occasions when | have sent a person by necessity to a detox far away
from the Mountainside campus, and the client then considered the detox their
treatment and refused to continue their recovery when it required being
transported to another facility (Mountainside). This is not acceptable and it is a
liability to the individual's recovery frorq their substance abuse addiction.

| urge you to approve the 16 additional detox beds at Mountainside in order for
them to offer a full continuum of care on campus. | am certain there would be no
problem whatsoever in filling these beds. As an interventionist this would
definitely factor into the number of referrals | would send them,
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Please consider the impact that insufficient detox beds in CT has on the ever-
increasing number of persons struggling with the disease of addiction. For so
-many people, detox is the first step towards a life of sobriety, The provision of
additional detox beds will certainly improve the quality of Connecticut's

substance abuse services, which will have an impact on families far and wide.
Thank you for your consideration'in this matter of urgent importance.

Sincerely,

Paige Stetson, LPC, LMHC
Interventionist

237 Taconic Rd.

Greenwich, CT 06831
203 898-2512
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Karen Banoff ) 203-459-1601

A facsimile fron

To: Steven Lazarus (OHCA) kmb consulting, Iic
Fax number: (860) 418-7053 CHFTIMIZE YOUR HEALTH CARE PLANSING RESGURCES

Karen M. Banoff
Date: 2/7/2012 _, - (203) 459-1601

Regarding: Docket Number: 11-31734-CON
Mountainside Treatment Center

Cormments:

Public Notice copy disp_iaying newspaper name {(upper right corner)
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Welcome to the Office of
Health Care Access. Our
Mission is to ensure that the
citizens of Connecticut have
access to a quality health care
delivery system.

CT State-Wide Health Care Facilities and Services Plan Advisory Body

Faiers

Cutpatient Data Work Group

News:

NEW 1 On February 17, 2012 OHCA received the CON Application of Community Mental
Health Affiliates, Inc. (CMHA) for the transfer of ownership of CMHA from Central
Connecticut Health Alliance to CMHA. Filed under Docket No.: 12-31750-CON.

NEW 1 On February 24, 2612, CHCA Deemed Complete the CON application of WBC
Cennecticut East, LLC to establish a Partial Hospital and Intensive outpatient program for
the treatment of adults and adolescents with Eating Disorders in South Windsor, filed
under Docket No.: 11-31731-CON.

NEW It On February 23, 2012, OHCA deemed Completé the CON Application of MCI
Healthcare LLC d/b/a Mountzinside Treatfent Center for thejincrease of licensed bed
capacity by 16, filed under Docket:No.: 11-31734-CON.

WEW 11 On February 9, 2012 OHCA Feceived the-CON Application of Yale-New Haven
Hospital and Saint Raphael Healthcare Systerm d/b/a Hospital of Saint Raphael, Inc. for
Yale-New Haven Hospital to acquire ownership of Saint Raphael Healthcare System, Inc.
and certain associated assets. Filed under Docket No.: 12-31747-CON.

On lanuary 30, 2012, CHCA deemed Complete the CON Application of Eastern
Connecticut Health Network for the acquisition of four MRI Scanners located in the towns
of Enfield, Glastonbury, Middietown and South Windsor, as filed under Docket Number
11-31737-CON.

On January 27, 2012 OHCA received the CON Application for Yale-New Haven Hospital's
proposal to increase its licensed general hospital bed count by 70, from 896 to 966
licensed beds, at a total capital expenditure of $1,438,919, Docket Number 12-31745-
CON.

On January 17, 2012, OHCA deemed Compiete the CON Application of Lawrence &
Memorial Hospital for the acquisition of a PET-CT scanner to be located at its L&M
Diagnostic Imaging at Crossroads in Waterford, as filed under Docket Number 11-31730-
CON.

On January 6, 2012, OHCA deemed Complete the CON Application of Eastern Connecticut
Health Network and Manchester Memorial Hospital for the transfer of ownership of
Evergreen Imaging Center to an affiliate of ECHN, as fited under Docket Number 11-
31736-CON.

On December 09, 2011 OHCA received the CON Application of Eastern Connecticut Health
Network, Inc. and Mandell & Blauw, M.D.s, P.C. for the Acquisition by Eastern Connecticut
Health Network, Inc. of the Open MRI scanners currently operated by Mandell & Blau,
M.D.'s P.C. under Docket No.: 11-31737-CQN,

http://www.ct.gov/dph/cwp/view.asp7a=3902&q=277344

Contact Us

3/13/2012




STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

May 11, 2012
IN THE MATTER OF:

An Application for a Certificate of Need Notice of Final Decision
filed Pursuant to Section 19a-638, C.G.S. by: Office of Health Care Access
Docket Number: 11-31734-CON

MCT Healthcare, LL.C Increase in Licensed Bed Capacity
d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center

To:  Mr. Terence Dougherty
President & CEO
Mountainside Treatment Center
P.O.Box 717
Canaan, CT 06018

Dear Mr. Dougherty:

This letter will serve as notice of the Final Decision of the Office of Health Care Access in the
above matter, as provided by Section 19a-638, C.G.S. On May 11, 2012, the Final Decision was
rendered as the finding and order of the Office of Health Care Access. A copy of the Final
Decision is attached hereto for your information.

[ VY Yo
Kimberly R. Martone
Director of Operations

Enclosure
KRM:swl

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860} 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053



Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
Certificate of Need Application

Final Decision

Applicant: MCI Healtheare, LLC d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
Docket Number: 11-31734-CON
Project Title: Increase in Licensed Bed Capacity by 16 Beds

Project Description: MCI Healthcare, LLC d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center
(“Mountainside” or “Applicant”) is proposing to increase its licensed bed capacity by 16 beds.

Procedural History: On January 2, 2012, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA™)
received a Certificate of Need (“CON”) application from the Applicant for the above-
referenced proposal. Mountainside published notice of its intent to file the CON Application in
the Waterbury Republican, on October 21, 22 and 23, 2011. OHCA received no responses from
the public concerning the Applicant’s proposal and no hearing requests were received from the
public per General Statutes §19a-639a (e).

Findings of Fact

1. Mountainside is located at 187 South Canaan Road, Route 7, Canaan, Connecticut and
1s licensed as a Facility for the Care or Treatment of Substance Abusive or Dependent
Persons by the State of Connecticut, Department of Public Health (“DPH™). Ex. A, p.183.

2. Mountainside opened in 1998 with 50 beds for rehabilitation, intermediate and long-
term care as classified by DPH. In 2006, it expanded to 66 beds and in 2010, it reduced
its bed complement to 62. The bed reduction was necessary in order to create physical
space for critically important support functions (e.g., rooms for group activities). Ex. A,
p. 17.
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3.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The Applicant is currently licensed by DPH to offer 62 Intermediate and Long Term

Treatment and Rehabilitation Beds. Ex. A, p.183.

Mountainside is a residential drug addiction and alcoholism rehabilitation facility that
uses a multi-disciplinary approach to treat individuals suffering from addiction and
provides individual addiction treatment and aftercare. Ex. A, p. 17.

Mountainside’s current treatment methods include, but are not limited to, one-on-one
counseling, group counseling, gender-specific groups, family counseling, the 12-Step
education, a mind body spirit program, adventure-based initiatives and continuing care
planning. The Center also offers day and evening and outpatient treatment as well as
aftercare (e.g., Sober House). Ex. A, p. 17.

The Applicant’s staff include licensed and certified social workers and counselors. Ex.
A pg 17.

Mountainside currently uses all of its 62 licensed beds for rehabilitation care, and

occupancy levels reach 100% regularly throughout the year, resulting in waiting lists.
Ex. A, p. 18

The proposed increase in bed capacity at Mountainside will increase the total bed
complement by 16 beds to a total bed capacity of 78 beds. These additional beds will
be utilized to provide residential detoxification and evaluation (“detoxification”)
services. Ex. A, p. 18-19.

The proposed detoxification beds will be housed in a newly constructed wing of the
main facility, which will be connected by a glass-enclosed walkway. Ex. A, p. 18.

Residential detoxification generally requires five to seven days to complete before an
individual is ready to begin substance abuse rehabilitation treatment, which typically
continues for 28 days. Ex. A, p. 18.

Mountainside will provide level 3.7 residential detoxification services as defined by the
American Society of Addiction Medicine’s five levels of detoxification care. Ex. A, p. 18.

A 3.7 level of care includes providing 24-hour medically supervised evaluation and
withdrawal management, a permanent facility with inpatient beds and services that are
delivered under a defined set of physician-approved policies and the availability of 24-
hour observation, monitoring and treatment. Ex. A, p. 18.

Offering detoxification in the same facility where rehabilitation will occur will help to
ensure continuity of care throughout the patient’s treatment process. Ex. A, p. 18.
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14.

15.

l6.

17.

18.

19.

According to the State of Connecticut, Department of Mental Health and Addiction
Services (“DMHAS”), while treatment is available and effective, the majority who need
treatment do not obtain it. It is estimated that for every one person who seeks and/or
receives behavioral health care for addiction, there are six individuals with similar
conditions who will neither gain access to, nor receive, such care. Ex. A, p. 18,

Effective treatment must provide a combination of culturally competent therapies and
consider other factors including age, race, culture, language, sexual orientation, gender,
family roles, housing, employment, etc. Ex. A, p. 18.

Mountainside’s approach to addiction treatment combines therapeutic and holistic
methods to support its evidence-based program. Ex. A, p. 18.

Access to detoxification beds in Connecticut is problematic, and there are often waiting
lists at the few facilities that offer the service. Ex. A, p. 18.

There are currently 44 DPH licensed residential (non-hospital) substance abuse facilities
in Connecticut; however, only 10 are known to offer level 3.7 residential detoxification
services. Ex. A, p. 19 & Ex. C, p. 207.

Mountainside conducted two surveys of Connecticut substance abuse facilities currently
providing level 3.7 residential detoxification services to determine same-day
detoxification bed availability. The first survey of six providers was conducted prior to
submitting the CON application. It found that three of the facilities had between one
and three detoxification beds available and three facilities had no detoxification beds
available for several days. The second survey, conducted after filing the CON
application, found that three of the facilities had no detoxification beds available {with
one bed possibly available at night) and one facility had two beds available.
Additionally, four out-of-state facilities were surveyed and only one of those four had
available detoxification beds. Ex. A, p. 19 & 207.
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20.

21.

22,

23.

24.

25.

The following is a list of the ten (10) substance abuse facilities in Connecticut that are
currently providing level 3.7 residential detoxification services:

Facility Name Town ~ Total Beds Available
Detox
Beds
*First Step Bridgeport 19 19
*MCCA Danbury 30 10
*Detoxification Center (Blue Hartford 73 35
Hills & ADRC)
*Rushford Center Middletown 58 16
*South Central : New Haven 29 29
Rehabilitation Center
*Stonington Institute North 63 13
Stonington
**Community Prevention - Willimantic Unavailable 6
and Addiction Services
(CPAS)
**CT Valley Hospital Middletown Unavailable 20
(Merritt Hall)
**Southeastern Connecticut Lebanon Unavailable 20
Council on Alcohol and
Drug Dependence (SCADD)
**Silver Hill Hospital New Canaan Unavailable 18
{Silver Hilt)
Total Detox Beds 186

Notes: *First Survey **Second Survey
Ex A, p. 79, & Ex. C, p. 207.

Mountainside receives requests for residential detoxification care from existing referral
sources. These referral sources include physicians, acute care hospitals, family
members, interventionists, therapists and other mental health facilities. Ex. A, p. 21.

Over the past 21 months, Mountainside has referred approximately 170 individuals to
facilities outside of Connecticut (New York, New Jersey and Massachusetts) primarily
due to limited or lack of (level 3.7) bed availability. Ex. A, p. 20.

Mountainside submitted letters of support from a variety of referral sources from within
Connecticut and the neighboring states indicating need for access to additional
detoxification beds in Connecticut. Ex. C, p. 214-218.

By increasing access to detoxification care through the addition of detoxification beds at
Mountainside, continuity of care will be greatly enhanced and will ensure the successful
completion of rehabilitation care. Ex. A, p. 21.

According to a Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
(“SAMHSA”) report (the “Report™) issued in 2009, an estimated 8.7% of the population
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26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31

32.

aged 12 or older were illicit drug users, 23.7% of persons aged 12 and older participated
in binge drinking and 6.8% reported being a heavy drinker. Ex. A, p. 22.

The Report states that while drug and alcohol abuse are major problems, they are not
being adequately treated; of the people who needed treatment at a specialty facility for
an illicit drug or alcohol use problem in the past year, only 11.2% of this population
received treatment. Ex. A, p. 22.

SAMHSA’s 2010 census data indicates that there are 2,757,082 Connecticut residents
18 years of age and over, which is approximately 77% of the total population.
According to SAMHSA’s States in Brief report for Connecticut (“State Report™), the
global measures for abuse or dependence on illicit drugs or alcohol are at or above
national rates. Ex. A, p. 24.

The State Report further states that Connecticut has been among the 10 states with the
highest rates for past month illicit drug marijuana use and past year marijuana use for
the 18-25 age group as well as past month alcohol use for several age groups including
12+, 18-25 and 26+. This has been a steady trend in Connecticut survey data collected
between 2002-2003 and 2005-2006. Ex. A, p. 24.

According to SAMHSA’s State Profile and Underage Drinking Facts, 137,000 (32.3%)
of 12-t0-20 year-olds consumed alcohol in the past month and 100,000 individuals
(23.5%) binged on alcohol. Mountainside currently (reats many young adults with
alcohol abuse and dependence and a large percentage of these clients began drinking
before they were of legal drinking age. Ex. A, p. 24.

Mountainside contends the proposed population either a) may not be receiving
detoxification services at all because of the difficulty m obtaining access to
detoxification beds, b) may be accessing out-of-state detoxification services, or ¢) may
be able to access one of the limited number of available detoxification beds in
Connecticut. Ex. A, p. 24.

Due to the limited number of detoxification beds and the fact that the existing providers
are generally at or near capacity, the proposed addition of 16 detoxification beds at
Mountainside is expected to have little or no impact on any existing providers.
Additionally, Mountainside has an established referral base due to its other existing
behavioral health services. Ex. A, p. 25.

Mountainside developed the following volume projections for the proposed 16 bed
increase:

a. Monthly admissions are estimated to be 65 per month. This is based on
Mountainside’s recent historical admissions per month which have ranged
between 65 and 80. Each admission is expected to utilize the detoxification
beds. Some clients will only require 24 hours of observation but most will
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33,

34,

35.

36.

require up to seven days of detoxification. Therefore, the projected
detoxification admissions for a full year are estimated to be 780.
b. The projected patient days have been calculated using an average length of stay -

of 6 days. Therefore, for a full year, 4,680 patient days are projected. Ex. A, p.
26.

The following are the historical occupancy and average daily census rates for
Mountainside:

Table A: Historical Occupancy Rate
FY 2008 | FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

Occupancy Rate 2% 70% T74% 87%

Table B: Historical Average Daily Census
FY 2008 | FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

Avg. Daily Census | 48 46 46 53

Table C: Historical Variability in Census (high vs. low)
FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
Census High 66 66 62 61
Census Low 36 36 34 33

Table D: Historical Patient Days
FY 2008 FY 2609 FY 2010 FY 2011
Patient Days 17,342 16,762 16,820 17,429

Ex. A, p. 27.

Mountainside’s historical and actual service admissions (for all services) was as
follows:

Table E: Historical and Actual Service Admissions

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
Admissions 598 578 580 601

Ex. A,p. 28.

In 2008, Mountainside was a not-for-profit facility but due to recent economic
challenges, it was unable to obtain the necessary funding for needed renovations and
improvements to the physical plant. The facility converted to a for-profit in 2009 in
order to obtain the necessary funding for physical plant improvements. As a result of
these facility improvements, admissions and census have increased, approaching 90%

“occupancy this current fiscal year. Ex. A, p. 28.

Utilizing projected admissions and patient days, Mountainside expects the proposed 16
detoxification beds to operate at 80% occupancy. This occupancy rate would allow
Mountainside to respond fo many same-day requests for bed access. Ex. A, p. 26.
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Mountainside’s projected detoxification admissions are as follows:

Table F: Projected Residential Detoxification Admissions
FY 2012% | FY 2013 | FY 2014

Detox Admissions | 768 780 780

* Annualized

Mountainside estimates that the age distribution for the proposed detoxification beds
will be similar to their existing population, which 1s primarily young adults between 18

and 30 years of age, with a smaller percentage being between 30 and 65 years of age.
Ex. A, p. 25. '

The addition of the proposed 16 detoxification beds will improve timely access to
residential detoxification care, improved continuity of care due to the provision of
detoxification and rehabilitation care at the same location and the ability to retain
Connecticut residents who currently leave the state for residential detoxification care.
Ex. A, p. 26.

Mountainside’s proposal will have a direct and positive impact on the quality of health
care delivery. Availability of residential detoxification services in the same facility as
the residential rehabilitation care will help ensure more drug-addicted and alcoholic
individuals complete their treatment. Additionally, it will improve continuity of care
and by improving access to detoxification care, will help to ensure that more individuals
are entering the first phase of critical services at the same facility in which they will
continue their rehabilitation to help them manage their addiction. Ex. A, p. 29.

The total capital expenditure associated with this proposal is $9,672,513, which
includes $8,055,000 related directly to land/building construction costs and the
remaining $995,000 is related to non-medical equipment purchase. Ex. A, p. 30-31.

The project will be funded through a combination of an equity contribution and a
commercial bank loan. The equity contribution is for a total of $1,169,923 and the bank
loan will be for a term of 10 years at 6% for a total loan amount of $8,502,590. Ex. A, p.
31 & 20%.

The following table illustrates the projected net income based on the incremental
operational revenue and expenses for the proposed 16-bed increase:

Table G: Mountainside’s incremental net income

Total Revenue from Operati{ms:. $1,728,000 | $3,785,940 | $4,089,750
Total Expenses from Operations| $1,851,565 | §3,819,748 | $3,908,628
Net Income (Before Taxes) $(123,565) $(33,808) $181,122

Ex. A, p. 200.
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44. Although Mountainside is projecting small incremental losses for the first two years of
the proposal attributed directly to depreciation expenses, it is projecting an incremental
gain in net income by year three of the proposal. Additionally, Mountainside is
projecting gains from net income for each of the first three years of the proposal for the
overall facility. Ex. A, p. 200.

45. The following table illustrates the projected net income based on the operational
revenue and expenses with the proposal:

Table G: Mountainside overall net income with proposal

D =
Total Revenue from $12,541,750 | $15,140,378 | $16,011,909
Operations:

Total Expenses from $12,286,382 | $14,776,306 | $15,413,014
Operations:
Net Income (Before Taxes) $255,368 $364,072 $598.896

Fx. A, p. 200,

46. Mountainside’s current patient population mix of 80% Commercial and 20% Self-Pay is
not expected to change as a result of this proposal. Ex. A, p. 32.
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Discussion

CON applications are decided on a case by case basis and do not lend themselves to general
applicability due to the uniqueness of the facts in each case. In rendering its decision, OHCA
considers the factors set forth in General Statutes § 19a-639(a) and the Applicant bears the
burden of proof in this matter by a preponderance of the evidence. Goldstar Medical Services,
Inc., et al. v. Depariment of Social Services, 288 Conn. 790 (2008); Swiller v. Commissioner of
Public Health, No. CV 95-0705601 (Sup. Court, J.D. Hartford/New Britain at Hartford,
October 10, 1995); Bridgepori Ambulance Serv. v. Connecticut Dept. of Healih Serv., No. CV
88-0349673-S (Sup. Court, J.D. Hartford/New Britain at Hartford, July 6, 1989); Steadman v.
SEC, 450 U.S. 91, 101 S.Ct. 999, reh'g den., 451 U.S. 933 (1981); Bender v. Clark, 744 F.2d
1424 (10th Cir. 1984); Sea Island Broadcasting Corp. v. FCC, 627 F.2d 240, 243 (D.C. Cir.
1980).

Mountainside is licensed as a Facility for the Care and Treatment of Substance Abusive or
Dependent Persons in Canaan, Connecticut. FF1. The Applicant is proposing to increase its
licensed bed capacity by adding 16 residential detoxification beds, which will bring its total
complement of substance abuse beds to 78. FF10. Mountainside currently operates 62
Intermediate and Long-Term Treatment and Rehabilitation beds. Fr3. Although Mountainside
treats adults of all ages, it treats many young adults with alcohol abuse and dependence and a
large percentage of these clients began drinking before they were of legal drinking age. FF29.

Mountainside, is a residential drug and alcoholism rehabilitation facility, uses a multi-
disciplinary approach to help individuals suffering from addiction and provides individual
addiction treatment and comprehensive aftercare. Fr4. Current treatment methods include, but
are not limited to, one-on-one and group counseling, day, evening and outpatient treatments as
well as aftercare. FF5. Mountainside currently uses all of its 62 licensed beds for rehabilitation
care, and occupancy levels reach 100% regularly throughout the year, resulting in waiting lists.
FF7.

The proposed additional beds will be utilized to provide level 3.7 residential detoxification
services: providing 24-hour medically supervised evaluation and withdrawal management, a
permanent facility with inpatient beds and services that are delivered under a defined set of
physician-approved policies and the availability of 24-hour observation, monitoring and
treatment. FF10&14. Residential detoxification generally requires five to seven days to complete
before an individual is ready to begin substance abuse rehabilitation treatment, which typically -
continues for 28 days. FF10. Additionally, the monthly admissions are estimated to be 65 per
month, which is based on Mountainside’s historical admissions, which have ranged between 65
and 80 per month FF32. Offering detoxification in the same facility where rehabilitation will
occur will help to ensure continuity of care throughout the patient’s treatment process. FF13.

Although there are 10 facilities in Connecticut that offer level 3.7 residential detoxification
service, with a total of 186 detoxification beds, these beds are not readily available for same-
day service for patients requiring this level of care. FF20-22. Over the past 21 months,
Mountainside has referred approximately 170 individuals to facilities outside of Connecticut
(New York, New Jersey and Massachusetts) primarily due to limited or lack of (level 3.7) bed
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availability. FF24. Mountainside receives requests for residential detoxification care from
existing referral sources. These include physicians, acute care hospitals, family members,
interventionists, therapists and other mental health facilities. FF23. As evidence, the Applicant
submitted letters of support from a variety of referral sources from within Connecticut and
neighboring states indicating the need for access to additional detoxification beds
Connecticut. FF24. Additionally, SAMHSA data indicates the prevalence of the significant use
of drug and alcohol by the population age 12 and older at the national level; moreover, the data

_also indicates that Connecticut has been among the 10 states with the highest rates for illicit
drug and alcoholuse. According to SAMHSA data, this has been a steady trend since 2002.
FF26-29. By increasing access to detoxification care through the addition of detoxification beds
at Mountainside, continuity of care will be greatly enhanced and will ensure the successful
completion of rehabilitation care. Fr24.

It appears to OHCA there is a need for 16 additional detoxification beds, based on the
Applicant’s demonstration of limited access to level 3.7 detoxification service beds in
Connecticut and referrals of their existing patient population to other providers in order to
accommodate needed detoxification services. In addition, supporting national and state-level
data provided further indicate a need. The addition of level 3.7 detoxification service beds will
not only have a positive impact on the quality of health care delivery in Connecticut but will
provide Mountainside an opportunity to offer a full complement of substance abuse services to
their existing patients, thereby improving continuity of care.

The total capital expenditure associated with the proposal is $9,672,513, including $8,055,000
associated with construction related to land and building. FF43. Although the Applicant is
projecting a net income loss incremental to the proposal, attributed directly to the non-cash
depreciation expense related to the construction for the first two years of the proposal, the
Applicant is projecting a gain in net income incremental to the proposal by the third year of the
proposal and additionally, the net income for the total facility for the first three years of the
proposal is projecting a gain. FE45-46.
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Order

Based upon the foregoing Findings and Discussion, the Certificate of Need application of MCI
Healthcare LLC d/b/a Mountainside Treatment Center to increase its total licensed beds by 16,
from 62 total licensed beds to 78 total licensed beds at its treatment center located 187 South
Canaan Road, Route 7 in Canaan, Connecticut, at an associated total capital expenditure of
$9,672,513 is hereby approved.

All of the foregoing constitutes the final order of the Office of Health Care Access in this
matter.

By Order of the
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

5////20/2, M@L@ﬁw

Lisa A. Davis, MBA, BSN, RN
Deputy Commissioner

Date
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